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VISION

J?Ei\ EERN fertilisers and magnesium markets in the 21st

Expanding the world’s knowledge of ecological

green era.
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POSITIONING
STATEMENT
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One of the leading and largest vertically integrated
businesses covering ecological fertilisers and
magnesium to achieve green technological
innovations and operational efficiencies and
effectiveness in Asia.
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Board of Directors
Executive Directors
Chi Wen Fu (Chairman)
Shum Sai Chit

Chi Bi Fen

Yang Yuchuan

Non-executive Director
Guo Mengyong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Kwong Ping Man
Sheng Hong
Lau Chi Kit

Company Secretary
Luk Sai Wai, Simon

Committees

Audit Committee

Kwong Ping Man (Committee Chairman)
Sheng Hong

Lau Chi Kit

Nomination Committee
Chi Wen Fu (Committee Chairman)
Kwong Ping Man

Sheng Hong

Remuneration Committee
Kwong Ping Man (Committee Chairman)
Shum Sai Chit

Sheng Hong

Lau Chi Kit

Head Office

Unit 2605, 26th Floor, Harbour Centre

25 Harbour Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2802 2165

Fax: (852) 2802 2697

E-mail: ir@centurysunshine.com.hk
Website:  www.centurysunshine.com.hk

Auditors
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Principal Bankers
Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Bank of China Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited



REZEHR

2015 F3#, ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Information for Investors

EmER
T EABAXGAR AR
(T AT]) E£1R

% 1 (5% 509

EEHH

2016434231 N0 E 2 FEE

2016516082 TEREROBPER
2016558198 (ERRBRRBFRE)
(BHEBEEMA)

201654 19H RBEFAE

20165430 = TEREROBRER
2016F6A1H (B AR2015%F K &
(BHEEEMA) B B)

20166 A6H EH Y 2015E KRR E

BHER

RABIFRHEEC.02E T 4,609,486,8430%

BETRG (TR, B ])
(201512 A310)

m{E (2015%12A31H) 3,595,399,737/8 7T

SFBEEEN 5,000/
20155 8RR EF

BEIN 719711l
g 70734
20155 8RK A

rh A
FE (HR) 1,371
BREOBFEZRTE
BEOBEZRTHIE :

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
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Listing Information

Listing Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
Stock code 509
Key Dates
23 March 2016 Announcement of 2015 annual results
16 May 2016 to Closure of register of members
19 May 2016 (for annual general meeting)
(both days inclusive)
19 May 2016 Annual general meeting
30 May 2016 to Closure of register of members
1 June 2016 (for 2015 final dividend)
(both days inclusive)
6 June 2016 Proposed payments of 2015 final

dividend

Share Information
Company’s shares of HK$0.02 each

(the “Shares”) in issue

(31 December 2015)
Market capitalisation (31 December 2015)
Board lot size

4,609,486,843
Shares

HK$3,595,399,737
5,000 Shares

Earnings Per Share for 2015
Basic
Diluted

HK7.19 cents
HK7.07 cents

Dividend Per Share for 2015
Interim
Final (proposed)

Nil HK cents
HK1.3 cents

Share Registrar and Transfer Offices
Principal:
Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House
24 Shedden Road, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Registered Office
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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hFRBHE
Five Year Financial Summary

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
THx TEL FHL TALT FHL
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
BE12A31H I £E For the year ended 31 December
WA Revenue 2,515,602 2,072,519 1,640,291 1,242,930 736,790
HEMK Cost of sales (1,729,567) (1,412,575  (1,132,526) (910,734) (604,555)
=7 Gross profit 786,035 659,944 507,765 332,196 132,235
ElA RS F5E Other income and gains, net 51,250 18,346 10,469 13,472 76,605
HERMGHREER Seling and marketing costs (113,406) (108,116) (69,437) (48,948) (35,242)
THEX Administrative expenses (139,598) (63,302) (55,767) (48,084) (38,951)
HEER Finance costs (87,390) (44,186) (21,441) (20,363) (16,413)
BRETERATR R Profit before income tax 496,891 467,686 371,589 228,273 118,234
FENA Income tax expense (155,006) (128,045) (94,456) (47,984) (14,098)
BIRIFEEER Discontinued operation 5 - - (11,705) (3,018)
FREF Profit for the year 341,885 339,641 277,133 168,584 101,118
THALEEFERER Profit for the year
attributable to:
ARREEA Owners of the Company 303,489 287,910 230,215 130,312 96,541
FERER Non-controlling interests 38,396 51,731 46,918 38,272 4577
FREF Earnings per share:
-EAR - basic 7.19 801 flicents  7.01 flicents*  3.98 flicents*  2.95 fllicents*
-B% - diluted 7.07  7.79 flicents*  6.80 flicents”  3.98 flicents®  2.95 flicents®
H12531A As at 31 December
BEHE Total assets 5,421,692 3,796,956 2,840,222 2,363,438 2,070,412
BEEE Total liabilities (2,078,354)  (1,430,315) (687,260) (593,924) (588,387)
ERE Total equity 3,343,338 2,366,641 2,152,962 1,769,514 1,482,025

* BARHEEREARINREREERN D BITEER *  The weight average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic

MEFHE > EEAFE015F6 818 2 A K EE 20154 and diluted earnings per share has been adjusted for the issue of shares
AR AR BEITMELH AR ANERERALEER pursuant to open offer on 1 June 2015 and bonus issue on 29 June 2015,
M2 &EF as such, the basic and dilute earnings per share were restated.
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Five Year Financial Summary

EZ12H31H1LEE For the year ended 31 December

e EETR Return on shareholders’ equity
BEERRE Return on total assets
RFEF B EH Interest coverage
R125317 As at 31 December
BELE Gearing ratio
B E Liquidity
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Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company/
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BEENWR DN

HE0I5F12AIB I ERE AR ER T ELEBHIFH2014FRYPHIBLENT - TRAVN T EEB(EALE
B & £2015F12A31H L FEH 4L EFEHIBI0% °

(a) TEEMZHEE

BEPRHER 661,748 544,356 21.6
CEBEEMER 24,031 22,783 5.5

(b) EEEMzFIIEE:

BERERERS 2,301 2,343 (1.8)
CEREEMER 30,806 29,322 5.1

(c) TEEmMZERNR:

BEERER 27.9 27.1 0.8

CEBEEMER 34.2 32.1 2.1

AEBE 2 BEERNEK 31.2 31.8 (0.6)
A

NEB2015F U A 42,515,602,0008 7T (20144 : #92,072,519,000/8 7T ) » IEIRIELN21.4% - F A - ZEAEK
¥ eBEERER ZHE DRI IN21.6%K%5.5% °
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company” and together with its subsidiaries, “Century Sunshine” or the “Group”), | am pleased to present
the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year”) of the Group for the consideration of our
shareholders.

In 2015, the Group made significant progress in the operation of our two major businesses, and encouraged
the continuous development of operation scale of the Group, including the proposed new fertiliser production
line with an annual capacity of 1.40 million tonnes to be built in Ruichang City, Jiangxi Province, and the
acquisition of the magnesium manufacturer in Xinjiang through Group Sense (International) Limited (stock code:
601), which the Group holds 51.88% shares. These development progresses further drive the rapid growth of
the two businesses. During the Year, the Group was ranked 220th among China Top 500 Chemical Industrial
Enterprises, and ranked 39th among China Top 100 Fertiliser Corporations, representing the recognition of our
solid foundation and brand image.

The Fertiliser Business

The Chinese government has put the “Three Rural” issues as the first priority of the government for consecutive
13 years, whereas the primary document of 2016, “Certain Comments Relating to Implementing New
Development Ideas on Accelerating Modern Construction of Agriculture and Achieving the Goal of the All-
round Well-off Society” (BREEBEZEFNEBOMREXFRRMCERE2E/NEEENETER)”, introduces new
development concept to tackle the new “Three Rural” problems, and focuses on resources preservation and
ecological restoration, as well as encourages the development of eco-friendly agriculture. Though the use of
traditional chemical fertilisers in a large quantity guaranteed a stable supply of food in the country, such practice
resulted in the serious problem of soil compaction and acidification. New types of fertiliser not only provide
the necessary and balanced nutrients which target specific crops, but also improve the quality of the crops
while regulate soil acidity and thus improve soil structure, so as to achieve the objectives of soil preservation
and eco-restoration. According to the “Guidance on Prompting the Restructuring and Development of Fertiliser
Industry (HEE(LIRITEEA R AIEEE R)” issued by Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the
People’s Republic of China (MIIT), utilisation of the new type of fertiliser in China will increase from less than
10% at present to 30% by 2020. Against the backdrop of the agricultural modernization and encouragement of
eco-friendly agriculture supported by the government, the environment-friendly new fertiliser shall become the
dominant development trend of the sector.

Leveraging on the favorable agricultural policies of the Chinese government, the Group develops ecological
fertilisers that cater to the demand of the industry to upgrade and adjust its product structure. The two product
series of the Group, namely the organic fertilisers and compound fertilisers (including silicon magnesium
fertilisers) are produced especially for regulating and balancing the needs of crop growing, which play a role in
improving soil fertility and enhancing crop quality. The Group has been strived to develop eco-friendly, green and
ecologically sustainable oriented business that fulfill the macro policies of China. We aim to maintain a leading
position in the industry given the new trend encouraged by the government and product upgrade process in
China.

24



2015 F3#, ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Chairman’s Statement

Magnesium Product Business

China is one of the major providers as well as consumers of magnesium around the world. As a strategic
resource and a new structural material of the country, the development of the magnesium sector plays an
important role in the national strategies. Meanwhile, the Chinese economy has entered into a new stage.
Lightweight materials bring significant economic and social benefits, magnesium alloy, as a type of green material
in 21st Century with advanced features and market potential, it is expected that the application of this new
material and the development of magnesium production chain will become more significant. Therefore, as one of
the highly-recognised lightweight structural materials at present, magnesium has huge potential and development
prospect. In the “13th Five-Year” development plan of China’s magnesium industry, the high-performance
lightweight alloy structural materials represented by magnesium alloy are included into a special focus for the
“Development of Strategic Emerging Industries”, where the production volume of raw magnesium in China will
reach 1.30 million tonnes by the end of the “13th Five-Year” development plan in 2020. Magnesium industry,
as a sunrise industry, is expected to reach its development height, and will play a significant role in lightweight
transportation, consumer electronics, aerospace and other industries.

To seize the opportunities for development, the Group has taken a step forward in expanding the production
capacity of the magnesium products business, and has proactively developed the magnesium economic cycle
business and the related businesses of magnesium alloy production, and endeavored to put our magnesium
products business at the forefront throughout the magnesium industry in China and the world.

Outlook

China is entering a new form of economy led by sustainable development. Looking forward, 2016 is the first year
of the “13th Five-Year” development plan, the Chinese government is strived to promote greener and low-carbon
economy, implying the long term favourable policies are available to support the industries. Leveraging on its
technology and resources advantages, the Group will continue to invest in research and development, implement
capacity expansion plan, at the same time, to proactively open up new markets with differentiated strategies
whereas the products are catered to the needs of consumers. All these enable the Group to develop its two core
businesses to the forefront of the industries in China.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my sincere gratitude towards our management team
and staff members for their contributions to the Group during the Year. | would like to take this opportunity to

thank our shareholders, business partners and all our customers for their unremitting support for the Group. In
the coming year, we will exert our best efforts to create abundant returns for shareholders.

Chi Wen Fu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

The Group maintained a relatively higher growth of business in 2015. Total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2015 (the “Year”) increased by 21.4% to HK$2,515,602,000 (2014: HK$2,072,519,000). The gross
profit margin was 31.2% (2014: 31.8%). The slight overall decrease in the gross profit margin of the Group
is mainly due to the dilution of the relatively lower gross profit margin of the electric product business of
Group Sense (International) Limited (stock code: 601) (“GSIL”) which was acquired during the Year. Fertiliser
business and magnesium product business, the two core businesses of the Group recorded growth during
the Year. Revenue of the fertiliser business contributed to approximately HK$1,523,281,000 for 2015 (2014:
HK$1,277,282,000), accounting for approximately 60.6% (2014: 61.6%) of the Group’s total revenue, and
representing an increase of 19.3% year-on-year, while revenue of the magnesium product business reached
approximately HK$760,502,000 for 2015 (2014: HK$696,904,000), accounting for approximately 30.2% (2014:
33.6%) of the Group’s total revenue, and representing an increase of 9.1% as compared to 2014.

Fertiliser Business

The Group has two competitive fertiliser products, including compound fertilisers and organic fertilisers. For
the year ended 31 December 2015, the fertiliser product business contributed HK$1,523,281,000 (2014:
HK$1,277,282,000) to revenue of the Group, representing an increase of 19.3% year-on-year, and carrying an
average gross profit margin of 27.9% (2014: 27.1%).

In order to achieve the strategic objective of developing its fertiliser business of the Group to the national
forefront, the Company keeps expanding its production scale. In July 2015, the Group acquired a land covering
an area of 800 acres within an industrial park in Ruichang City of the People’s Government of Jiangxi Province,
on which, the Group intended to build a fertiliser production line with an annual capacity of 1.4 million tonnes
of fertilisers, a self-owned cargo-handling terminal and the auxiliary facilities. The new production capacity of
1.4 million tonnes is primarily established for the Si-Mg compound fertiliser, water-soluble fertiliser and other
new fertiliser products. Ruichang City, the location of the new production base, is an important industrial city
of Jiangxi Province, adjacent to three coastal economic circles (the Yangtze River Delta, the Pearl River Delta,
and Southeastern part of Fujian), bordering the south shore of the Yangtze River, and connecting two major
railway networks including Beijing — Kowloon Railway and the Beijing — Guangzhou Railway, representing the
convenience of water and land transportation. In addition, the Company utilized advanced technology on its
new fertiliser production line, and thanks to the convenient adjacent water and land transportation, the cost of
transportation and production could be reduced significantly. The first phase of the new fertiliser production line
with an annual capacity of 800,000 tonnes is scheduled to be completed in 2018, and the second phase with an
annual capacity of 600,000 tonnes is scheduled to be completed in 2019. The construction and enhancement of
the project will cover the southern market and complement and match with the northern market of such products
covered by the Jiangsu production base, which contributes to the further development of sales network of the
Group and enhance our client-base coverage.

The new capacity of 300,000 tonnes fertiliser has commenced production in the production base of Jiangsu
Province in the first quarter of 2015. The annual capacity is expected to reach 850,000 tonnes in 2016 through
technology upgrade of existing production facilities. The overall capacity could be reached over 2 million tonnes
in the future including the newly expanded production capacity of 1.4 million tonnes in Jiangxi production base.
The Group will continue to proactively seek for appropriate merger and acquisition opportunities, so as to
accelerate the rapid growth of its fertiliser business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Magnesium Product Business

The magnesium products of the Group included basic magnesium products and rare earth magnesium alloys.
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the magnesium product business contributed HK$760,502,000 (2014:
HK$696,904,000) to revenue of the Group, representing an increase of 9.1% year-on-year, and carrying an
average gross profit margin of 34.2% (2014: 32.1%).

In order to further strengthen the Group’s comparable advantage in the magnesium business and its
competitiveness in the industry, the Company successfully acquired a total of 51.88% shares in GSIL in early
2015, and through this independent listing platform, the Company vigorously expanded and implemented the
magnesium business development plan. In August 2015, GSIL announced the acquisition of a magnesium
product manufacturer located in Xinjiang Province, with annual production capacity of 1.2 million tonnes of
semi-coke, 60,000 tonnes of magnesium ingot and 100,000 tonnes of ferroalloy, as approved by the Chinese
government. Two established production lines consist of annual production capacity of 15,000 tonnes
magnesium ingot and 600,000 tonnes semi-coke respectively. The magnesium production line has commenced
production after trial run in the first quarter of 2016. This acquisition facilitates the resource integration of
the Group, and also encourages the Group to achieve the strategic goal to become the leading magnesium
enterprise in China and the world.

The total production capacity of magnesium is expected to reach 135,000 tonnes in the future, aggregating the
expansion of the authorized production capacity of 60,000 tonnes in the production base in Xinjiang and the
existing production capacity. The expansion of capacity could further enhance the market position of the Group
in the magnesium industry, and accelerate the growth of the overall performance of the Group’s magnesium
business.

Other Businesses

The metallurgical flux and electronic products are the Group’s secondary businesses. The superb quality
serpentine reserves not only provide a key raw material to produce Si-Mg fertilisers, but also serve as an
indispensable source of auxiliary material for iron and steel smelting. The Group sells a manageable amount of
serpentine to major domestic steel enterprises for stable income, with prerequisite of an adequate and steady
supply of raw material for the production of Si-Mg fertilisers.

Outlook

In pace with the vigorous impetus to energy conservation, environmental protection and emission reduction,
the Group will seize the opportunity to develop ecological fertiliser and the new magnesium alloy material.
Despite of slowdown of domestic economic growth, the management has confidence on the business with its
competitiveness by leveraging on the advantages on resources and differentiated products in the market. The
Group will devote the best efforts in achieving further business development in a prudent way.

In 2016, the Group will continue to implement the market strategy of product differentiation, focus on research,
and develop more high-performance, and high-value-added products to cope with the market demand, and thus
reinforce its leading position in the high-end market. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to proactively seek for
appropriate merger and acquisition opportunities, continue the expansion of capacity, and strive for the fulfillment
of the strategic objective to becoming the leading corporation for both ecological fertiliser and magnesium
businesses in China, ultimately bringing higher return to shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Key Operational Data

Unaudited key operational data for the year ended 31 December 2015, together with the comparative figures
for the corresponding period in 2014, is as follows. Main businesses listed below contributed over 90% of the
Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015.

(a) Sales volume of major products:

Year

2015 2014 Increased
Tonnes Tonnes %

Fertiliser business 661,748 544,356 21.6
Magnesium product business 24,031 22,783 5.5

(b) Average selling prices of major products:

Year
2015 2014 Increased/
per tonne per tonne (Decreased)
HK$ HK$
Fertiliser business 2,301 2,343 (1.8)
Magnesium product business 30,806 29,322 5.1

(c) Gross profit margins of major products:

Increased/

(Decreased)
Percentage
points

Fertiliser business 27.9 271 0.8

Magnesium product business 34.2 32.1 2.1

The Group’s gross profit margin 31.2 31.8 (0.6)
Revenue

Total revenue of the Group in 2015 amounted to approximately HK$2,515,602,000 (2014: approximately
HK$2,072,519,000), representing a growth of about 21.4%. During the Year, the sale quantities for fertilisers
business and magnesium products business have increased by 21.6% and 5.5% respectively.
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Cost of Sale

Cost of sales for 2015 amounted to approximately HK$1,729,567,000 (2014: HK$1,412,575,000), an increase
of around 22.4% over last year. Among which, approximately 91.9% (2014: 98.4%) are attributable to fertiliser
business and magnesium product business. Cost of sales mainly comprised of material cost and utilities cost.

Gross Profit

Consolidated gross profit for 2015 was approximately HK$786,035,000 (2014: HK$659,944,000), surged by
approximately 19.1%. The Group managed to further improve product structure, optimized product mix, thereby
improving the gross profit margin of the Group’s principal business, i.e. the fertilisers business and magnesium
business. However, the electronic business acquired during the Year has a relatively lower gross profit margin,
resulting in the slight decrease in the Group’s consolidated gross profit margin from 31.8% to 31.2%.

Selling and Marketing Costs

Selling and marketing costs were approximately HK$113,406,000(2014: HK$103,116,000), represents an year-
on-year increase of approximately 10.0%. Selling and marketing costs mainly comprised of transportation,
salaries and commission.

Administrative Expenses

During the Year, administrative expenses of the Group were approximately HK$139,598,000 (2014:
HK$63,302,000), representing approximately 5.5% (2014: approximately 3.1%) of the total revenue. Such
expenses mainly include staff remuneration, depreciation and amortisation expenses, audit and professional fees
and occupancy costs. Increase in administrative expenses was mainly due to the acquisition of GSIL, whose
administrative and R&D expenses of electronic products business amounted to approximately HK$63,462,000.
Nevertheless, the Group was still able to effectively control such expenses.

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains amounted to approximately HK$42,799,000 (2014: HK$15,055,000), increased by
184.3%, which mainly comprised of interest income and sales of scrap materials amounting to approximately
HK$12,094,000 and HK$11,679,000 respectively.

Margin

Profit for the Year amounted to approximately HK$341,885,000 (2014: approximately HK$339,641,000),
representing an increase of approximately 0.7% year-on-year, including the operating losses of approximately
HK$24,685,000 incurred from the electronic product business of GSIL acquired on 26 February 2015. If
excluding such losses, our core businesses of the fertiliser and magnesium product business recorded a profit for
the Year of approximately HK$366,570,000, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 7.9%. Profit
attributable to owners of the Company for the Year amounted to HK$303,489,000 (2014: HK$287,910,000),
increased by approximately 5.4% on a year-on-year basis. If excluding the abovementioned operating losses
of the newly acquired item, the year-on-year increase would be approximately 9.8%. The Group strives to
strictly control its costs, implement business reorganisation and injection of new projects with long-term growth
potential. The operating results of GSIL is expected to be improved and enhanced in the coming year, which will
bring positive contribution to the Group.

The basic earnings per share was 7.19 HK cents (2014: 8.01 HK cents). The weighted average number of

ordinary shares for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share has been adjusted for the issue of shares
pursuant to open offer on 1 June 2015 and bonus issue on 29 June 2015.
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Liquidity, Liabilities and Financial Resources

The Group’s liquidity in 2015 was mainly derived from cash generated from business operations and financing
activities during the Year. As at 31 December 2015, total amount of cash and bank balances of the Group was
approximately HK$1,452,515,000 (2014: HK$828,782,000).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s total borrowings increased by approximately 69.0% as compared to
2014, while net current assets increased by approximately 141.7% as compared to 2014. The Group’s gearing
ratio (calculated by total borrowings over total assets) was approximately 27.7% in 2015 (2014: 23.4%).

The Group’s existing cash resources together with the steady cash flows generated from business activities are
sufficient to meet its business needs.

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had pledge of its assets, details of which are disclosed in Note 32 to the
financial statements.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 December 2015, other than those disclosed in Note 39 to the financial statements, the Group did not
have any material capital commitments.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2015, other than those disclosed in Note 45 to the financial statements, the Group did not
have any significant contingent liabilities.

Capital Structure
As at 31 December 2015, the issued share capital of the Company were HK$92,189,736, divided into
4,609,486,843 shares of HK$0.02 each.
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Significant Transactions

(i) On 19 December 2014, Ming Xin Developments Limited (“Ming Xin”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, entered into a sale and purchase agreement and a subscription agreement, for the acquisition of
500,000,000 existing shares and the subscription of 239,532,000 new shares of Group Sense (International)
Limited (stock code: 601) (“GSIL") at the consideration of HK$229,600,000 and HK$76,650,000
respectively. The transactions were completed on 26 February 2015. As the Group gained 51.46%
controlling interest in GSIL after the completion, mandatory general offer were made by the Group on
5 March 2015 and completed on 26 March 2015. The Group’s controlling interest in GSIL thereafter
increased to 51.88%. For details, please refer to the relevant announcements and circulars published by
the Group.

(i)  On 4 February 2015, the Company entered into a non-legally binding framework agreement with an
independent third party (the “Vendor”) in relation to the proposed acquisition of 100% equity interest
in operating project companies (the “Subject Companies”) as owned by the Vendor (the “Proposed
Acquisition”). The Subject Companies mainly engage in magnesium business and its ancillary businesses
including power generation and semi-coke. Despite the expiration of the 6-month exclusive period of the
proposed acquisition, the parties were still in the process of negotiation.

In addition, the Group will also identify potential business-related projects and targets of mergers and
acquisitions from time to time in order to implement the Group’s strategic objectives, that is to develop
our business to the forefront of the country by way of expansion of production capacity through self-
establishment and mergers and acquisitions. In the event that the proposed mergers and acquisition
proceeds, the Company will comply with the relevant disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules and/or
the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers as and when appropriate.

(i)  On 1 June 2015, the Company issued 1,453,119,268 new Shares by way of open offer at HK$0.40 per
share on the basis of 1 open offer share for every 2 existing Shares held by qualifying shareholders as at
28 May 2015. Details are stated in the Company’s prospectus issued on 8 May 2015.

On 29 June 2015, the Company issued 217,967,890 new Shares by way of bonus issue on the basis of 1
bonus issue share for every 20 existing Shares held by qualifying shareholders as at 17 June 2015. Details
are stated in the Company’s relevant announcements.

(iv)  On 4 June 2015, the Company issued the first tranche of 7.2% subordinated notes with the face value
of SGD75 million (under the Multicurrency Medium Term Note Programme). The notes are listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange and will mature on 4 June 2018.

On 3 August 2015, the Company further issued the second tranche of 7.2% subordinated notes with the
face value of SGD50 million which will also matured on 4 June 2018.

(v  On 17 November 2015, GSIL, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, issued
1,437,195,029 new GSIL shares by way of open offer at HK$0.20 per share on the basis of 1 GSIL open
offer share for every 1 existing GSIL shares held by qualifying shareholders as at 23 October 2015. Details
are stated in the GSIL’s prospectus issued on 20 August 2015. This open offer raised approximately
HK$287,439,000 before expenses.
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(vij During the year, the Company’s indirect non-wholly owned subsidiaries, GSIL and its subsidiaries,
completed the acquisition of Xinjiang Tengxiang Magnesium Products Company Limited from a third party.
Details of which are disclosed in Note 42(b) to the financial statement.

Key Risks and Uncertainties

Our Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business prospects may be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s businesses. The followings are the key risks
and uncertainties identified by our Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below which are not known to our Group or which may not be material now but could turn out to be material in
the future.

Market risks

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or affects ability to meet business objectives arising from the
movement in market demand, product prices, foreign exchange rates, and interest rates. The management of our
Group keeps continually monitoring these exposures closely to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner against such risks.

Exchange rate risk

The Group mainly operates in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from primarily with respect to Renminbi, HK$, Singapore dollars, US$ and Australian
dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and
net investments in foreign operations. The Group’s management does not expect the net foreign currency risk
from these activities to be significant and hence, the Group does not presently hedge the foreign exchange risks.
The Group has planned to periodically reviews liquid assets and liabilities held in currencies other than HK$ to
evaluate its foreign exchange risk exposure and consider the usage of hedging instruments when necessary.

Interest rate risk

For interest-sensitive products and investments, our Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic
basis and considers managing this risk in a cost-effective manner when appropriate, through variety of means.
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Credit risk

The Group has always been aware of the credit risk exposure of our customers. The Group strictly followed
the “client account management procedures” established in 2004. The procedures required and ensured that
all clients were regularly assessed and be kept track of their transaction records and credit history. The Group
specified and assigned to each customer, as according to their operation and credit status, a series of credit
measures such as credit ratio, credit period, credit rating, credit terms and guarantee. The client account
management procedures were effective to control the credit risk of the Group.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that our Group will be unable to meet its obligations when they fall due because of
an inability to obtain adequate funding or liquidate assets. In managing liquidity risk, our Group monitors cash
flows and maintains an adequate level of cash and cash equivalent to ensure the ability to finance the Group’s
operations and reduce the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or
from external events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with functional departments of
the Group and its subsidiaries. Key functions of the Group is to guide their standard operating procedures, limits
of authority and reporting framework. Our management will assess key operational exposures and effect raised
in business development regularly, implement relevant measures and improve the internal control so that risk can
be responsed and mitigated on a timely and effective manner.

Investment risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of extension of its return period relative to the expected return or
occurrence of losses on any particular investment attributable to changes of external factors. The Group is well
aware of importance of exploring various business opportunities and territories on a continual basis, and also
implement as the top agenda of the year. Key concern of projects investment framework will be balancing risk
and return across different investments, and thus risk assessment is a core aspect of the investment decision
process. Proper investment assessment and due diligence procedures have been set up and detailed analysis
will be made before approving investments. Regular updates on the progress of the investments of our Group
would be submitted to the Board.

Manpower and retention risk

Manpower risk means huge demand for talents because of the Group’s rapid business development while at the
same time facing severe competition over specialists from the industry and turnover of manpower. Our Group
may face the risk of not being able to recruit and retain key personnel and talents with appropriate and required
skills, experience and competence to cope with the expansion of business which would meet the business
objectives of our Group. Our Group will conduct a thorough analysis over its remuneration system, as well as
incentive mechanism and optimize the compensation structure so as to ensure remuneration packages can
align reasonably with market standard and maintain its competitiveness. Meanwhile, recruitment channels are
broadened and the talent pool of senior management are strengthened, so as to further enhance the promotion
opportunities and career path of employees. Systematic staff training are also being further enhanced to increase
the overall effectiveness of training and the dissemination of corporate cultures and values.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

Environmental policies and performance mainly means increasing attention of PRC government paid to
environmental rules and policies and more strict regulatory requirements. As subsidiaries and newly acquired
enterprises commenced into operation for a long while and lag behind certain environmental and duty
requirements promulgated by PRC government. The Group monitors impact on business development closely
raised from movements of environmental policy and external factors. Acting in an environmentally responsible
manner and performing social responsibilities, the Group is committed to improving and maintaining the
long term sustainability of the communities in which it operates. The Group endeavours to comply with laws
and regulations regarding environmental protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of
resources, energy saving and waste reduction. Green initiatives and measures have been adopted in daily
operation of the Group. Such initiatives include recycling of resources, energy saving measures and water saving
practices.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries in mainland China while the
Company is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws
and regulations in mainland China and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date
of this report, to the best of our knowledge, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
in mainland China and Hong Kong, and there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations, which results significant loss and negative impacts by the Group.

Relationship with Employees and Key Stakeholders

The number of employees of the Group was approximately 2,430 (2014: 1,290) as at 31 December 2015. The
remuneration of employees was determined by the Group with reference to their performance, work experience
and current market conditions. Employee benefits include medical insurance, defined provident fund scheme,
discretionary bonus and employee share option scheme. There has been no labour dispute or significant change
in the number of employees that affect the normal operations of the Group. The Directors believe that the Group
maintains admirable relations with its employees.

Our Group understands that it is important to maintain good relationship with business partners, shareholders,
investors and banks to achieve its long-term goals. To keep up with our key stakeholders closely, the Group
has formulated corresponding scheme about investor relationship, and also holds tailored activities from time
to time, such as annual/extraordinary general meetings, on-site visits, seminars and road-shows. Accordingly,
our senior management have kept good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and shared business latest
update about development of the Group with them when appropriate. During the Year, there was no material
dispute between our Group and its business partners or banks.

Project Overview

Dolomite Mine

The Group’s dolomite mine is situated in Baishan City, Jilin Province, the PRC. The mine is operated by open-pit
method, and therefore no additional exploration works are involved or required. Only simple infrastructure works
for open-pit mining are involved in the development activities, and no underground drilling or structural works are
involved. The dolomite mined is raw material for producing magnesium products of the Group. The transportation
cost for raw material is relatively low due to the close proximity of the mine to the production base of the Group.
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As disclosed in the 2010 annual report, the dolomite mine of the Group was reported under the Chinese
resource/reserve categories. As at 31 December 2015, the anticipated resource and reserve volumes were
determined based on the yearly reduction of quantity mined to calculate the remaining resource and reserve
volumes. There is no material change in the assumptions of estimation by the Group as compared with those
previously disclosed. The resource and reserve volumes was reviewed by the Group’s internal geological experts.
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group completed a dolomite output of 380,227 tonnes (2014:
414,722 tonnes). As compared with the state as at 31 December 2014, there was no material change in the
resource estimate and ore reserve of the dolomite mine.

During 2015, the expenditures incurred in development activities were mainly for blasting, electricity and water
supplies to the mine and refair and construction to the infrastructure. Such expenditures have been capitalised
and included in the consolidated statement of financial position for 2015. The expenditures incurred in mining
activities were mainly for direct wages, materials, energy, transportation, depreciation and amortisation, etc.
Such expenditures have been included in cost of sales and charged to the consolidated statement of profit and
loss and other comprehensive income for 2015.

The expenditure incurred in development and mining production activities of dolomite for the year ended 31
December 2015 were approximately HK$11,824,000 and HK$16,189,000 respectively while the expenditure
incurred in exploration was HK$ Nil.

Serpentine Mine

The Group’s serpentine mine is situated in Donghai County, Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The mine is operated
by open-pit method, and therefore no additional exploration works are involved or required. Only simple
infrastructure works for open-pit mining are involved in the development activities, and no underground drilling
or structural works are involved. The serpentine mined is sold directly as metallurgical flux for iron and steel
smelting and is raw material for producing silicon magnesium fertilisers of the Group. The transportation cost for
raw material is relatively low due to the close proximity of the mine to the production base of the Group.

As disclosed in the 2010 annual report, the resource/reserve of the Serpentine Mine was reported under the
JORC system when it was acquired in 2010. As at 31 December 2015, the anticipated resource and reserve
volumes were determined based on the volume at the time of acquisition with the yearly reduction of quantity
mined to calculate the remaining resource and reserve volumes. There is no material change in the assumptions
of estimation by the Group as compared with those previously disclosed. The resource and reserve volumes
was reviewed by the Group’s internal geological experts. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
completed a serpentine output of 574,303 tonnes (2014: 539,823 tonnes). As compared with the state as at 31
December 2014, there was no material change in the resource estimate and ore reserve of the serpentine mine.

The expenditures incurred for 2015 in development activities were mainly for drainage system, greening and
installation of main equipment. Such expenditures have been capitalised and included in the consolidated
statement of financial position for 2015. The expenditures incurred in mining activities were mainly for direct
wages, materials, energy, transportation, depreciation and amortisation, etc. Such expenditures have been
included in cost of sales and charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income for 2015.

The expenditure incurred in development and mining production activities of serpentine for the year ended 31
December 2015 was approximately HK$18,253,000 and HK$33,184,000 respectively while the expenditure
incurred in exploration was HK$ Nil.
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Executive Directors

CHI Wen Fu, aged 53, Chairman of the Group who is responsible for overall strategic planning and key
operating decisions. Mr. Chi started his law firm in Fuzhou in 1995, in which he was the Managing Partner.
Prior to that, Mr. Chi joined Fuzhou Justice Bureau Commerce Law Office after qualifying as a lawyer in the
PRC in 1989. In early 1998, Mr. Chi originated an initial research on organic agricultural production and funded
a R&D project on microbial compound fertilisers. Mr. Chi is a graduate of Chemical Analysis and Law. Mr. Chi
established the Group in 2000.

SHUM Sai Chit, aged 58, Chief Executive Officer of the Group who is responsible for business operations.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Shum was the Managing Director of Go Modern Limited which was principally
engaged in manufacturing of textile products and trading activities. In 1984, Mr. Shum joined Fujian Textiles
Import and Export Corporation as a Manager to oversee importing and exporting of textile products. Mr. Shum is
a graduate of Consumer Product Pricing and Statistics. Mr. Shum has joined the Group since January 2002. Mr.
Shum is currently an executive director of Group Sense (International) Limited (stock code: 601).

CHI Bi Fen, aged 57, Vice-President of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Chi was the Deputy General
Manager of an electronics equipment company over 17 years. She has an extensive experience in accounting,
taxation and finance in the PRC for more than 15 years. She is a graduate of Accounting and Finance. Ms. Chi
has joined the Group since March 2000. Ms. Chi is currently an executive director of Group Sense (International)
Limited (stock code: 601).

YANG Yuchuan, aged 51, Chief Operation Officer of the Group who is graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University in the People’s Republic of China with a bachelor’'s degree in engineering in 1985. In 1993, Mr.
Yang obtained a master’s degree of business administration from MclLaren School of Business, University of
San Francisco in the United States of America. Mr. Yang used to manage and operate former subsidiaries
of the Group, Partners Capital Securities Limited and Sunshine Asset Management (HK) Limited, and is very
experienced in financial industry. Mr. Yang has been a non-executive director of TTG Fintech Limited, a company
listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (stock code: TUP) till March 2015. Mr. Yang has jointed the Group
since July 2013.

Non-Executive Director

GUO Mengyong, aged 57, is a Deputy General Manager of Fujian Changsheng Wireless Technology
Development Company Limited. He is responsible for electronic engineering technical management. Fujian
Changsheng Wireless Technology Development Company Limited is principally engaged in production of
electronic products and communication devices. Mr. Guo joined Fuzhou Capacitors Factory as a Technician
in 1976. From 1993 onwards, Mr. Guo worked at Fuzhou Meters Group Company as an Engineer and later
promoted to the Deputy Factory Manager in 1996, in charging of technical quality control. In 2000, Mr. Guo
joined Fujian Wireless Group Company as Deputy General Manager and was responsible for quality management.
He is a graduate of Industrial Enterprise Management. Mr. Guo has joined the Group since February 2011.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

KWONG Ping Man, aged 51, Director of O’Park Corporate Services Limited which provides corporate advisory
services. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kwong served as the Chief Financial Officer of various companies
for almost 7 years. Mr. Kwong has over 15 years of experience in accounting, finance and administration. He
obtained a Master’s Degree in Professional Accounting from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member
of CPA Australia, fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and associate member
of Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. Mr. Kwong is currently an Independent Non-Executive Director
of Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited (stock code: 1181), Elegance Optical International Holdings Ltd. (stock
code: 907), Group Sense (International) Limited (stock code: 601) and Clear Lift Holdings Limited (stock code:
1341).

SHENG Hong, aged 53, Director of Hadrian Manufacturing (Asia) Limited and Director of Operations and
General Manager of Hadrian (Shanghai) Trading Limited. The Hadrian Group is principally engaged in production
and sales of metal partitions and lockers. Mr. Sheng has over 20 years of experience in management of
corporation and investment. He was employed by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited from 1986 to
1996. Mr. Sheng holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering Mechanics from Tongji University, Shanghai.

Lau Chi Kit, aged 71, an executive director of Chinlink International Holdings Limited (stock code: 997). He
retired from The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (“HSBC”) in December 2000 after more
than 35 years of service. Among the major positions in HSBC, he was the assistant general manager and head
of Personal Banking Hong Kong and assistant general manager and head of Strategic Implementation, Asia-
Pacific Region. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers (“Institute”). He was the chairman of the
Institute’s Executive Committee (from January 1999 to December 2000). He is currently the honorary advisor
of the Institute’s Executive Committee. He served as a member on a number of committees appointed by the
Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, including the Advisory Council on the Environment
(from October 1998 to December 2001), the Advisory Committee on Human Resources Development in the
Financial Services Sector (from June 2000 to May 2001), the Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee of
the Independent Commission Against Corruption (from January 2000 to December 2003), the Environment
and Conservation Fund Committee (from August 2000 to October 20086), the Innovation and Technology
Fund (Environment) Projects Vetting Committee (from January 2000 to December 2004) and the Law Reform
Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee (from February 1990 to March 2006). He also served as chairman of
the Business Environment Council Limited (from September 1998 to December 2001). Currently, he is also an
independent non-executive director of Highlight China IoT International Limited (formerly known as Ford Glory
Group Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1682), Royale Furniture Holdings Limited (stock code: 1198) and Leoch
International Technology Limited (stock code: 842).

Company Secretary

LUK Sai Wai, Simon, aged 52, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Luk is
responsible for financial, management accounting and secretarial affairs of the Group. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Luk was appointed as financial controller for several listed companies in Hong Kong. He has over 20 years
of experience in finance and management. Mr. Luk holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from
Hong Kong Baptist University and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from University of Strathclyde.
He is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of Society of Registered Financial
Planners, Hong Kong. Mr. Luk has joined the Group since May 2010.
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Panel of Senior Consultants

Panel of Senior Consultants (the “Panel”) of the Group has strong technical background and expertise in
magnesium alloy smelting and research and development in new materials. The appointment of the Panel is
to provide the Group with solid technical and resources measure for the development of Magnesium Product
Business. Members’ remunerations of the Panel are based on the nature and scope of consultancy services
provided. There is no fixed remuneration arrangement between the Group and the Panel.

ZHANG Hongjie, aged 62, Scientific Technology Consultant of the Group. He is a Researcher of Changchun
Institute of Applied Chemistry of Chinese Academy of Sciences and a tutor of PhD students. He was honoured
the Outstanding Young Scholar Award of National Outstanding Youth Fund and Hong Kong Qiu Shi Fund. He
was also awarded as the Expert with Outstanding Contributions in Jilin Province. Mr. Zhang has been engaging
in research and development for rare earth alloys and new materials. He is the Deputy Chief Scientist of
National Rare Earth Fundamental Research. He is also Officers of State Key Laboratory for Rare Earth Resource
Utilisation, and Rare Earth Luminescent Professional Committee of Rare Earth Society. He holds a Master’s
Degree in Science from Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry of Chinese Academy of Sciences. He is
undertaking a PhD at National Scientific Research Centre, University of Bordeaux, France.

MENG Jian, aged 59, Rare Earth Magnesium Alloy Consultant of the Group. He has been appointed as the
Professor and the Deputy Officer of State Key Laboratory for Rare Earth Resource Utilisation, Changchun Institute
of Applied Chemistry of Chinese Academy of Science. He is the Deputy Officer of Professional Committee of
Solid Science and New Materials of Chinese Society of Rare Earth. He is also a director of Chinese Society of
Rare Earth and Nonferrous Metals Society of China. Mr. Meng is an expert of the Association of China Rare Earth
Industry and China Magnesium Association. Mr. Meng has been engaging in research and development of rare
earth magnesium alloys and new materials. He has contributed substantially to the development and application
of rare earth magnesium alloys in China. Mr. Meng majored in semiconducting from Jilin University, and holds a
Master’s Degree from the chemistry department of Chinese Academy of Science. He holds a degree of doctor of
Engineering from Toyohashi University of Technology, Japan. Mr. Meng is currently an non-executive director of
Group Sense (International) Limited (stock code: 601).
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Senior Management

YU Cun Tang, aged 45, is responsible for the magnesium product business of the Group. Mr. Yu graduated
from the Shanghai Metallurgical Machinery School ((E/8)8% T#£4) in metallurgical machinery, and has over
20 years of experience in the metallurgy and metal industries. Before joining the Group, Mr. Yu was the Supply
Manager of Dragon Northwest Ferroalloy Co. Ltd. in Gansu, and is currently the Managing Director of Xinjiang
Tengxiang Magnesium Products Company Limited. Mr. Yu has joined the Group since 2015.

HU Jie, aged 46, is responsible for the agricultural fertiliser business of the Group. Mr. Hu studied in
mechatronics, and has over 20 years of experience in the fertiliser and mechatronics industries. He was the
Head of mechatronics factory of Jiangsu Longteng Petrochemical Company Limited of the Group, and the Head
of fertiliser factory of Century Sunshine Jiangsu Co., Ltd. (425 )T &2 7]), as well as the General Manager of
the production technology department, the Head of the main chemical factory and the General Manager of the
purchasing and branding department. Mr. Hu has joined the Group since 2007.

ZHOU Jianhui, aged 43, is responsible for the safety environment management of the Group. Mr. Zhou
majored in agriculture with over 20 years of experience in mining and agricultural fertilisers industries. Prior to
joining the Group, he was the Technician at Donghai serpentine mine in Jiangsu Province, the Deputy Manager
of Jiangsu Le He He Fertiliser Company Limited, and the Head of Fertiliser factory of Jiangsu Longteng
Petrochemical Company Limited. Mr. Zhou has joined the Group since 2007.

WANG Yongxiang, aged 47, Senior Engineer of the Group. Mr. Wang majored in planning and surveying of
mining industry with over 20 years of experience in planning and mining. Prior to joining the Group, he was the
Production Technician and Engineer at Donghai serpentine mine in Jiangsu Province, and the Head of Sulfuric
Acid factory of Jiangsu Longteng Petrochemical Company Limited. Mr. Wang has joined the Group since 2007.

ZHANG Ren Sheng, aged 46, Director of Corporation Management of the Group who is responsible for
corporate management and planning. Mr. Zhang has over 10 years of experience in corporate management and
business planning. He holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from School of Business of Wuhan
University. Mr. Zhang has joined the Group since July 2008.

CHI Jing Chao, aged 33, Chief Corporate Affairs Officer of the Group who is responsible for the overall
corporate activities. Mr. Chi worked in various subsidiaries of the Group and has 10 years of experience in
corporate affairs. Mr. Chi is a graduate of Administrative Management from College of Adult Education, Xiamen
University. Mr. Chi has joined the Group since August 2004.

LEE Man Ching, aged 36, Assistant to Chairman of the Group. Ms. Lee has over 10 years of experience in
human resources and administrative management. Ms. Lee holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Accountancy and a
Master’s Degree in Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a fellow member
of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Company
Secretaries. Ms. Lee has joined the Group since August 2004.
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The Company is committed to achieve and maintain high
standards of corporate governance and business integrity.
The Board believes that good corporate governance will
not only improve management accountability and investors
confidence, but will lay a good foundation for the long-term
development of the Company.

Code on Corporate Governance Practices
Throughout the year of 2015, the Company has complied with
the code provision as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) and Corporate Governance Report
under Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), with
the following deviations:

(@) Under code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (the “CEQ”) should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual.
There was no separation between the roles of chairman
and CEO under the corporate structure of the Group
until the appointment of Mr. Shum Sai Chit as the CEO
of the Group on 18 November 2015.

(b)  Under code provision E.1.2, the chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Chi Wen
Fu, the chairman of the Board was unable to attend
the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2015 as he
was obliged to be away for a business trip. Mr. Yang
Yuchuan, executive Director of the Company, attended
the said annual general meeting to respond to queries
from shareholders.

(c)  Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should
also attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr.
Mengyong (being a non-executive Director) and Mr.
Sheng Hong (being an independent non-executive
Director) were unable to attend the general meetings
held on 23 May 2015 and 28 May 2015 while Mr.
Kwong Ping Man and Mr. Lau Chi Kit (both being
independent non-executive Directors) were unable to
attend the general meeting held on 28 May 2015 as
they were obliged to be away for business trips.
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The Board

The Group is governed by the Board which is responsible for
strategic leadership and overall supervision of the Group. The
Board exercises a number of authorities which include:

- Formulating the Group’s overall strategies

- Monitoring and controlling operational and financial
performance

- Formulating strategies for risk management

- Reviewing effectiveness of internal control system

- Approving financial results and public announcements

- Approving annual operating budgets

- Approving major acquisitions or disposals and capital
projects

- Authorising major investments and material borrowings

- Setting dividend policy

- Approving appointment of Directors

- Setting the Group’s remuneration policies

The Board is also responsible for performing the functions set
out in code provision D.3.1. The Board will meet to develop,
review and monitor the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, to review and monitor training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees and
Directors and to review the compliance of the Company with
the CG Code and the disclosure in the corporate governance
report.

During the year of 2015, in relation to the corporate
governance functions, the Board has reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the regulatory
and statutory requirements, and the disclosure in the
corporate governance report.

During 2015, the Chairman had met the non-executive
Director and the independent non-executive Directors
respectively and individually without the presence of other
executive Directors.
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Board Composition

The Board comprises 8 Directors in which 4 are executive
Directors; 1 is non-executive Director and 3 are independent
non-executive Directors. The number of independent non-
executive Directors constitutes more than one-third of the
Board. The composition of the Board as at the date of this
report and their profiles are set out on page 36 and page 37
of the annual report respectively.

The Board delegates powers to executive Directors for the
day-today management of the Group and the implementation
of major strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board
whereas executive Directors should provide such explanations
and information to the Board in a timely manner to enable the
Board to monitor the performance of management.

Non-executive Director from diverse backgrounds brings
in valuable expertise and experience to the Company and
serves important functions as well as provides strategic
advices to the management.

Independent non-executive Directors ensure that the Board
is accountable for the interest of all shareholders and handles
matters in an objective manner. The 3 independent non-
executive Directors have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the
Board for efficient and effective delivery of its functions. The
Board has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers all of
the independent nonexecutive Directors to be independent.

Mr. Chi Wen Fu and Ms. Chi Bi Fen have a family relationship
of brother and sister. Mr. Guo Mengyong is a brother-in-
law of Mr. Chi Wen Fu. Save as disclosed, there is no other
relationship among members of the Board.

Upon reviewing (i) the directorships and major commitments
of each Director; and (ii) the attendance rate of each Director
at the meetings of the Board and its committees, the Board
is satisfied that all Directors have spent sufficient time in
performing their responsibilities during 2015.
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The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against Directors.

Appointment and Re-election

Any potential new Directors, being individuals who
are suitably qualified and expected to make a positive
contribution to the performance of the Board, will be identified
by the existing Directors and the Nomination Committee and
submitted to the Board for approval.

In accordance with the articles of association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting of the Company,
one-third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation
and every Director shall be subject to retirement at least
once every 3 years. Mr. Shum Sai Chit, Ms. Chi Bi Fen and
Mr. Kwong Ping Man shall retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, but being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Each of the non-executive Director and the independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Guo Mengyong, Mr.
Kwong Ping Man, Mr. Sheng Hong and Mr. Lau Chi Kit, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a fixed term of 2 years commencing from 1 February 2015,
1 January 2015, 24 September 2014 and 29 April 2014
respectively, subject to the provisions of retirement and
rotation of Directors under the articles of association of the
Company and save that either such Director or the Company
may terminate the appointment by giving at least 3 months’
prior written notice. Annual emoluments to independent
non-executive Directors and non-executive Director will be
reviewed according to their estimated time to be spent on
the Company’s matters and their working experience with the
Company.
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All existing executive Directors are entitled to a fixed salary
per annum respectively. In addition, each executive Director
is also entitled to a discretionary management bonus
calculated as a percentage of the audited consolidated net
profit of the Group attributable to the owners of the Company
(after tax and noncontrolling interests and the payment of
such management bonuses but before extraordinary and
exceptional items), which percentage shall be determined
by the Board provided that the aggregate amount of the
bonuses payable to all executive Directors in respect of
each financial year of the Company shall not exceed 5% of
such net profit. The remuneration of each executive Director
is subject to the annual review of the Board with reference
to his/her contribution in terms of time, effort and his/her
expertise.

Details of remuneration paid to each of the Directors and
senior management during the year are disclosed in Note 13
to the financial statements.

All Directors are entitled to be reimbursed for reasonable
expenses incurred during the performance of their duties to
the Company and are eligible for share options under the
share option scheme of the Company.
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Board Meetings

HITES Executive Directors

BXE Chi Wen Fu

it Shum Sai Chit

HE Chi Bi Fen

BE Yang Yuchuan

FHTES Non-Executive Director

PEE Guo Mengyong

BUFHTEE  Independent Non-Executive
Directors

B Kwong Ping Man

Bt Sheng Hong

ARG Lau Chi Kit

AENMENEEEXHRRNESTSHLEZEEY
FARMKXTERES  YHETRISKRERSE
BEH EFEAREFTEERLURERRT
AINEARBRFLRE - HEBRRAE
EREFCLEAHERRBERZEETEA
mBR BREESNEERETEFESRL
FAMEARNETARBZRZ T AR

Board Processes

The Board is accountable to the shareholders and leads
the Group in an ethical, responsible and effective manner.
The Board meets on a regular basis and arranges ad-hoc
meetings for any specific matters that may arise.

The Board met 4 times in 2015. The attendance of individual
Directors at meetings of the Board, its committees and
members’ general meetings is set out in the following table:

R/ 87083
Attended/held

shZEeeE
Remuneration
Committee
Meetings

Nomination
Committee
Meetings

Committee

Meetings Meetings

4/4 - il - 072
4/4 - - 11 1/2
3/4 - - - 072
4/4 - - - 2/2
4/4 - - 0/2
4/4 474 Al il 12
4/4 4/4 n n 0/2
4/4 4/4 - 1 12

Agendas and the accompanying board papers are circulated
in full to all Directors at least 3 days before the Board or
committee meeting. Board decisions will then be resolved
either by vote at Board meetings or by written resolutions. If a
substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with
by a physical Board meeting rather than a written resolution.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and meetings of the Board
committees taken by the company secretary of the Company
and, together with any supporting papers, are available for
inspection to all Directors. The minutes record the matters
discussed by the Board or its committees, the decisions
made and any concerns or dissenting views raised by the
Directors.

If a Director has a conflict of interests in relation to a
transaction or proposal to be considered by the Board, such
Director is required to declare his/her interest and abstain
from voting. Such matter shall be considered at a Board
meeting by Directors who have no material interest in the
transaction or proposal.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous
Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director would receive
an induction package covering the Group’s business and
the statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a
listed company. The Group also regularly updates Directors
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable legal and regulatory requirements regarding
subjects necessary for performing their duties. In addition,
the Company has been encouraging Directors to attend
seminars on the latest development of applicable laws, rules
and regulations so that they can continuously update and
further improve their relevant knowledge and skills.
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BiEhEZRENDE  FFEM2015F181  According to the records provided by the Directors, the

HZE2015F12 A31 A HMES S a0 ©  training received by each of the Directors during the period
from 1 January 2015 up to 31 December 2015 is summarised
as follows:

HESXRE
3 3| 755 A i
Type of
continuous
professional
development

training "

HITESE Executive Directors
X E Chi Wen Fu B
ot Shum Sai Chit A B
VIE=PAY Chi Bi Fen B
15 E) Yang Yuchuan B
FHITES Non-Executive Director
SE B Guo Mengyong B
BIUKEHITESE Independent Non-Executive Directors
B A L Kwong Ping Man A B
B At Sheng Hong A, B
2158 4 Lau Chi Kit B
Mo aE notes:
A HEHEIEIIRE A:  Attending seminar(s) or training session(s)
B: BHERE TIMRABEAQARIEBXESHBENK B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the
S EWBARREMBEREERERTERS Company’s business or directors’ duties and responsibilities,
75 T 6 £ ¥ & R the latest development of the Listing Rules and other applicable

regulatory requirements etc.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing business strategies and management of the
daily operations of the Group to the senior management who
is required to report back to the Board. Functions reserved to
the Board and the management are reviewed periodically. The
Board and each individual Director is empowered to access
any Company’s information from senior management and
the company secretary at all times. The Directors are kept
informed on a timely basis of major changes that may affect
the Group’s businesses, including amendments on relevant
rules and regulations. During the year, Directors are provided
with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and
each Director to discharge their duties. Directors are allowed
to seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company’s expense, but no request was made
by any Director for such independent professional advice in
2015.

The Board monitors and reviews performance of the
management based on several key performance indicators
such as financial figures, investor relations, corporate
governance and internal control. The principal measures
include review of management accounts, review of internal or
external auditor reports and feedbacks from stakeholders.

Board Diversity Policy

During the year, the Board has implemented a board diversity
policy which has been effective since 1 September 2013.
The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural background and ethnicity, in addition to educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 8 Directors.
Among which, one of them is a woman, one of them is
non-executive Director and three of them are independent
non-executive Directors. The Directors are of diverse
educational background and possess a wide spectrum of
professional qualifications and business experience. The
Board is of significant diversity, whether considered in terms
of gender, professional and educational background and
skills.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) as the code
of conduct of the Company regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. The Company made specific enquiries to all
Directors and all Directors have confirmed in writing that they
have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code during the year.

Board’s Committees

To assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board
has established audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
and nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”).
These committees function within clearly defined terms
of reference. Independent non-executive Directors play
a significant role in these committees to ensure that
independent and objective views are taken.

The terms of reference of these committees are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee

All the members of the Audit Committee are independent
non-executive Directors. All committee members possess
appropriate qualifications such as accounting and financial
management. The Audit Committee members are set out in
page 4 of the annual report.

The Audit Committee met 4 times in 2015 to review with
the senior management and external auditors the Group’s
significant internal controls and financial matters as set out in
the Audit Committee’s terms of reference. The functions of
the Audit Committee include the following matters:

- Reviewing the Group’s financial statements with
recommendation to the Board for approval

- Reviewing the Group’s compliance of the regulatory and
statutory requirements

- Reviewing the Group’s internal control and risk
management

- Reviewing significant accounting and audit issues

- Reviewing the Group’s connected transactions

- Overseeing and managing the relationship with external
auditors

The Audit Committee has power to conduct investigations
into any matter within the scope of responsibility of the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is authorised to
obtain independent professional advice if it deems necessary
for discharging its responsibilites. The Audit Committee
has obtained a written confirmation from the auditors on
their independence and objectivity as required under the
Section 290 (revised) of the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants prior to the commencement of the audit
of the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.
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During the year, the Audit Committee has carried out
the above functions in the respective Audit Committee
meetings and also has been satisfied with the review of
the audit scope, process, effectiveness and independence
of the auditors. The Audit Committee has reviewed and
recommended to the Board for approval of the interim
and annual financial statements for 2015. There was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the re-appointment of the auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 4
members, the majority of whom are independent non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee members
are set out in page 4 of the annual report.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to
formulate transparent procedures for setting remuneration
policies and packages for Directors and the senior
management of the Group. Its duties include:

- Reviewing and recommending to the Board the
remuneration packages of individual executive and non-
executive Directors and the senior management of the
Group

- Reviewing the administration of the share option
scheme of the Company

- Reviewing the appropriateness of compensation for
Directors and the senior management of the Group

No Director is involved in determining his/her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee met once in
2015 to review the existing remuneration policies of the
Directors and senior management.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 3 members,
the majority of whom are independent non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee members are out in
page 4 of the annual report.

Its duties include:

- Reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board

- Recommending any proposed change to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategies

- Identifying capable and qualified individuals to become
Board members

— Assessing independence of independent non-executive
Directors

- Recommending appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors

The Nomination Committee met once in 2015 for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendation to the Board regarding change of roles
of board members and re-appointment of retiring Directors
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In carrying out the responsibility for identifying suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to
the board diversity policy.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

The Company had appointed HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as the independent auditors of the Group. Apart
from audit services, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited also
provided non-audit services during the year. For the year
of 2015, the provisions of non-audit services mainly include
professional services for the issuance of circular in relation
to the acquisition of GSIL and other services for professional
review.

The following principles are considered when determining the
appointment of the auditors in non-audit services:

- No management decision made by the auditors
- Independence of the auditors not to be impaired
- Quality of service

- Cost of service

The Board was authorised in the annual general meeting to
determine the remuneration of the independent auditors.

The remuneration paid/payable to the independent auditors
for the year of 2015 are as follows:

BESTMEBRERAT HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

EZRE Audit services 1,408,000
EEZ R Non-audit services 425,000
BE Total 1,833,000

AEEZRBBEESAMEEMERARE
T HEHERASRETZRRBFAELE
WoBRREBEGCRESTERESE  RNAKET
ZBRRBFAE LBREZERF SR EBM
BRABR/ARE 2 ZBED -

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire upon
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Audit Committee
has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the auditors of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Respective Responsibilities of Directors
and Auditors

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparation of the financial statements for each financial
period, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and its subsidiaries and in compliance with
the requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Listing Rules.

The auditors acknowledge their responsibilities in the
auditors’ report as set out on pages 69 and 70 of the annual
report.

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish,
maintain and review the effectiveness of the Group’s system
of internal controls with a view to ensuring that shareholders’
investments and the Group’s assets are safeguarded. This
responsibility is primarily fulfilled on its behalf by the Audit
Committee. In the year under review, the Audit Committee, as
delegated by the Board, has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal control systems of the Group, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions.

The foundation of a strong system of internal control is a
solid control environment. This is dependent on the following
components:

- Business ethics and culture of the organisation
- Quality and competence of its personnel

- Direction provided by the Board, and

- Effectiveness of the management

Risk Management

The Company improves its business and operational activities
by identifying the areas of significant business risks via a
regular review and taking appropriate measures to control
and mitigate these risks. The management of the Company
reviews all significant control policies and procedures and
highlights all significant matters to the Board and Audit
Committee.
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Communication with Shareholders and
Investor Relations

The Company recognises the importance of open
communication and fair disclosure. It is the Company’s policy
to ensure that all shareholders are equally informed of all
major corporate developments.

All shareholders have proper notice of any general meeting
of the Company at which the Directors and the committees’
members are available to give explanation on any query
raised by the shareholders. Major information of the Company
could be obtained from the Company’s website or financial
reports and circulars sent to the shareholders. Any enquiries
by the shareholders requiring the Board’s attention can also
be sent in writing to the Investor Relations Manager of the
Company whose contact details are set out in the paragraph
headed “Shareholders’ rights — (c) Right to put enquiries to
the Board” below.

Resolutions put to the vote at the general meetings of the
Company shall be decided on a poll, save that the chairman
of the meeting may in good faith allow a resolution which
relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted on by a show of hands. Procedures for conducting
a poll will be explained to the shareholders at each general
meeting and questions from shareholders regarding the voting
procedures will be answered. The poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively in the manner prescribed under the Listing Rules.

As part of a regular program of investor relations, senior
executives may hold briefings or road shows after the results
announcement and attend conferences with institutional
investors and analysts to engage in two-way communications
on Company’s performance, objectives and developments.
Company visits can be arranged upon specific request.

55



____——————=

HEBEEEEZERER AT CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

TEERRSE
Corporate Governance Report

% SR A
(a) BRRRIRIRE 2R

56

REARBZEBERAMA - A — (K
A EREFRERBBMFATPRARAH
RERN(MEEMRARTBRRA® L&
R)toz—HERESEERAAAAE
EZEANAWEZHERER  BRES
SHRBRRFINAREG  NEREBHERF
EANERNSEE: BZAGERIELZE
fig2(8 A A ETT

ZEMERMAYHEZAENE®N  BF
KALTEEBERERAQNABESTEH A AW
E MU ATARRREBZBMEREMNE
TEEMB R BB B EB255FEF L
26182605% F MZEXKAHR—AEZH &
PHR—BHA EFRATEBO AR -

ZERKBHARRNEBZENBFER
DERZE  BEMDBEFPERN EERLR
REERFE  ARRNARAWEBRNE
REZEREMAEBEIIREERTR
2 EEMABIRE LT 0 B AR A B IRE
BIRE - R WEBRERER/INERE
FFo @B RALESMI AR BRRER
REKIEHELARH -

WIREEREIRN  EEGREAEHZ
K& AERKALABITARES AR
FZARE MBERATHEEFEREEAFAA
EMEANMAESEMIEHARRRE
KALARRER -

Shareholders’ Rights
(a) Right to Convene Extraordinary

General Meeting

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company,
any one or more members holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the company secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
2 months after the deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposit
it to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company at the Company’s head office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 2605, 26th
Floor, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, and such request may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
the requisitionist(s).

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong and upon the confirmation
of the branch share registrar that the request is in order,
the company secretary of the Company will ask the
Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting by
serving sufficient notice in accordance with all relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements to all registered
members. On the contrary, if the request is verified as
not in order, the requisitionist(s) will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, an extraordinary general
meeting will not be convened as requested.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself/themselves may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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(b) Right to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose
new resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law or the articles of association of the
Company. Shareholders who wish to propose a resolution
may request the Company to convene an extraordinary
general meeting following the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.

As regard the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available on the
website of the Company at www.centurysunshine.com.hk.

(c) Right to Put Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing for the attention of
Investor Relations Manager of the Company whose
contact details are as follows:

Unit 2605, 26th Floor, Harbour Centre
25 Harbour Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2802 2697

Email: ir@centurysunshine.com.hk

The Investor Relations Manager of the Company shall
forward the shareholders’ enquiries and concerns to
the Board and/or relevant committees of the Board to
answer the shareholders’ questions where appropriate.

Company Secretary

Mr. Luk Sai Wai, Simon is an employee of the Company
and has been appointed as the company secretary of the
Company with effect from 1 May 2010. The biographical
details of Mr. Luk are set out in the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management Profile”.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Luk has

taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the financial year ended 31 December 2015.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2015, which are set out on
pages 71 to 196.

Principal Activities and Geographical
Analysis of Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities and other particulars of its principal subsidiaries
are shown under Note 22 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance by operating
segments is set out in Note 8 to the financial statements.
During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the
Group mainly operated in the PRC and the Group’s revenue
are mainly derived from the PRC and non-current assets of
the Group are mainly located in the PRC as at 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014. No analysis of the Group’s
result and assets by geographical area is disclosed.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on pages 71 to 72.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2015 of 1.3 HK cents per
Share (the “Final Dividend”) to shareholders on the register of
members on 1 June 2016.

It is expected that the cheques for cash entitlement will be
sent on 6 June 2016 to the shareholders who are qualified
for the Final Dividend.

Business Review
A business review of the Group is set out on pages 26 to 35
of the annual report.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last 5 financial years is set out on pages 6 to 7 of the
annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 17 to the financial statements.



EEERE
Directors’ Report

REMRE
AEBEZERENFEEDFBHRNYHHRERME
18

LN
AR A 2 BN B B o 1B 0 B 5 Rk BT RE36

B AR 0 R 10 R

(c) ATRARES
HZE2015F12A31H IEFE - WEL(TA]
MR EFH T R EIR - H E2015%F12
AR LM REEZBRES  FBH
B R R M 5E33 ©

(d) BRFTESRWES T 2BRE

HE2015F 12 A31H I FEHWBEIR - 17
FEREXICERE FBEHRY B HRE
s AREETEREZHEREZEHA -

FtHEREERE

MR2015F6H48 + AR A #ITE —FLEEEF N
¥ 7075,000,000 ' BEXR A7T2E 2 EHEEREE
(REBEZBEEERARETE)  ZRBERIFTINE
RSFTET - Wi 20186 A4H EIHH -

R2015F8A3H * AN FI#E—HEITE — M@
%8 37 h13% 7£50,000,000 * B R A7 2B 2 FHig
BE4  FN2018FE6 A48 58 -

KMBRBEOKNE XEEBEFEFEDY
699,314,000 7L - 1T MR EREZ B MZ
EAEBE—REE BRASBEZHEBEEXRE
BE -BRER SKWBEHRE —REEESR
BARMEZENK -

2015 F3#, ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Investment Properties
Details of the movements in investment properties of the
Group are set out in Note 18 to the financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in Note 36 to the financial statements.

Equity Linked Agreements

(a) Convertible bonds
During the year ended 31 December 2015, neither
convertible bonds were issued nor converted. For the
convertible bonds outstanding as at 31 December
2015, details are set out in Note 33 of the financial
statements.

(b) Share options granted to directors
and selected employees
For share options granted, exercised and lapsed during
the year ended 31 December 2015, details are set out
in Note 38 of the financial statements and the section
named “Share Option Scheme” contained in this
Directors’ Report.

Listed Subordinated Notes

On 4 June 2015, the Company issued the first tranche of
7.2% subordinated notes with the face value of SGD75 million
(under the Multicurrency Medium Term Note Programme).
The notes are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange and
will mature on 4 June 2018.

On 3 August 2015, the Company further issued the second
tranche of 7.2% subordinated notes with the face value of
SGD50 million which will also matured on 4 June 2018.

After deducting the issuance costs, the Group received
net consideration of approximately HK$699,314,000. The
reasons for issuing the listed subordinated notes are for
general corporate purposes, including refinancing existing
borrowings, financing investment and,or acquisitions,
general working capital and capital expenditure requirements
of the Group.
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Reserves

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 75 and Note 37(b) to
the financial statements respectively.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
December 2015 amounted to HK$1,481,855,000 (2014:
HK$939,205,000).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year, the Company repurchased 23,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each of the Company at an
aggregate consideration of HK$9,073,650 before expenses at
prices ranging from HK$0.385 to HK$0.420 per share on the
Stock Exchange. The repurchased shares were cancelled on
30 July 2015.

Subsequent to the reporting date and up to the date of
the annual report, the Company repurchased 11,510,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each of the Company at an
aggregate consideration of HK$4,210,950 before expenses at
prices ranging from HK$0.345 to HK$0.395 per share on the
Stock Exchange. The repurchased shares were cancelled on
26 February 2016.

Accordingly, the issued share capital of the Company was
reduced by the nominal value thereof. The premium payable
on repurchase was charged against the share premium
account of the Company. The repurchases were effected by
the Board pursuant to the mandate from shareholders, with a
view to benefit shareholders as a whole in enhancing the net
assets and earnings per share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year and up to the
date of the annual report.
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Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of the
annual report are:

Executive Directors
Chi Wen Fu (Chairman)
Shum Sai Chit

Chi Bi Fen

Yang Yuchuan

Non-Executive Director
Guo Mengyong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Kwong Ping Man

Sheng Hong

Lau Chi Kit

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Shum Sai Chit, Ms. Chi Bi Fen and Mr.
Kwong Ping Man will retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or its parent
company was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

During the year, none of the Directors or the management
shareholders of the Company or their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business
that competed or might compete with the business of the
Group.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to Article 167 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation
thereto, and no Director shall be liable for any loss, damages
or misfortune which may happen to or be incurred by the
Company in the execution of the duties of his office or in
relation thereto.
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A Directors liability insurance is currently in place, and was
in place during the year, to protect the Directors of the
Company against potential costs and liabilities arising from
claims brought against them.

Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 36 to 39 of the annual report.

Share Option Scheme

In order to attract and retain the best quality employees for
the development of the Group’s businesses and to provide
additional incentives or rewards to selected qualifying
participants, the Company adopted a share option scheme
on 3 December 2008 (the “Scheme”). The qualifying
participants mainly include employees of the Group, Directors
and contractors, suppliers or service providers of the Group
who have contribution to the Group. The Scheme, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years since its establishing date. The remaining life of the
Scheme is approximately 3 years (expiry on 3 December
2018).

The subscription price is not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on the date of offer of the option; (i) the
average closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer of the option; and
(i) the nominal value of a Share of HK$0.02. The maximum
number of Shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme shall not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time. Upon
acceptance of the offer for the grant of option, an amount of
HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company.

The Company can issue options so that the total number of
shares that may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme does not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue on the date of approval of the
Scheme. The Company may refresh this 10% limit at any
time, subject to shareholders’ approval and the issue of a
circular and in accordance with the Listing Rules provided
that the number of shares to be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes does not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

As at 31 December 2015, options to subscribe for a total of
153,636,110 Shares were outstanding under the Scheme (the
“Options”). Details of the movements in the options are set
out in note 38 to the financial statements.
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BEERFETHRAERAATR{E{A Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interest
HEEZERG - HEARORES 2E in the Shares, Underlying Shares and

Debentures of the Company and Any
Associated Corporation
R2015F12A31H AR AIEEEHEE/TH  As at 31 December 2015, the relevant interests and short
AERARRAT S AEMEEEEZE (FERL#ES K positions of the Directors or chief executive of the Company
HEE0) (TEHMEEED]) EBEXVEL) 2%~ in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
HEARNKESRBERHERARNARBIEZSN  Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
B E D EEXVERE35216F E 2 B2 W24 meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance

BEEAEEIT (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO were as
follows:

(i) EERARQATZES (i) Directors’ Interests in the Company

BROREBRERE Long Positions in Shares and Share
Options

HARR
20155

12A31A

ERfTRE

ZBAY

Percentage

KERGYE of issued share

Number of Shares held capital of the
ESH? BAES REER INGL ; Number of Company as at
Personal Spouse Corporate Options held 31 December

Name of Director interests interests interests (note 3) 2015
WX E (hEE]) 182,240,548 - 1,341,871,364 1524111912 33.06%
Chi Wen Fu 45 25,556,580 0
i G (FEE1) (note 1) 0.55%
Tt 14,666,305 - - 14,666,305 0.32%
Shum Sai Chit 11,500,461 0.25%
HER 12,352,499 - - 12,352,499 0.27%
Chi Bi Fen 19,167,435 0.42%
BEN(BEE]) - 36,929,435 309,914,999 346,844,434 7.50%
Yang Yuchuan (K22) (note ) 19,167,435 0.42%
(*Mr. Yang")

DEE 2,625,000 - - 2,625,000 0.06%
Guo Mengyong 3,833,487 0.08%
Kwong Ping Man 6,389,145 0.14%
s 1,775,000 - - - 0.04%
Sheng Hong 3,611,316 0.08%
Blgn - - - - -
Lau Chi Kit 6,389,145 0.14%
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(2) Long position in debentures

E=ng B EatE FEHSE
Name of director Capacity/Nature of interest Amount of debentures held
3 03 T
SGD
ML (EPN 2,500,000
Mr. Chi Personal interest
BT fE A= 2,500,000
Mr. Yang Personal interest
B & notes:
1. ZERMBABERBEERARA ([BE]) 1. These Shares are held by Alpha Sino International

FE ZERMEEFRATELRITRA
83.74% B TN BEERR RE £17T
FERERIITE=D 2 —KA L2 IRERE -
IR B A RIRERS o

Z R A A2014F7A10B 2R B KT S
B EARAARIEERFEHTE - BAAA
549,280,0008% f& f7 (10 & 2015412 731
AARRDBITRAN12%) KIFLEE S
AR ((ERemAR])  EARER S
MARMALTAZEBEEEBRA AR
20145 A30H # & (R20155F 12 A7TH &K 1E
ERES])MERGBEZ KRR -

2. #ZZ 1 HBest Equity Holdings Limited
(Best Equity]) # 75 o 415 % 4 # B Best
EquityB B TRIR A47.17% @ B LB F B R
Best Equitylx R A& 1T IZHITTE=5
2R EZIRERE - FWAR AR B

3. FEZEBEREZFBHEINN EXEERER

B8

Br E AT T AN - R2015F12A8318 -
ARBIBEEHUETBITRABREFESESHE
3 YN o 3NN A S R 2
EE (EERESH M EERHIEXVER) 2 5%
7D RN IESFEA TR AR A
BIEEH R E KO E352(6F E 2 &8
MARZHEEERRER -

Limited (“Alpha Sino”) and are deemed corporate
interests by virtue of Mr. Chi’s holding of 83.74% of the
issued share capital of Alpha Sino which entitled him to
exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of
the voting power at general meeting of Alpha Sino.

As pursuant to a share mortgage agreement dated 10
July 2014, Alpha Sino, being the substantial shareholder
of the Company, had mortgaged 549,280,000 Shares
(representing approximately 12% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2015) to
International Finance Corporation (“IFC”) as security for
a loan agreement dated 30 May 2014 (as amended and
restated on 7 December 2015) entered into between IFC
and Baishan City Tianan Magnesium Resources Co. Ltd.

2. These Shares are held by Best Equity Holdings Limited
(“Best Equity”) and are deemed corporate interests by
virtue of Mr. Yang’s holding of 47.17% of the issued
share capital of Best Equity which entitled him to
exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of
the voting power at general meeting of Best Equity.

3. Details of Options held are set out in the above section
headed “Share Options Scheme”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015,
none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company
or their respective associates had interests and short
positions in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded
in the register to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of SFO.
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Interests and Short Positions of
Substantial Shareholders in the Shares
and Underlying Shares of the Company

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of
the Company, as at 31 December 2015, persons who had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares
of equity derivatives of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

EARAE 20155

12831 AR TRA

TERES 2 2R

BRROHE : Percentage

o o BERRMER FRRREHA Number of Of(::;ﬁ:f :fha::

RR#EE/ 48 RRkE Number of Number of conversion share Company as at

Name of shareholder Nature Shares held Options held of Convertible Bonds 31 December 2015

BXE 3} 1,524,111,912 33.06%
Chi Wen Fu Long position (H5E1) (note 1)

5B 25,556,580 0.55%

Long position

(H15E2) (note 2)

e kB 1,341,871,364 29.11%
Alpha Sino Long position (F36) (note 6)
BE -} 346,844,434 7.52%
Yang Yuchuan Long position (BF3E4) (note 4)

=) 19,167,435 0.42%

Long position

(B 5E2) (note 2)

FE ) 309,914,999 6.72%
Zou Li Long position (H5E3) (note 3)
Best Equity =) 309,914,999 6.72%

Long position

YN RE 793,526,275 17.22%
International Finance Long position (FF3E6) (note 6)
Corporation

Greenhouse Century Limited R
Long position

185,570,836 4.03%
(B 3E5) (note 5)
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X ERERARR A £1,524,111,9120 B 15
AR - EP(Q)182,240,5480 X VR B &%
AR WHHBEZRL: K&(b)1,341,871,3640% %
DHEREFETED HITRASS74%, B E 7
HEHNRBERRARS EITEXREHTE=S
2RI ERMEE A DR EE

% HR A HA2014F7 A10B 2D EBARE - 1EA
AAREEZRROBE - 154K A F1549,280,0008%
B 15 (FEE H2015F12 31 B AR A B BT AL
12%) WAL EBE AR ((ERERAR]) - F
AHRBEBESBARANALTAZSBEREER
A A R20145F5H30H % F (R20155F12 A7H &
BERE)HERBZ 2ERR -

FiA 2 B 2 FHIRE SN B3 [ R RT &) ) —8f -

ZERD T ER H ¥ ABest EquityD BT A
52.83% * #E UL R T H # 71 Al A Best Equity& 3 K
EEITEREHTE= S AL EREM
WAE AR -

5 E)N S ERAKRF A 1£346,844,434R IR 17
AL 8 F(a) 36,929,435 %1 i HE
LG tTERRER THUHEEEERL R
(0)309,914,9998% i% 17 5 E 1A H 35 GBest EquityE
BATIRANAT 7%, 48 LA T H 4 71 7] FBest Equity
BREXE LTEREHTE=p 2 U L2
MR A A AR -

Greenhouse Century Limited /& Bl Yt K& &= & 12
TRAEBRAR([HAREEER)NE2ENBAR -
HAREEEBRPBEAKRZERER A ([F AT
f&) - BRI - 165) MR EWB AR °

HEEE 4 E A AR A $£793,526,2750% % (7 & 7 A #
5 EH(a) 244,246,275 TR EESES -
WIAEZFEZRL  Rb)IEZE B A2014F7 5108
ZRHEEER  FARAREERENTE -
7N A A]549,280,0000% i 15 (48 & 72015612 A31
BARQRDEBITRAL12%) IKFLEESAR
ERBERSRARNMALTAZsBERES
IR A ER2014F5A308 % & (R201512A7H
KEEREY) MER M ZE 2 EMG -

notes:

Mr. Chi Wen Fu has interest in an aggregate of 1,524,111,912
Shares of which (a) 182,240,548 Shares are beneficially owned
by him and registered in his name; and (b) 1,341,871,364
Shares are deemed corporate interests by virtue of his holding
of 83.74% of the issued share capital of Alpha Sino which
entitled him to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or
more of the voting power at general meeting of Alpha Sino.

As pursuant to a share mortgage agreement dated 10 July
2014, Alpha Sino, being the substantial shareholder of the
Company, had mortgaged 549,280,000 Shares (representing
approximately 12% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 December 2015) to International Finance Corporation
(“IFC”) as security for a loan agreement dated 30 May 2014
(as amended and restated on 7 December 2015) entered into
between IFC and Baishan City Tianan Magnesium Resources
Co. Ltd.

Details of Options held are set out in the above section headed
“Share Option Scheme”.

These Shares are deemed corporate interests by virtue of her
holding of 52.83% of the issued share capital of Best Equity
which entitled her to exercise or control the exercise of one-
third or more of the voting power at general meeting of Best
Equity.

Mr. Yang Yuchuan has interest in an aggregate of 346,844,434
Shares of which (a) 36,929,435 Shares are beneficially owned
by his spouse, Ms. Lao Min, and registered in her name; and
(b) 309,914,999 Shares are deemed corporate interests by
virtue of his holding of 47.17% of the issued share capital
of Best Equity which entitled him to exercise or control the
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general
meeting of Best Equity.

Greenhouse Century Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary
of China Everbrights Assets Management Holdings Limited
(“CEAMHL”). CEAMHL is a wholly owned subsidiary of China
Everbright Limited (“CEL”, stock code: 165).

IFC has interest in an aggregate of 793,526,275 Shares of
which (a) 244,246,275 Shares are beneficially owned by
it and registered in its name; and (b) pursuant to a share
mortgage agreement dated 10 July 2014, Alpha Sino, being
the substantial shareholder of the Company, had mortgaged
549,280,000 Shares (representing approximately 12% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2015)
to IFC as security for a loan agreement dated 30 May 2014
(as amended and restated on 7 December 2015) entered into
between IFC and Baishan City Tianan Magnesium Resources
Co. Ltd.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

During the period under review, none of the Directors nor the
management shareholders of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”)) had any interest in a business that competed
or might compete with the business of the Group.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentage of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are
as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 12.2%
- 5 largest suppliers in aggregate 49.5%
Sales
— the largest customer 1.8%
— 5 largest customers in aggregate 7.5%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

Connected Transaction

Other than those disclosed in Note 40 to the financial
statements, there was no connected transaction during the
year and in last year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2015.
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B ELEm Auditors

HZ2015F12A31B L FEMBRBELHEAEE The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2015 were

SHEESTARAREZ  ETHMNAEETT  audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term

ZBRERAFXG EER - AR BRENEERIT  of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general

ZRERBAFAEG HIRE—HARZEBNXZIE  meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson

e ESER AR AARRZIZEAM - Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

AEEGDm On behalf of the Board
PR Shum Sai Chit

HITEE Executive Director

BB 20165F3A23H Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report

HLB

BB AKREERERATRR
(REEHEEMEA A FRLA])

TAZEED (AT (B M) EFE RV E R ET
F16EHERGREEERERAR([EAH])
MEWBAR (GEIEEE]) NEEE®RE -
I B 7 R R B R2015F12 A31B NG A BT
MREREHEZALFENGABEREMSE
AlEER GAESEHRIGARERER
AR FZGT AN E R E MR -

EENGEOMBBERARENER

BERREZRAERBEBESMAGHEMNE
BMBREENREB(RABRMNNTERE
RENEBEEMATHINBZEHEEMERE
UREFEFRAVAZBBABES - AL
AR B B R T3 12 B 0 BRRF Bl EE AR T 8 By
BERH#ERRA -

BB MO EE

BN ETEREBERMANEZEXESREMB
BRREER EREBERRHRS  Kirzi
AHERNEEBEN KA TERARENR
B EFEAM AL E ESOREEMEE - M
ERERZESHMAGRMNBT BRI LA
TEZ BEEEREMETEEAS X
REINMITERZ  NEEBEHFHEEVBR
EREFBEAERERRAL -

Bl # &6 %% mA4 % 4a

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

BB 31/F., Gloucester Tower
IR The Landmark
ETH1195R 11 Pedder Street

B E S Central
E£EIITKES1#E  Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 71 to 196, which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2015,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2015 and of its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Sze Wai, Basilia
Practising Certificate Number: P05806

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HZE2015F12A318ILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
FTET T T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
WA Revenue 7 2,515,602 2,072,519
85 65 B AR Cost of sales (1,729,567) (1,412,575)
EH Gross profit 786,035 659,944
R N E Other income and gains 9 42,799 15,055
HERMSHEE MR Selling and marketing costs (113,406) (103,116)
T X Administrative expenses (139,598) (63,302)
BEEEREMEEIE  Realised and unrealised gain on
KRB 5 investments held for trading 6,875 3,291
iR AN b Share of profits and losses of
K51 joint ventures 1,760 -
R—E&a&ERRIZ Impairment of investment in a
WERE joint venture (180) -
FEAG B & R Rl m Share of profits and losses of
NMER associates (4) -
M ER Finance costs 10 (87,390) (44,186)
R BT 15 10 B g A Profit before income tax 496,891 467,686
FriE i Income tax expense 11 (155,006) (128,045)
FREF Profit for the year 12 341,885 339,641
Hih2EBX > HIR Other comprehensive
Bt expenses, net of income
tax
HEneEHnEE ltems that may be reclassified
BmIEE subsequently to profit or loss:
FREHIHEEERE Net loss arising on revaluation
EEZEERFE of available-for-sale
investment during the year (22,012) (112,062)
BMEFINERTEL Y Exchange differences arising
b i Z & from translation of foreign
operations (141,958) (54,770)
FEREM2ERX ' 1k Other comprehensive
i expenses for the year,
net of income tax (163,970) (166,832)
FRAZEWANHALE Total comprehensive
income for the year 177,915 172,809
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HZE2015F12A318ILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014

TER TExT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000

THALEEFEREZF : Profit for the year
attributable to:

PIN/NETE ¥ SN Owners of the Company 303,489 287,910
FEFE AR T = Non-controlling interests 38,396 51,731
341,885 339,641

THALELEEAREE  Total comprehensive

PN L income for the year
attributable to:
RRABER A Owners of the Company 162,596 153,187
eI = Non-controlling interests 15,319 19,622
177,915 172,809
(&&EY)
(restated)
BREF : Earnings per share:

—ER - basic 15(a) 7-19 {licents 8.01 fllicents
—#E - diluted 15(b) 7.07 {licents 7.79 flicents

BER M st B A4 A B ISR 8 — 381 o The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

®2015F12A31H
As at 31 December 2015

2015

TER
HK$’000

2014
TExT
HK$’ 000

ERBEE Non-current assets

T b fsh AR Land use rights 16 172,739 140,986
¥ - BWERE&E Property, plant and equipment 17 1,863,009 1,442,559
wEME Investment properties 18 125,436 134,612
EES Gooduwill 19 197,144 -
mEEE Intangible assets 20 1,674 80
R Mining rights 21 512,075 549,498
S E EFHIA Payment for acquisition of patents 53,703 56,237
BEWE BEXK Deposits for acquisition of property,

RENES plant and equipment 10,688 35,089
REEBERAIZIRE Investments in joint ventures 23 4,290 -
R—REEERFZ2IKE Investment in an associate 24 18 -
AHEERSE Available-for-sale investments 25 116,418 -

3,057,194 2,359,061
REBEE Current assets
AHHERE Available-for-sale investments 25 10,842 30,391
5 Inventories 26 248,241 181,400
- A Land use rights 16 4,420 3,400
B 5 Kk HE bR FRIE - Trade and other receivables,

FENRERES prepayments and deposits 27 607,036 383,779
AR EIFT IS Income tax recoverable 1,826 -
BIEEEHRE Investments held for trading 28 38,726 9,900
MTETmEE Derivative financial assets 29 7 243
JEU—E & &R FIA Amount due from a joint venture 23 885 -
RITFER Deposits with banks 30 263,260 86,351
RehERBESIEE Cash and cash equivalents 30 1,189,255 742,431

2,364,498 1,437,895
BREBARE Less: Current liabilities

g 5 N H b e 5RIE Trade and other payables 31 356,592 311,465
FERTFTIS R Income tax payable 31,670 33,186
BE Borrowings 32 152,810 303,696
A 2 {5 (E 5 Convertible bonds 33 198,335 117,193
739,407 765,540
REBEEFE Net current assets 1,625,091 672,355

EEHABERRBAE Total assets less current
liabilities 4,682,285 3,031,416
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As at 31 December 2015

2015 2014
FET FABT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
W RBEE Less: Non-current liabilities
AR E S Convertible bonds 33 - 177,687
PEFE WA Deferred revenue 34 69,552 70,333
=P Borrowings 32 1,153,062 291,718
FREFIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 35 116,333 125,037
1,338,947 664,775
EEFE Net assets 3,343,338 2,366,641
AABEE AEMLRAE Capital and reserves
B fEE attributable to owners of the
Company
fi& A Share capital 36 101,986 67,910
s Reserves 2,845,320 2,142,863
2,947,306 2.210,773
FERER Non-controlling interests 396,032 155,868
XA Total equity 3,343,338 2,366,641

EE2N2016F3 A28 H/E R KBTI N  The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 196
BIE196E 2R aMBHE - WH FIIEFER  were approved and authorised for issue by the board of

®EE: directors on 23 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:
X E PR
Chi Wen Fu Shum Sai Chit
EF -
Director Director
BEMT M AE B AR A M AR — &R 1D - The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Share
capital

ThR
HKS'000

Rt ag

Share
premium

TR
HKS'000

E45A
2%
(K&t
Capital
redemption
reserve
(note (i))
Thn
HKS?000

Revaluation
reserve

T
HKS'000

Btk
(K&

Capital
reserve
[note (ii))

Tin
HKS'000

RRARRAEE

HERR
(W)

Statutory
reserve
[note (iii)

TR
HKS'000

EhE
(1]

Share
option
reserve
Thn
HK$' 000

AhEE
(1]

Translation
reserve

Tin
HKS'000

TRRES
REdR
Convertible
bonds
equity
reserve
Thn
HKS?000

Other
reserve

T
HKS'000

Retained
earnings

TEL
HKS'000

Sub-total
Tin
HKS'000

2R
B

Non-
controlling
interests

TER
HKS'000

Asat 1 January 2014 61810 739222 3499 106818 18,666 67812 613 148697 - 53278 788541 1980489 163473 2150962
Proft for the year - - - - - - - - - - W0 287910 5178 330641
Other comprehensive expenses for
the year, (net of income tax)
Net loss arising on revaluation of
avalable-for-sale investment
during the year - - ER )] - - - - - - - B (8015 (112082
Exchange differences arising from
ranslation of foreign operations - - - - - - - 50,676) - - - 50,676) (4004 (B4770)
Total comprefensive income for
the year - - - (84,047) - - - (50,676) - - 27910 163,187 19622 172,809
RE LAk Alotment of ordinary shares 3100 113,206 - - - - - - - - - 116308 - 116308
BfRERE Finalcvidend peid 127 (129 - - - - - - - - -y ]
BRiBkE Share opton lapsed - - - - - - (50) - - - 50 - - -
BA%HE Transter to reserve - - - - - N . ) . - pe) . . .
BELEEEEES  Changesin ownership inforest
259 In subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (102,309 - (102308 Qraan (129532
BERATZ Issue of ordinary shares upon
exercise of share options 1721 4774 - - - - (2.516) - - - - 46,952 - 46,952
ERERRGR  Eult setled shere-based
2 ransactions - - - - - - 2,082 - - - - 2,082 - 2,082
ETERES Issue of convrtbl bonds - - - - - - - - 16 - - 16 - 15
HA014E12RA31AR  Asat 31 December 2014 and
N5E1R1A 1 January 2015 67910 887,189 3499 nm 13666 106999 5,62 9,021 6779 (49027) 1007314 2210778 165,868 2,366,641
Emid| Proft for the year - - - - - - - - - - 303,480 303489 38,396 341,885
ENEBRERY Other comprehensive expenses for
(MBHER) the year, (net of income tax) - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
EREETELERE  Netloss arsing on revaluaton of
Er7EERE avalble-for-sale investment
nvestment during the year - - - (17,124) - - - - - - - (in124) (4888 (22,012
SHFELZ  Bxchange diferences arsing from
EiEE ranglation of foreign operations - - - - - - - [123,769) - - - [123,769) (18,189 (141,958)
ERZENALE Total comprehensive income for
the year - - - (17,124) - - - [123,769) - - 303489 162,596 15319 177,915
REAREERS Issue o ordinary shares under
LAk open offer 20,062 545,015 - - - - - - - - - 514017 - 5140m
BEARETRS Issue of ordinary shares under
Lak honus issue 4,359 4,409) - - - - - - - - - (50) - (50)
WENELT Acquiston of subsicries - - - - - - - - - - - - 9653 96,536
} Final dividend paid - (24,797) - - - - - - - - = (2100 - [21797)
Redemption of convertible bonds - - - - - - - - (4,336) - 4,336 - - -
Share option Lapsed - - - - - - (2,128) - - - 2,128 - - -
Transfer to reserve - - - - - 46142 - - - - 46,142 - - -
Issue of ordinary shares upon
exercise of share options 1,115 23471 - - - - (1,199) - - - - 23381 - 2%
Equity setfled share-based
transactions - - - - - - 2,528 - - - - 2,528 - 2,528
Open offer of a subsidiary
- - - - - - - - - (931) - (931) 136,889 135,958
Changes in ownership interest
In subsiclaries - - - - - - - - - 5,197 - 5,197 (8,580)  (2,783)
Share cancelation (460)  (8,614) 460 - - - - - - - (460) (9,074 - (9,074)
R015512831 R As at 31 December 2015 101,986 1,420,855 3,059 5647 13,666 153,141 4,853  (25748) 12,443  (44,161) 1,300,665 2,947,306 396,032 3,343,338
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Bt o -

(i)

(i)

(i)

B O R EEA R AN S D &G AR
ARREBBNBERZAQFA RN 2EE -

BARBEREEEEHCREBRER L ZHE
RAROEE BREIBBEBEROMEITZA
REBMHOEE MERZER -

FERBIZRMBARREEARLME (T4
B EEMBRRMAINANNI0NERETZE
SEEDRENESD -

RFBH R Z M E LR ZERER2AA) & EEE
ZHBOERFOER - ZEME A RARHK10% 20
B P8 Mi& i A (R Bl B DA TE BT S R R iR 8
E)EREERE BIEZAESERDENBR
BIFEMEARL0% - ZATEEE R AN L #HMME QA
BAEFEZER BRHBE QR EEERRIE
IO E A R Z K -

REFRRRZE2LAEEEEEERREMER
EERBROANE TR AREFIZBRELD
RAEEAREIORELIHREES -ZEED
AHARGEER NELRLTEEE TEA
BRI

BE BT P FE /B A AR A B TS RR Y — B0 D ©

76

notes:

(i

(ii)

Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value
of the Shares of the Company which was transferred from
the Company’s retained earnings upon repurchase and
cancellation of Shares by the Company.

Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the subsidiaries that have been acquired
and capitalised pursuant to a group reorganisation over the
nominal value of the Company’s Shares issued in exchange
therefore.

Statutory reserve mainly represents the fund set aside by the
subsidiaries based on 10% of their net profit of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) statutory financial statements
and that for the purpose of certain safety production activities.

In accordance with the articles of association of the
subsidiaries established in the PRC and the relevant PRC rules
and regulations, these subsidiaries are required to set aside
10% of their profit after income tax as recorded in the PRC
statutory financial statements as statutory reserve, except
where the reserve fund balance has reached 50% of the
subsidiaries’ registered capital. The reserve fund can only be
used to make good the subsidiaries’ previous years’ losses, to
expand the subsidiaries’ production operations or to increase
the capital of the subsidiaries.

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the State
Administration of Work Safety of the PRC and other relevant
regulatory bodies, the Group is required to set aside funds
mainly for mining of dolomite and serpentine at prescribed
rates. These funds can be used for maintenance and/or
improvements of safety of these activities, and is not available
for distribution to shareholders.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HZE2015F12A31HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
FERT T
Note HK$’000 HK$’ 000
geEH Operating activities
R FAT 15758 A1t A Profit before income tax 496,891 467,686
BTHEE fELAE Adjustments for:
HEREH Depreciation and amortisation 96,397 77,985
BI58 A Finance costs 87,390 44,186
HE % ;E EEES kS Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property,
w)/EBRIE plant and equipment (290) 76
¥ 1’F“§§&§E’]E PR K Realised and unrealised gain
""""" Bz on investments held for trading (6,875) (3,291)
ﬂx/%\ﬂﬂz)\ Dividend income (200) (292)
FIEWMA Interest income (12,094) (8,544)
BREEERONRZRS Equity settled share-based payments 2,528 2,082
TESREEATESE Fair value change on derivative
financial assets 236 61
[EEBE A REE Share of losses of an associate 4 -
BOEKE 57 EAMES Reversal of written off of trade receivables (229) -
FERE Impairment of inventories 2,374 -
Y E S AR E Impairment of trade receivables 206 -
BREERE Impairment of intangible assets 599 -
HE—FEME QR M Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (179) -
R EEKERR Provisional gain on bargain purchase 42(b) (7,182) -
EEAEDEER Share of profits of joint ventures (1,760) -
R—HEEARRERNA Impairment of an investment in a joint venture 180 -
EEESEHRIMLE Operating cash flows before movements in working
BeRE capital 657,996 579,949
HERIEEERENMENE Proceeds from disposal of investments held for
trading 45,075 651
fEU— A& AR FELE Increase in amount due from a joint venture (855) -
BERBEEERE Purchase of investments held for trading (67,585) (79)
FEEM Increase in inventories (31,948) (91,302)
o RHEMmEKTR Increase in trade and other receivables, prepayments
B 208 R % and deposits (205,616) (88,146)
ZHREMEMFTBCRD) /#i  (Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (96,166) 39,289
REXBMEANES Cash generated from operations 300,901 440,362
ERAER Income tax paid (158,677) (117,452)
RETHHREENRSFE Net cash generated from operating
activities 142,224 322,910
REEH Investing activities
ROBRER Increase in deposits with banks (176,910) (45,359)
BEME WERE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (217,301) (584,609)
BEWE BELRRENES Deposits for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment (10,688) (35,386)
BHLE—HNBARMNESR Net cash inflow in respect of the disposal of a 43
/M\ FE subsidiary 4 -
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2015

FTRER
HK$’000

2014
TET
HK$’ 000

RGNS Interest received 7,733 7,691
BB Dividend received 200 292
HENX - BFERREN Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
B RIE equipment 376 249
FREBCAE Additions to development costs (361) -
WENBARZRERTFE Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidaries (200,786) -
SNEETHEERERE Payments to acquire available-for-sale investments (111,582) -
m—HA 1% ﬁ% ARk BMEBAFZA  Advance of loans to a company subsequently
ALFER acquired as subsidiary (45,116) -
RETBFANRELFE Net cash used in investing activities (754,431) (657,122)
BMEEH Financing activities
NEERNMERE Proceeds from new borrowings 182,287 745,414
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (318,321) (444,941)
ERFILE Interest paid (57,886) (27,602)
ERRERS Final dividend paid (21,797) (11,719)
TEERERET2EER Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of share
options 23,387 46,952
BBk ES Issue of convertible bonds - 295,000
RIEBAR  EnEBRESH 2 Net cash outflow in respect of changes in
BemEFE ownership interest of subsidiaries (64,840) (64,767)
EE U A AN Increase in deferred revenue 2,486 46,387
fig g @k Allotment of ordinary share - 116,308
® Q MEAR TZ % IR EA  Proceeds from loan from a non-controlling
BERMEHRE shareholder of a subsidiary 82,000 -
ER—EEEA T BIEERE Decrease in an amount due to a non-controlling
HIER D shareholder of a subsidiary (2,002) -
BT EMEBEBRNMEHR Proceeds from issue of listed subordinated note 699,314 -
?Z NERTARESKE Payment for redemption of convertible bonds (123,625) -
BELNREEETEBRMATEZ  Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares under
| open offer 574,077 -
REDHAZERT - HMEAFA  Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares of a
EBBRMFEHE subsidiary under open offer 135,958 -
RBARBETETERROMKA Issue cost of ordinary shares under bonus issue (50) -
SRR G ZTE Payment for share repurchases (9,074) -
METEMEENRSTFE Net cash generated from
financing activities 1,101,914 701,032
ReRERALER Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
BmER 489,707 366,820
FINHERERKALER Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year 742,431 381,909
PEEXSHNY Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (42,883) (6,298)
EXWEERERESER Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the year 1,189,255 742,431

BE BT P FE B8 AR 4R & B TS ¥R R B9 — BB 4D

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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General Information

Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in fertiliser
business, magnesium product business, metallurgical
flux business and electronic product business.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 21 January 2003 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. On 17 February 2004, the Company’s shares
were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and were withdrawn from the GEM Board
on 31 July 2008. Since 1 August 2008, the Company’s
shares have been listing on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. In the opinion of the directors, the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Alpha Sino
International Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as
the functional currency of the Company. All values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$’000) except
when otherwise indicated.

Application of new and revised
HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied a number
of amendments to HKFRSs issued by Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) that are mandatorily effective for an
accounting period that begins on or after 1 January
2015.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefits Plans:
Employee Contributions

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of the above revised standards and

interpretation has had no significant financial effect on
these financial statements.
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The nature and the impact of each amendment is
described below:

Amendments to HKAS 19

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

The amendments to HKAS 19 apply to contributions
from employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans. The amendments simplify the accounting for
contributions that are independent of the number of
years of employee service, for example, employee
contributions that are calculated according to a fixed
percentage of salary. If the amount of the contributions
is independent of the number of years of service, an
entity is permitted to recognise such contributions as
a reduction of service cost in the period in which the
related service is rendered. The amendments have had
no impact on the Group as the Group does not have
defined benefit plans.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013
Cycle

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRSs
included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-
2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle for the first time in the
current year. One of the annual improvements requires
entities to disclose judgements made by management
in applying the aggregation criteria set out in paragraph
12 of HKFRS 8 Operation Segments. The Group has
aggregated several operating segments into a single
operating segment and made the required disclosures
in Note 4 in accordance with the amendments. The
application of the other amendments has had no
impact on the disclosures or amounts recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Save as described above, the application of the above
new and revised HKFRSs had no material effect on how
the results and financial position for the current or prior
accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been
required.
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BEAN - A E)E R RS HA R B AN B 2R P
B 2B RFTES LA EmAALD
BEIA - T EBRIEERE R GEA (55622
B)BRBEVBHER BHEEYYBHRE2E
EHEBYHVERRPFETERZERK

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) issued by the
Stock Exchange relating to the disclosure of financial
information with reference to the Hong Kong Companies

BEEE -

AREEILERZEREATI D BMERER

ZHE MBI R - BRI AR -

EANBREENFR
EEBEREENE0%
REAGHERF85
(20115) (53T K)
BRMBEREENEI0F -
BRUEREEANE 2R
REAGHERF285
(2011%) (53T 4)
EANBREENENR
(BEIR)
BEBMBREENE 4R
BAMBREENE 5%

BREENER (BFTA)

BRI EAEI6R R
BAEERIESSH
CHES!

EAQHRENZEI6RR
BREHENEMR

MBI
REZHABENAR
RERRIZAMEE
e T A
REER RAGAAE
BBIMER

WBRAEEH R
EE

ERETRP

REZFPAHZIIA?

BERR

BRAERBHE RS
Viki:3

REEEREY

Ordinance (Cap.622) during the reporting period.
The main impact to the financial statements is on the
presentation and disclosure of certain information in the

financial statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10,
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception'

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interest in Joint Operations'
Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
Disclosure Initiative'
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation'

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

CHES)
ARG ENETR BUMBaR ERE Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
(2011%) (BFTX) (2011) Statements'
A BREEL LEEAYBREEN Annual Improvements to ~ Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'
2012F 220145 EH 2 BT HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
RN
! M2016F1 A1k 2 & Fs 2 FE B A£ 1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
VY January 2016
2 M2018F1 A1k 2 & FMts 2 FE B 4& 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
3 January 2018
g HR2016F 1A ZBRBZFETH 3 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its

BREARMNBEMBEREEANZERE
Mo BN EAR A EE
L I B TE 98 B AR A H - MR R R R ¢

annual financial statements beginning on or after 1
January 2016 therefore is not applicable to the Group
No mandatory effective date is determined but is
available for early adoption
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HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended
in October 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and in November 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in
July 2014 mainly to include a)impairment requirements
for financial assets and b)jlimited amendments to
the classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive
income” (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain
simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

° all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,
and that have contractual terms that give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss;
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° with regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss is
presented in profit or loss;

° in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses
and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised; and

° the new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting
mechanisms currently available in HKAS 39.
Under HKFRS 9, greater flexibility has been
introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening
the types of instruments that qualify for hedging
instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle
of an “economic relationship”. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no
longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements
about an entity’s risk management activities have
also been introduced.

The directors of the Company is in the process of
making an assessment of the potential impact of
the application of 2014 Revised HKFRS 9 and it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect of 2014 Revised HKFRS 9 until the Group
performs a detailed review.
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HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

In May 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes
a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract.

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract.

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation.

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15. The directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of HKFRS 15 in the future may
have a material impact on the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the
Group performs a detailed review.
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Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting
for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations

The amendments to HKFRS 11 provide guidance on
how to account for the acquisition of a joint operation
that constitutes a business as defined in HKFRS 3
Business Combinations. Specifically, the amendments
state that the relevant principles on accounting for
business combinations in HKFRS 3 and other standards
(e.g. HKAS 12 Income Taxes regarding the recognition
of deferred taxes at the time of acquisition and HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets regarding impairment testing of
a cash-generating unit to which goodwill on acquisition
of a joint operation has been allocated) should be
applied. The same requirements should be applied
to the formation of a joint operation if and only if an
existing business is contributed to the joint operation by
one of the parties that participate in the joint operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant
information required by HKFRS 3 and other standards
for business combinations.

The amendments should be applied prospectively to
acquisitions of interests in joint operations (in which the
activities of the joint operations constitute business as
defined in HKFRS 3) occurring from the beginning of
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKFRS 11 will have
a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure
Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 give some guidance on
how to apply the concept of materiality in practice.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 1 will have
a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

85



HEBEEEEZERER AT CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

BTSRRI EE

Notes to the Financial Statements
HZE2015F12A31HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

86

EEEHENFE16EREEB I
R385 (BRI X)) BEHER
B2 O EZ G L

FR G ERFEIREFT AL LY E -
BELEREEBERNKRDZAERZITE
% BB GRTEREIBHF 2 ERIEIA—IR
AHEBZBR RS TIFETLEE#H
ZEBEERE WARKEAARATHES
PRIBEM TR R -

(@ EBEVEERAKZREGE X

(b) % 7 48 5 Mk LT AR
2 MRS BB -

BREETRN2016F 1 A1 B 2 KR &
EHEAER - BAT AEBE DRI E
RS M iRt A R BT B B 2 M e B
REME - ARREFHE ERE/R
MREMBEECBARENGZBERZRES
FE A ARREZREYR ERER
SR ERF165 R BB G ERFE38HE 2
ERITEHARBZGAMBHRRENE

S/ 480
REE -

EREENEI16RE REB TS
EREAIS (BFTX) EX L E
KHEY

FR G ERFI6M LB B G ERF41
BB RELEEMBYAREFTELEE
HEMERCEMEERARRE B G E
A6 MIFE B B BRIF4HEARS
ME - BELRE BHEHEELEDFAE
REMBEBZBT B ENEMNRARK -

HRASEYERERERY  WART
E=EY ERAAESHEAFIGHRLE
AR ENENRZETTSHARE L
HEVBRREKNEATE -

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS
38 Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from
using a revenue-based depreciation method for items
of property, plant and equipment. The amendments
to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
revenue is not an appropriate basis for amortisation
of an intangible asset. This presumption can only be
rebutted in the following two limited circumstances:

(@) when the intangible asset is expressed as a
measure of revenue; or

(b)  when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible asset are highly correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Currently, the
Group uses the straight-line method for depreciation
and amortisation for its property, plant and equipment,
and intangible assets respectively. The directors of the
Company believe that the straight-line method is the
most appropriate method to reflect the consumption
of economic benefits inherent in the respective assets
and accordingly, the directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the application of these amendments to
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will have a material impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS
41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 define a
bearer plant and require biological assets that meet
the definition of a bearer plant to be accounted for
as property, plant and equipment in accordance with
HKAS 16, instead of HKAS 41. The produce growing
on bearer plants continues to be accounted for in
accordance with HKAS 41.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of these amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41 will have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as the Group is not
engaged in agricultural activities.
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Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 deal with
situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses
resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that
does not contain a business in a transaction with an
associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using
the equity method, are recognised in the parent’s profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly,
gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement
of investments retained in any former subsidiary (that
has become an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method) to fair value are
recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the
new associate or joint venture.

The amendments should be applied prospectively to
transactions occurring in annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016. The directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of these amendments
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 may have an impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements in future
periods should such transactions arise.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 28 Investment Entities:
Applying the Consolidation Exception

The amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 clarify that the exemption from preparing
consolidated financial statements is available to a parent
entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, even if
the investment entity measures all its subsidiaries at fair
value in accordance with HKFRS 10. The amendments
also clarify that the requirement for an investment entity
to consolidate a subsidiary providing services related
to the former’s investment activities applies only to
subsidiaries that are not investment entities themselves.
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The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 28 will have a material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group
is not an investment entity and does not have any
holding company, subsidiary, associate or joint venture
that qualifies as an investment entity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs,
which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific
guidance in HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an
asset (or disposal group) from held for sale to held for
distribution to owners (or vice versa). The amendments
clarify that such a change should be considered as a
continuation of the original plan of disposal and hence
requirements set out in HKFRS 5 regarding the change
of sale plan do not apply. The amendments also clarifies
the guidance for when held-for-distribution accounting
is discontinued.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional
guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract is
continuing involvement in a transferred asset for the
purpose of the disclosures required in relation to
transferred assets.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the rate used
to discount post-employment benefit obligations should
be determined by reference to market yields at the
end of the reporting period on high quality corporate
bonds. The assessment of the depth of a market for
high qualify corporate bonds should be at the currency
level (i.e. the same currency as the benefits are to be
paid). For currencies for which there is no deep market
in such high quality corporate bonds, the market yields
at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
denominated in that currency should be used instead.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments will have a material
effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap 622) regarding preparation of accounts
and directors’ reports and audits became effective for
the Company for the financial year ended 31 December
2015. Further, the disclosure requirements set out
in the Listing Rules regarding annual accounts have
been amended with reference to the new CO and to
streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation
and disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended 31
December 2015 have been changed to comply with
these new requirements. Comparative information
in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2014 is presented or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements based on the new requirements.
Information previously required to be disclosed under
the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not under the
new CO or amended Listing Rules is not disclosed in
these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for assets.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee, and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it
the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient
to give it power, including:

° the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Company, other
vote holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

° any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Company has, or does not have,
the current ability to direct the relevant activities at
the time that decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meeting.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Company
gains control until the date when the Company ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to being their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@) The contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivables. The Company’s investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment.

Investment in Associates and Joint
Ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.
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A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decision about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognized directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognizes its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associates or
joint ventures, except where unrealized losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over
the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognizes any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture

is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5.
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Changes in the Group’s Ownership
Interests in Existing Subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the noncontrolling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured
at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for
as if the Company had directly disposed of the related
assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
directly to retained earnings). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity.
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Business Combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

(i) deferred tax assets or liabilities, and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

(i) liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or
the replacement of an acquiree’s share-based
payment transactions with share-based payment
transactions of the Group are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date; and

(i) assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or another measurement basis required by another
standard.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments being made against goodwill or gain on
bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date. Measurement period does not exceed one year
from the acquisition date.
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The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,
as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e.
the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would
be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity before the acquisition date are
reclassified to profit or loss when the Group obtains
control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see
above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised as of that date.
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Acquisition of Additional Interest in a
Subsidiary

When the Group increases its interest in an entity that
is already controlled by the Group, goodwill arising on
such acquisition represents the difference between the
cost of additional interest acquired and the increase
in the Group’s share of the net carrying amount of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired. The difference between the cost of additional
interest acquired and the book value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities attributable
to the additional interest acquired is recognised as
a reserve movement (other reserve). The difference
represents the difference that arose since the original
acquisition date that is attributable to the Group’s
increased interest in the subsidiary. On the subsequent
disposal of the subsidiary, the reserve is transferred to
retained earnings.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant
business at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGU,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on
a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investment including financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
when the shareholders’ right to receive payment have
been established.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Any other income not mentioned above is recognised
whenever it is received or receivable.

Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including freehold land
and buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than construction in progress), are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation is
provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment (other than construction in progress and
freehold land) over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line methods.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. On initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is charged
so as to write off the cost of investment properties over
the lease term and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.
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An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the item is derecognised.

Land Use Rights

Payment for obtaining land use rights is considered as
prepaid operating lease payment. Land use rights are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses, amortisation is charged
to profit or loss over the period of the rights or the term
of the respective enterprise to which the land use rights
are granted, whichever is the shorter, using the straight-
line method.

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose
of lease classification, unless the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, in which case, the entire lease is
generally treated as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment. To the extent
the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as
operating leases and amortised over the lease term on
a straight-line basis.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownerships to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

The Group as Lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as Lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on
a straight-line basis.
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Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets Acquired in a
Business Combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are identified and recognised separately from goodwill
where they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset
and their fair values can be measured reliably. The cost
of such intangible assets is recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Alternatively, assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Technical Know-how

Expenditure on acquired technical know-how is
capitalised and amortised using the straight-line method
over its estimated useful life of 5 years, from the date
when the technical know-how is available for use.

Research and Development Expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

- the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

- the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

= how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;
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- the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during the
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if
any), on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately.

Derecognition of Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised
in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Mining Rights

Mining rights, including transferred exploration and
evaluation assets, are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. The mining
rights are amortised on the production quantities over
the total estimated mineral reserve. Mining rights are
written off to the profit or loss if the mining property is
abandoned.

Foreign Currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing
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at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of nonmonetary items carried at fair value,
are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity (i.e. the translation reserve)
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving
loss of joint control over jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity.
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Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement Benefit Costs

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution staff
retirement scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
for its employees (including certain directors), the assets
of which are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
ORSO Scheme. When an employee leaves the ORSO
Scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employer
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions
payable by the Group may be reduced by the relevant
amount of forfeited contributions.
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The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Payments to defined contribution retirement plans are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprises of
cash in hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

Share-based Payment Transactions
Share Options Granted to Employees

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value
of services received is determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(employee compensation reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to
employee compensation reserve.
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For share options that are vested immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share options granted
is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in employee compensation
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in employee compensation
reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years, and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to
the extent that is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Current
and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first-out basis for electronic product and in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads, Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method for the other inventories. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make sale.
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Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments and available-for-sales financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of financial assets and is determined at time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

109



HEBEEEEZERER AT CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

B HR AR Y

Notes to the Financial Statements
HZE2015F12A31HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

110

BRFEGARZ ([ZBAFETA
B ) WEBEE
BATEFABSNEREERBIFER
"E -

TRHEEGRBERFFEEE M-

- BAZERRTAREHEE =X

- BRAKEAHEEMNERIADN
BEHAAN—BOMRAEROER
EHEMEN 3

- TREERAWMETENITETAR
ABMIEREHRTA -

BAVEFABSNEREESEATE
ARE O MEBEMAEELEZRAFEZEDH
EHEAHHERERGRER NEDHE
RZBEHERFEEECREERNZ
T EHAE -

B RERME

B R N W R TR 2 PR s [ E 3K R E N R
METESREE  BYEBAEERTIS
BHRE - RVHHERE - ERLEWFHIA
(BREZREMEBSFTE RITHFEH-
RehEFRRLER  EURHKEREFR
LEK—HaERARER) KAERENES
AR E A B AR - R R 2 R R (E &
B (R TN EREERENGERR) -

MEBWARERN ERHER - R IEER
TR BB B R UCRIRRIER SN

Financial Assets at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss (“FVTPL?”)

Financial assets at FVTPL represent investments held
for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

- it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on
the financial assets.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, deposits with banks, cash and cash
equivalents, amounts due from subsidiaries and amount
due from a joint venture) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the
effect of discontinuing is immaterial.
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Held-to-maturity Investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial
assets below).

Available-for-sale Financial Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated as available-for-sale or not
classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of
revaluation reserve until the financial asset is disposed
of or determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that
are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity investments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been impacted.
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For all of the Group’s financial assets, objective
evidence of impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss.
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For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

Financial Liabilities and Equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Other Financial Liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified
into other financial liabilities, including trade and other
payables and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that from an integral part of effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Convertible Bonds

The component parts of compound instruments
(convertible notes) issued by the Company are classified
separately as financial liabilities, equity and derivatives
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability,
an equity instrument and derivative financial instruments.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a
fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments
is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar nonconvertible instruments.
This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised
cost basis using the effective interest method until
extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s
maturity date.
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The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity, net of income
tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In
addition, the conversion option classified as equity
will remain in equity until the conversion option is
exercised, in which case, the balance recognised in
equity will be transferred to share premium. Where the
conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity
date of the convertible note, the balance recognised in
equity will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible notes are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are recognised directly in equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability
component and are amortised over the lives of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at
the higher of:

- the amount of the obligation under the contract,
as determined in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and

- the amount initially recognised less, where

appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the revenue recognition policies.
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Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets
expire or, when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in
its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to
repurchase part of a transferred asset or retains a
residual interest that does not result in the retention
of substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and the Group retains control), the Group allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial asset between
the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on
the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on
the date of the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received
for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and
the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specific in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Impairment Losses on Tangible and
Intangible Assets other than Goodwill
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGU,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
CGU for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
immediately in profit or loss.
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Provision

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation, as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of the time value money is material, the
amount of a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in
the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in profit or
loss.

Provision for product warranties granted by the Group
on certain products are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs
and returns, discounted to their present value as
appropriate.

Related Parties Transactions
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(1) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group.

(20  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).
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Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If the
Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (1).

A person identified in (1) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity and include:

(@)

(b)

(©)

that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

dependants of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

MEALTCHABRERIXEETNRS  T)
BREAZEANLRS -

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.

1€
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Segment Reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Critical Accounting Judgments

and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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Estimated Impairment of
Investment Properties, Mining
Rights, Property, Plant and
Equipment, Intangible Assets and
Available-for-sale Financial Assets
Carried at Cost

The Group evaluates whether investment
properties, mining rights, property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and available-for-
sale investment carried at cost have suffered
any impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
the assets may not be recoverable, in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in Note 3. The
recoverable amounts of CGUs represent the
higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell
or its value-in-use. The calculations of fair value
less costs to sell or value-in-use require the use
of estimates. During the year, the Group did not
provide any impairment for investment properties,
mining rights, property, plant and equipment and
available-for-sale investments carried at cost
and provided approximately of HK$600,000 for
intangible assets (2014: HK$Nil).

Estimated Useful Lives of
Investment Properties, Property,
Plant and Equipment, Intangible
Assets and Mining Rights

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives and related depreciation/
amortisation charges for its investment properties,
property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of investment
properties, property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets of similar nature and
functions and the mineral reserve determined by
independent technical adviser. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to market
conditions. Management will increase the
depreciation/amortisation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.
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(c)

(d)

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014, the Group did not change the estimated
useful lives of investment properties, property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and mining
rights.

Estimated Impairment of
Inventories

The management of the Group reviews the
inventories listing on a product-by-product
basis at the end of the reporting period. The
management estimates the net realisable value for
such items based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. During the
year, the Group has provided approximately of
HK$2,374,000 for impairment of inventories (2014:
HK$NIl).

Income Tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. There are certain transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination may be uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.



B RS ER AR Y

Notes to the Financial Statements
HZE2015F12A31HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

(e) ESZREMEWNEZBE

(7)

B 5 & H hE W GRIE 2 R E TR B
FEF AR E EUCRIE 2 Bt A
WEIRRE KRR UWRIEEEE
HEETE - ASE 2 AT HR
R -EB S RHEMEWRIE ZA
WEMGFESEmMERHEENENE
e BIREHTRE -5 TE
WHRIBER g R RV HEER AR
e - {8 H 1% 7] g R U B R g B
HERmABEEREAM2ERE %
H G B8 R U R TE S o fW R AE

A] Yz [ M IR MZT%&ﬁ@E
WHRIBELEE AT gEgsARE
B EBEEEBRTE RNAFE -
AEBRE S R EMERFEIR
S B % 1 49206,000%8 7T (20144 -
THEIT) o

Ik Y]

AEESEIEBF-RETHERS
HBERE AR ERENREZR
CELABEUZEREE - HER

BEEXAKEHRSELEML
FEHIARRRESMEMELHE - A
BEABCHARUFEZSTRS
MEBZBRE - PIERAZ AT RKR
enBR/IMEREEHESIHYH
IEEHR 2 et ER A ETHEE -

R2016F12A3THH R EREE A
197,144,000/ 7T + M & A W £ # R
EESREZEE

2015 F3#, ANNUAL REPORT 2015

(e) Impairment of Trade and Other

)

Receivables

The impairment of trade and other receivables are
based on the ongoing evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of the outstanding receivables
and on management’s judgment. From time
to time, the Group may experience delays in
collection. Where recoverability of trade and other
receivables are called into doubts, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments,
provision may be required. Certain receivables
may be initially identified as collectable, yet
subsequently become uncollectable and result in
a subsequent write-off of the related receivables
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. Changes in the
collectability of trade and other receivables for
which provisions are not made could affect our
results of operations. During the year, the Group
has provided approximately of HK$206,000 for
impairment on trade and other receivables (2014:
HK$Nil).

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires
an estimation of the value in use of the CGUs
to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the CGUs and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. A change in the estimated
future cash flows and/or the discount rate applied
will result in an adjustment to the estimated
impairment provision previously made.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
December 2015 was HK$ 197,144,000 and no
impairment loss for goodwill was recognised
during the year.

123



HEBEEEEZERER AT CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

B HR AR Y

Notes to the Financial Statements
HZE2015F12A31HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

124

(9)

(h)

REBERE

AEERETERRE—"ZEMFR
BV E R RNIBEE TS E
E®R EXrREFAIBTEARE
F) BT o AR 5 @ 32 8 E2408 A R AT
EEMTMELEZERHEERERK
REFRERL -MATELERER
THERBETR ZEAUETYH
ELBIIMREMST BB 2B ER
HE -RAEE ALEECEHERR
BEHR B E 19249,000/8 7T (20144 ¢
ZETT) °

B 2 A

9 3% A A T AR 4% B 7% SR AR P SESHT T
LFRABRAXZEFBRRBETER -
REERBAEA 2 RBE T
EREFLEEEBRMARELZ
e SEBZABRERERN G
HEEREZRE -

L =
(a) €M IT EER

(9)

(h)

Warranty provision

The Group gives warranties of one to two years
on certain products and undertakes to repair or
replace items that fail to perform satisfactorily.
Significant judgement is required when determining
the warranty expenses. The Group estimates the
warranty expenses based on the actual repair and
item replacement costs incurred for the products
sold in the last 24 months. Where the warranty
expenses incurred are different from the original
provision, the difference would impact on profit or
loss in the period in which the additional warranty
expenses are incurred. During the year, the Group
had provided approximately HK$ 249,000 for
product warranty provision (2014 HK$ Nil).

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance
with the accounting policy for research and
development expenditure in Note 3 to the
financial statements. Determining the amounts
to be capitalised requires management to make
assumptions regarding the expected future cash
generation of the assets, discount rates to be
applied and the expected period of benefits.

5. Financial instruments

(a) Categories of Financial

Instruments

2015 2014
FE7

HK$’ 000

TRERT
HK$’000

ERMEE Financial assets
B R ENGIE(BE Loans and receivables
RITFEFARBR S (including deposits with
MERREER) banks and cash and
cash equivalents) 1,970,042 1,181,942
AHEERE Available-for-sale investment 127,260 30,391
TEeMEE Derivative financial assets 7 243
BAFEF ABR Financial assets at fair value through
CREE profit or loss 38,726 9,900
2,136,035 1,222,476
cREE Financial liabilities
KR Amortised cost 1,826,496 1,156,391
1,826,496 1,156,391
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(b) Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
investments held for trading, available-for-sale
investments, trade and other receivables, amount
due from a joint ventures, deposits with banks,
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
payables, borrowings and convertible bonds.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include foreign exchange
risk, interest rate risk, other price risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focus on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(i) Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group has minimal exposures to
foreign currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the respective subsidiaries.
The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities.
The Group will monitor its foreign currency
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

(ii) Interest Rate Risk
The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to deposits with banks
and borrowings (see Notes 30 and 32
respectively for details).
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Sensitivity Analysis

If interest rates on deposits with banks and
cash and cash equivalents and borrowings
as at 31 December 2015 had been 10 basis
points (0.1% per annum) (2014: 10 basis
points) higher/lower than the actual effective
interest rate, the Group’s profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$257,000
(2014: HK$233,000) higher/lower as a
result of a increase/decrease in fair value of
deposits with banks and borrowings.

As management considers the Group’s
exposure to the above fair value interest rate
risk is not significant, no interest-rate swaps
or other hedging activities are undertaken by
management during the year.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to bank balances
carried at prevailing market rate. However,
such exposure is minimal to the Group as the
bank balances are all short-term in nature.

(iii) Other Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity
securities and unlisted investments in funds.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks. The Group’s other price risk
is mainly concentrated on equity instruments
listed in the PRC and on fund investment
quoted by the financial institutions.

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the reporting date.
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If the prices of the respective equity
instruments has been 10% (2014: 10%)
higher/lower, the Group’s profit for the year
would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$3,873,000(2014: HK$990,000) as
a result of the changes in fair value of
investments held for trading.

If the prices of respective instruments
has been 10% (2014: 10%) higher/lower,
the Group’s other comprehensive income
would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$11,996,000 (2014: HK$3,039,000)
as a result of the changes in fair value of
available-for-sale investment.

Credit Risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure
to perform their obligations at the end of the
reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group trades only with recognised,
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s
policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

With respect to credit risk arising from the
other financial assets of the Group which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
default of the counterparties is limited as the
counterparties have good credit standing
and the Group does not expect to incur
significant loss for unallocated advances/
deposits from these entities.

127



HEBEEEEZERER AT CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

B HR AR Y

Notes to the Financial Statements
HZE2015F12A31HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

128

(v)

AEEYESERETHEER
@ o NEEET A B E BOR HEAR
AABERFEELENETFSH
EEMm AKENRTERRK
FTRREREE 2 FRIFR
REEXEERBRNED SR
s -

B A B & B R I R Y
Fetr HEFRB/AEEF
HRBITREBEENFERD
EFEEREERR -

HE B % R B
AEEFETRENRDESRE
REE NBERZEFEHR
EREEES BBEFRETH
MEERENERAIHIARE
& URBEMSETOEEN
AEEHIRFAHSANE
WMEERE BEUGFESH
FEH) BRI -

TRETASE G AFEEE
BENSBRAE  LHRENA
B AR - RIBEHAREH
REA KD B R 640 A
Tof-RAMBENSER
BHMERTENERESRE - A
RIFTHENTEL BN FUt
1218 A 7 B H & 45 o 7 SR AR
FRHEKEE-

(v)

The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk. It has policies in place to
ensure that sales of goods are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.
The Group’s deposits with bank and deposits
placed with financial institutions are placed
in high quality financial institutions without
significant exposure to credit risk.

The directors consider that there is no
significant credit risk in respect of the
Group’s deposits with banks and deposits
placed with financial institutions as the
financial institutions have no record of default
payment.

Liquidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market
positions. The Group aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping adequate
facilities available.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities that will be settled on a
net basis into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the end
of the reporting period to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months upon
recognition equal their carrying balances, as
the impact of discounting is not significant.
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2015%F 2015
AERALR
Undiscounted cashflow
mELY
ERAZ —E0T -EHE a5 REE
Weighted
average Total
effective Less than Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
TR TAR  TEx TR
% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EHREMERTEA  Trade and other payables - 322,289 - 322,289 322,289
B8 Borrowings 5.57 224,816 1,268,403 1,493,219 1,305,872
makES Convertible bonds 15.72 202,285 - 202,285 198,335
749,390 1,268,403 2,017,793 1,826,496
20144 2014

&
Weighted
average
effective
interest rate

RUBRRER
Undiscounted cashflow

—EUT —FE

Total
Less than Over  undiscounted

1 year 1 year cash flows
TATL TATL TR
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000

REE

Carrying
amount

BHREMERNFE  Trade and other payables - 266,097 - 266,097 266,097
EE Borrowings 5.32 303,696 291,718 595,414 595,414
MaRES Convertible bonds 15.70 115,000 180,000 295,000 294,880

684,793 471,718 1,156,511 1,156,391
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(c) A¥EE (c) Fair Value Measurements

A REENGTHAEE A XA This note provides information about how the

cRHEENCREBEETATEDN Group determines fair values of various financial

Tk e assets and financial liabilities.

(i) RELEMEELZ L FE (i) Fair value of the Group’s
FTENAEFLTHEER financial assets and financial
THEENAFE liabilities that are measured at

fair value on a recurring basis
rEBHOHeRHEERESRE Some of the Group’s financial assets and
BEREREAREZQFENE - financial liabilities are measured at fair
T 3R BT B R F A A0 ] T 7% value at the end of each reporting period.
ZeRMEERERABENAYT The following table gives information about
BLERMAMABERNREA how the fair values of these financial assets
IR - and financial liabilities are determined (in

particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used).

RATABNATE
Fair value as at

SREE 2015512531A 20145125831A AYERH  HEAERIERARE

Fair value  Valuation techniques
Financial assets 31 December 2015 31 December 2014 hierarchy  and key inputs

1) RERENHILEREE REERTPELDRAZS:  REERIEDRAES:

(Firos) 38,726, 000% ¢ 9,900,000 7T F1R ERTBHEEAR
Held for trading non-derivative Listed equity securities in Listed equity securities outside  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in
financial assets (Note 28) Hong Kong and the PRC: Hong Kong: HK$9,900,000 an active market

HK$38,726,000

) LIPARLERE(HE®) RERGNEDRARS :  REARILORAES:

10,842,000%7 30,391,000 ¢ F1E ERMAFREAE
Listed available-for-sale investment  Listed equity securities outside  Listed equity securities outside  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in
(Note 25) Hong Kong: HK$10,842,000 Hong Kong: HK$30,391,000 an active market
3y  LEAfHERE(HiEs) EEEBIA 100,118,008 FiER #18 ERMARREAE
Listed available-for-sale investment  Debt instruments in Hong Kong:  Not applicable Level 1 Quoted prices in active market
(Note 25) HK$109,118,000
4 fEeRgE (M) BE 70008 BE 4300047 $08 CEABETERS
Derivative financial assets (Note 29)  Asset: HK$7,000 Asset: HK$243,000 Level 2 Binomial Option Pricing Mode!
MEFEALEBEFIERE? There were no transfers between Levels 1
o ERNER - and 2 in both years.
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(ii) LHREFELZEZEMLEEL R
FEFAEWEIEFLHEZ
ERTHEEN L FE

EERB NEEVBHmEE
REeHmEEREMABENE
AESREQNFTEESE HLSE
E R M 18 49 £198,335,000/%
THABMERESFNATENR
197,789,000/8 JLER 5 ©

(ii)

Fair value of the Group’s

financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured
at fair value on recurring basis
Except the Group’s convertible bonds
with carrying amount of approximately
HK$198,335,000 which have fair value
of approximately HK$197,739,000, the
directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities

recognised in the consolidated financial

statements approximately their fair values.

"2015612H31H

0D FERA
Fair value hierarchy as at
31 December 2015
18 F2H 38 4@t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
TER TRT TET TER
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
CREE Financial assets
BHIEBERE Investments held for trading 38,726 - = 38,726
TEEBEE Derivative financial assets - 7 - 7
AHHERE Available-for-sale
investments
IR AESR Listed equity securities 10,842 - - 10,842
BEIE Debt instruments 109,118 - - 109,118
@t Total 158,686 7 - 158,693
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R20145612H31H
GO ERS
Fair value hierarchy as at
31 December 2014
F18 YL
Level 1 Level 2
TR TR

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

F3H T

Level 3
TAEL

HK$’ 000

Total
T

HK$’ 000

SREE Financial assets
HIEEBERE Investments held for trading 9,900 - - 9,900
TESBEE Derivative financial assets - 243 - 243
AHEERE Available-for-sale

investments
LR AES Listed equity securities 30,391 - - 30,391
B Total 40,291 243 - 40,534

BEHELAE2ENESREEN
AFEEAREBEN 2R
AHREERAEE HEH&E
ENBRABERRE KE-
JERESE - BRERKREE -

EcRKBER
AEEHNELEE A IZRRBAEE LY
BB S B BRENE MR ER
ISR - R B 4 5 B (00 B AN A5 4 LU
BERA o

RTIRBRHBRENGERE  AREAREE
HEN TREROBRSBE - ABRRSIK
MEARRE - BITHBREHEEE B
&7 e

AEENMBEELEREREER - X
RREGRERNEEREFNE -BER
BERIREEMBARRERA -

The fair values of the financial assets
included in the level 2 above have been
determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a
Binominal Option Pricing Model, with the
most significant inputs being the share price,
volatility, time to maturity, conversion price
and dividend yield.

Capital Risk Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other shareholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided
by total assets as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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HZE2015F12A31HIEFE - AEEMR
B A B ELREFES0BAN - 120154
F2014F12A31EMAGBHRNT :

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s
strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio within 50%. The
gearing ratios at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were as
follows:

2015 2014
FE& T TAETT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
fEER%E Total borrowings 1,504,207 890,294
BELE Total assets 5,421,692 3,796,956
BELXE Gearing ratio 27.7% 23.4%

7. WA 7. Revenue

AEETRREREEHBEY  SBEE
mER  REBHEBRETFEMER -
REBERFRAZBADHFET :

The Group is principally engaged in fertiliser business,
magnesium product business, metallurgical flux
business and electronic product business. An analysis
of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

2015 2014
FTHT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
HEREERER Sales of fertiliser products 1,523,281 1,277,282
HECBHEE® Sales of magnesium products 760,502 696,904
SH 55 1R 8 s 7 2E Sales of metallurgical flux products 72,913 98,333
HE ST Em Sales of electronic products 158,906 -
2,515,602 2,072,519
8. NEER 8. Segment Information

s B R B M D B R IRF (A A AR FITIR
BE(TELERRE)MEZCEHAER
RERH - ARBIRBE BV RE LR
FE/LE LAWY AT

- BEENER

- TBEEMER

— RBAEES

- EBTESEH

Information reported to the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on the operating
divisions. The Group’s operating and reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 are therefore as follows:

Fertiliser business

- Magnesium product business

Metallurgical flux business

Electronic product business
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BRAEEZARED MR T2 -

DRBAREE

REBRAIHREDH

_Fo

HE2015F12A831H IFFE :

B2 WA RFEE DA

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
is presented below.

Segment Revenue and Results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2015:

EEER tREER RABHXER ETEMEH
Magnesium Metallurgical Electronic
Fertiliser product flux product
business business business business
TR TR THRT THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
D EA Segment revenue 1,523,281 760,502 87,070 158,906 2,529,759
DEEBA Inter-segment revenue - - (14,157) - (14,157)
RENBEP Revenue from external
HUMA customers 1,523,281 760,502 72,913 158,906 2,515,602
NEEE Segment results 368,606 258,087 27,952 (650) 653,995
Hip WA R & Other income and gains 7,182 49,495
FROBER Central administrative
costs (120,964)
HE—FMB2AR  Gan on disposal
ZWa of a subsidiary 179
JEMEABARER  Share of profit and losses
RE#R of joint ventures 1,760
R—HE&ELHA Impairment of investment
ZEERE in a joint venture (180)
TE(RB & N AEF|  Share of profits and losses
RE# of associates (4)
BEER Finance costs (87,390)
bR P55 A 1 Profit before income tax
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HZE2014F12A31H IEFE -

For the year ended 31 December 2014:

EXEH  SBEEM

5% %
Magnesium
Fertiliser product  Metallurgical
business business  flux business Total
TAL TAL TAEL TAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
AEBA Segment revenue 1,277,282 696,904 113,766 2,087,952
S EEBA Inter-segment revenue - - (15,433) (15,433)
XENBER Revenue from external
ol g/ customers 1,277,282 696,904 98,333 2,072,519
NEEE Segment results 308,662 224,540 23,626 556,828
H Ao A R s Other income and gains 15,055
hRITHER Central administrative costs (60,011)
HBER Finance costs (44,186)
BR TS T A0 & A Profit before income tax 467,686

EXE25Z 75BN - TIRERINEBEP A
EEZHBA - DERRHGE R FELETT

~
VAR

AREN 2B BHRERKE T EE
HE > DEREREER T EDEFRITRE
R(BRESHHN EdBA Rk b
E-HMBARZKE  BERERR MR
MEEE R-—BAERRZKERE
B E RN REE BB ER LA
BRASBATENBZESE - AR
FELERRERS AME AR EIRRAT
BoRRBZITA

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. Inter-segment
transactions are entered into at arm’s length.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment
results represent the results from each segment without
allocation of central administrative costs including
directors’ emoluments, other income and gains, gain
on disposal of a subsidiary, share of profit and losses
of joint ventures, impairment of investment in a joint
venture, share of profits and losses of associates,
finance costs and income tax expense. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance.
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PHEEREE Segment Assets and Liabilities
MR2015F12A31B 2R EEERABEME The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
FEZAEFERYREN T2 EARI M 2015 and capital expenditure for the year then ended
™ by reportable segments are as follows:

REER ¢REER  HERH EtER ABast
Magnesium Electronic
Fertiliser product Metallurgical product Total
business  business flux business  business  segments Unallocated Total
TER ThEn ThEn TR TR TR TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
HEE Segment assets 954,080 1,772,216 692,714 210,163 3,629,173 1,792,519 5,421,692
HHEE Segment liabilities 124,189 605,048 155,686 239,308 1,124,231 954,123 2,078,354
YT Capital expenditure 145,118 61,593 19,249 1,808 227,768 582 228,350
Mo014F12 A31B 2 D EER B EBEME The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
TP FEEIRARE ST A AR 40 2014 and capital expenditure for the year then ended
- by reportable segments are as follows:
EEIEH
%
Magnesium
Fertiliser product Metallurgical Total
business buginess  flux business segments Unallocated Total
BT T T T BT T
HKS' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HK$'000 HKS' 000
HEEE Segment assets 753,405 1,043,504 744,287 2,741,196 1,095,760 3,796,956
K986 Segment liabilities 236,803 514,503 175,960 927,266 503,049 1,430,315
TEFRDEE Additions to non-current assets 220,358 406,621 55,891 682,870 1,453 684,323
BEKRERDBREBE LR D BEALEIR For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
Z2BZE: and allocating resources between segments:
- BREEYE ROFHR RekER - all assets are allocated to reportable segments

ReBRBEBNMEMEREREE £
EYE BEMRE BRLEEMA
fEWKIEIN FFEEEHDESR
AmEDE Rk
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receivables; and
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- BREEREZBEREMENRE
v TBEBEBDEEAREDE -

BEARXBREENE BEMREORE
MEEME BEMRBNRE - REE
THE - BERRBIESITRABERNEIN
PIEEARRAXEHDEED L

HE2015F12A31HILFE  KEEKE
MEB AR ERSEEZEAMT AWE42
2275

HE2015F12 A31H L FE -

RERNZE

Fertiliser
business

TER
HK$000

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
other than borrowings for corporate use and other
payables.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property,
plant and equipment and deposits for acquisition
of property, plant and equipment. Except for the
additions to certain property, plant and equipment for
administrative purposes, all the capital expenditure was
allocated to segments.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s
capital expenditure related to non-current assets from
acquisition of subsidiaries was stated in Note 42.

Other Segment Information
For the year ended 31 December 2015:

tREERER  REMHRE  RTERXR

Magnesium Electronic

product  Metallurgical product
business  flux business business Unallocated Total
T#n T#n T#n TEn T#n
HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’000

WE FER&KE  Depreciation of propery,
RENENE plant and equipment and

investment properties 43,785 11,731 10,428 5,945 6,996 78,885
LAEEE - REER Amortsation of land use rights,
ERARLY mining rights and
intangible assets 226 2,197 13,808 904 31 11,512
RENARE Impairment of
(evelopment costs - - - 599 - 599
FERE Impairment of inventories - - - 2,374 - 2,374
EmREEE Product warranty provision - - - 249 - 249
AOFBAER Reversal of unutlised product
REEE warranty provision - - - (500} - (500)
EOZ5EWARAE Reversal of mpaiment of
trade receivables - - - (229) - (229)
ZHEUGIERE  Impaiment of trade receivables - - - 206 - 206
HENE BER  Gainon disposal of
BGLD property, plant and
equipment - (169) (37) )] (82) (290)
REEEREN Realised and unrealised
BERRAERRE  gain on ivestments held
for trading - - - - (6,875) (6,875)
FEHRT Income tax expense 89,040 57,386 5,643 (87) 2,974 155,006
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HE2014F12A31H ILFE - For the year ended 31 December 2014:

AOE
Magnesium
Fertliser product Metallurgical

business business flux business Unallocated
THT T THT TATL
HKS' 00! HK$' 000 HK$'000

Mg MERZER  Depreciation of property,
RENENE plant and equipment and
investment properties 35,950 10,306 10,434 5,046 61,736

TIHERE  FBER Amortisation of land use rights,
BYEEEH mining rights and
intangible assets 229 2,401 13,300 319 16,249

HENE  MERKE (Gain)loss on disposal of
B(E)/FR property, plant and equipment (44) - 320 (200) 76

BIEEERENEER Realised and unrealised gain on

RAE%R & investments held for trading - - - 3,201 3,291

FEREx Income tax expense 74,735 48,858 4,307 145 128,045
it EER Geographical Information
B ZE2016%F K2014F12A31AIEFE - & During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
SEFEZRTEHEERASEFTZRAY the Group mainly operated in the PRC and most of
REFE - MR20159F12A31H k20144 the Group’s revenue are derived from the PRC and
12A318  AKREARHRFRBDEEDN most of non-current assets of the Group are located in
RAE - SEEREASERMREDNE the PRC as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December
= % y o N
BREEDN 2014. No analysis of the Group’s result and assets by

geographical area is disclosed.

FEXEFEH Information about Major Customers
BB 220165 %2014 12A318 L F No information about major customers is presented
FEXESEME—EP ZHERBARE as no single customer contributed over 10% of the
BBAZ10% ALTEEHREEEFH total revenue of the Group during the years ended 31
R eI December 2015 and 2014.
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9. HtW AR W=

9. Other Income and Gains

2015 2014

FTHET FET

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

B U A Interest income 12,094 8,544

B& B U A Dividend income 200 292

el A Rental income - 4,766

FIBUA Sundry income 7,692 361

S BE AR Sales of scrap materials 11,679 1,092

R 7% B Uk A Service fee income 3,773 -
e B o 1B U BB W e Provisional gain on bargin purchase

(Bt 5£42(0)) (Note 42(b)) 7,182 -

HE—MKEBARZUWZE  Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 179 -

42,799 15,055

10. I EH

10. Finance Costs

2015 2014
THER T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
ABMEESZFERY Interest expenses on convertible bonds 37,703 23,157
W% EZEZFEMT  Interest expenses on listed
subordinated notes 27,835 -
EARSFAEEHEEREY Interest on borrowings wholly
faEHH B repayable within 5 years 14,086 16,319
sl E’\\\5¢1§£§Ma B2 Interest on borrowings wholly
BEEMNF A repayable after 5 years 17,390 6,729
BEERALERE Total borrowing costs 97,014 46,205
W EREEREE Less: amount capitalised in the
A& AR 2 & 88 cost of qualifying assets (9,624) (2,019)
87,390 44,186

BEABS 2 IEFHERML R AT F5.53% (2014
F:H5F2.00%) ©

The weighted average capitalisation rate of fund borrowed
generally is 5.53% per annum (2014: 2.00% per annum)
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1. FiBHEAX
ReABERELETRERNINR G
) B 1954 B S B

140

11. Income Tax Expense
The amount of income tax expense charged/(credited)
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represents:

2015 2014
THET

HK$’ 000

FERT
HK$’000

BVEA T 18 Current tax
—BBNER - Hong Kong Profits Tax 2,974 -
—HEREMREN - PRC Enterprise Income Tax 155,474 131,278
—HAth - Others 13 -
158,461 131,278
EIERIA (MY 5E35) Deferred taxation (Note 35) (3,455) (3,233)
155,006 128,045

(a) FEERAFEH (a) Hong Kong Profits Tax
EBMNBR T RE £2015% K£2014 Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
F12A31B L FE 2 HTER TR on the estimated assessable profits for the years
M Z16.5%=tE o 2014 FE FH 5 JE ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. No tax is
RN RN E BT EENHRIEER payable on the profit for 2014 arising in Hong
o2 v 2 IR 3 = R P B S | Kong since assessable profit is wholly absorbed
F ] FLIE o by tax losses brought forward.

(b) PEILTERBH (b) The PRC Enterprise Income Tax
FEDERESRIIRE E20156F & The PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at
2014F12A31H It FE 2 (L=t FER 25% on the estimated assessable profits arising in
R 2 25%ET & - the PRC for the years ended 31 December 2015

and 2014.
(c) BIFEH (c) Overseas Income Tax

ARBNREBEFAEHE RBEARH
ENBEMRILAERREERAR
Wi R AR EFEMEN -
ZNYNECINSES Y=gt A vl o
RANRERBRELHSEER X
NBDEFEM AL - 30 # R AR R
BREZBEESMEMN -

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of Cayman
Islands and, accordingly, is exempted from
Cayman lIslands income tax. The Company’s
subsidiaries established in the British Virgin Islands
were incorporated under the International Business
Companies Act of the British Virgin Islands and,
are exempted from British Virgin Islands income
tax.
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N B K B TS R R F ER A
¥R AR KO5%E B 1 I8 S 8sE
MZERWT

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would
arise using a tax rate of 25%, the standard income
tax rate of the PRC enterprises, as follows:

2015 2014
TEL FET
HK$’000 HK$' 000
BB E AR A Profit before income tax 496,891 467,686
HERMEHHE25%  Tax charge at applicable income tax
(20145 : 25%) rate of 25% (2014: 25%)
SHEMHEX 124,223 25,0 116,921 25.0
PEMAEERSEH  Effect of different tax rates of
WERGMTRKEEZ  subsidiaries operating in
72 other jurisdictions (1,103) (0.2) (1,519) (0.9)
BEFHOKAL Tax effect of income not taxable
HEyE for tax purpose (6,593) (1.3) (11,830) 2.5)
EERENTRBE Share of losses of joint ventures (290) (0.1) - -
Ta M7 HIBEST 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible
ke for tax purpose 34,089 6.9 20,742 4.4
RAEERERE Over-provision of tax in prior year - - (6) 0.0
FREAERL Utilisation of previous unrecognised
HBER tax losses (1,911) (0.4) (3,149) 0.7)
KEAZGEHTHRESE  Taxeffect of estimated tax losses
nEKe2 not recognised 6,591 1.3 6,886 15
FERAX Income tax expense 155,006 31.2 128,045 27.4

R2015F12A318  REB RXRERH
T8 18 #9723,989,000% 7T (20144 -
90,354,000/ 7T) 7] 4% 88 DA 8 oK 2R JE AR
i Fl o #9265,249,0005% 7T (20144 ¢
72,710,000 L) 2 BB EEH N EHE
EBZTEFERAAFRIE M4
458,740,0007% 7T (20144 : 17,644,000/%5
o) ZBIEEEA A ERAAE c AR
BRAVBEBREBZERVEFATEABAN
HIBBEHE  WZEHRBEBEZEER
TE Y 25 I R FER o

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has unrecognised
tax losses of approximately HK$723,989,000 (2014:
HK$90,354,000), which can be carried forward to
offset future taxable profit. Tax losses of approximately
HK$265,249,000 (2014: HK$72,710,000) will expire
after five years from the year of assessment they relate
to while tax losses of approximately HK$458,740,000
(2014: HK$17,644,000) can be carried forward
indefinitely. The deferred tax benefit of such tax losses
has not been recognised as it is not considered
probable that future taxable profit will be available to
utilise the unused tax losses.
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12. FREF

142

FREMNEMGR(BR) THER :

12. Profit for the Year
Profit for the year has been arrived at after
charging/(crediting):

2015 2014
TER T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TERYS Wages and salaries 185,686 90,813
BTESMERZEBIE  share options granted to directors and
employees 2,528 2,082
AT E R FGRRETEIFIE  Payment to defined contribution
retirement plans 7,038 1,887
& 8 T A Total staff costs (including
(BREESHH) directors’ emoluments) 195,252 94,782
1% 25 A 35 B Auditors’ remuneration 1,833 1,028
WENEH Depreciation and amortisation 96,397 77,985
HEME ME&EZEZ  Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property,
UEIVE - plant and equipment (290) 76
HIEEERED Realised gain on investments held
E#R = for trading (2,196) (166)
BIEEBEREDN Unrealised gain on investments held
REH W for trading (4,679) (3,125)
FERABERAZ M Cost of inventories recognised
as an expense 1,524,007 1,256,519
T REF 2 &L EATEE Operating lease rentals in respect
of land and buildings 3,005 2,614
R—HEEERAEZ Impairment of investment in
HERE a joint venture 180 -
A 3 A AR E Impairment of development costs 599 -
FERE Impairment of inventories 2,374 -
EmIREEE Product warranty provision 249 -
1 5H 2 5 HE ORI R (B Reversal of written off of trade receivables (229) -
g 5 RWFERE Impairment of trade receivables 206 -
MREAZEZ L Research and development expenses 18,634 -
o i i B R e Provisional gain on bargain purchase (7,182) -
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GERE

(a)

FRIRAEEPIETR  AEERETEES
) — T | U & R R R GBI R - %A 2
BREBHRKE - REZHBBUTOHHRE
AEELREEFHF 4% R ZT S - I
BREEHFZN  AEEHEARERS
NEZEIRKEENZEE - ZHEBABT
ERMORAFEAERNERN 2 EZS
B

AEECAEBEAREELHRESE -4
BeTEBENTRMANKGE - ABIETEA
ER - BEAESTE  NEEREFEE
BAE ARERHIERESIENIZES WA
25%% A mZst El 5 - B2014F6A1H
B-ASEREEBHZZ ERASE A1,500
BT

HZE2015F12A31B L FE - KAEERE L
i 2 5T 8 1F 8 £ 348 EE 497,038,000
7 7T (20144 : 1,887,000/ JT) ° H2015%
128318 + 785 B0 % 4 F & 15 E 08 U
FRA] FA R R A 7 R B R 2R ) 3R (20144 -
AT °

note:

2015 F3#, ANNUAL REPORT 2015

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group contributes to a state-sponsored retirement
plan for its employees in the PRC, which is a defined
contribution plan. The Group contributes approximately
14% of the employees’ salary as specified by the local
government, and the Group has no future obligations
for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement plan is responsible for the entire
pension obligations to retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the MPF Scheme, a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee. Under the
MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its Hong Kong
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Since 1 June
2014, both the Group’s and the employees’ contributions
are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
aggregate amount of the Group’s contributions to the
aforementioned pension schemes was approximately
HK$7,038,000 (2014: HK$1,887,000). As at 31
December 2015, the Group was not entitled to any
forfeited contributions to reduce the Group’s future
contributions (2014: HK$Nil).
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13.EE - FETHAEREEHMH 13.Directors’, Chief Executives’ and

EESHFMAL Employees’ Emoluments and
Individuals with Highest Emoluments
(a) E=H A (a) Directors’ Emoluments
HE20156F12AIHLFERES The emoluments of each director for the year
ZEMEINAT - ended 31 December 2015 is set below:

ExXhEfe

§é BRE HE L3
Employer’s

contribution

Share  to pension
Fees Salaries options scheme Total
THERT TR THT TR THET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000

BIEERTHAS Executive director and CEO

BN E Chi Wen Fu - 1,300 42 18 1,360
BTES Executive directors

MR Shum Sai Chit - 650 32 18 700
BER Chi Bi Fen - 650 32 18 700
BE Yang Yuchuan - 650 818 18 1,486
FYTES Non-executive director

PEE Guo Mengyong 35 - 10 - 45

BUF4H7EE  Independent non-executive

directors
Bmx Kwong Ping Man 75 - 10 - 85
it Sheng Hong 35 - 10 - 45
LS Lau Chi Kit 240 - 273 - 513

385 3,250 1,227 12 4,934
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HE2014F12A3IHLFESES
ZEMES AT

BTEERTHAS Executive director and CEO

The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31

December 2014 is set below:

RiE

Share

Salaries options
THL BT
HK$' 000 HK$' 000

ETHRAS
FTEHER
Employer's
contribution
to pension
scheme
TEL

HK$' 000

Total
THER
HK$' 000

HXE Chi Wen Fu - 1,300 79 17 1,396
HTES Executive directors
ntE Shum Sai Chit - 650 59 17 726
HEX Chi Bi Fen - 650 59 17 726
BE Yang Yuchuan - 650 - 17 667
FYTES Non-executive director
JIE Guo Mengyong 3% - 20 - 55
BIFH7EE  Independent non-executive
directors
Bmx Kwong Ping Man 75 - 20 - 9
s Sheng Hong 35 - 20 - 55
s Lau Chi Kit ! 161 - - - 161
BRl%? Liu Hoi Keung 2 18 - 7 - 25
324 3,250 264 68 3,906
! 201454298 EE ! Appointed on 29 April 2014
2 201454 F28HEE 2 Retired on 28 April 2014
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(b) ENBRSHFMAL
RER AEBSNZSHFWALE
FhofL (20144 : 3fif) KA A EH -
EHAEEMEHOMER EXHE -
FRFEN T T 230 (20145 : 2f7)
ALZEMemT :

EXFHT - B

(b) Five Highest Paid Individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included 2 (2014:
3) directors of the Company whose directors’
emoluments are disclosed in the above analysis.
The emoluments payable to the rest 3 (2014: 2)
individuals during the year are as follows:

2015 2014
THET
HK$’ 000

TAET
HK$’000

Basic salaries, share options, other

EM2e R EYF &= allowances and benefits in kind 3,357 1,844

BIKECEBER T8 Pension costs-defined
HAREHE contribution plan 106 33
3,463 1,877

Z3hL (20145 : 2fi) Z S H WA £

The emoluments of the 3 (2014: 2) individuals with the

REF B R A TEE highest emoluments are within the following bands:
A
Number of individuals
2015 2014
= 21,000,000/ 7T Nil — HK$1,000,000 1 1
1,000,001 T2 HK$1,000,001 - HK$2,000,000
2,000,000/ 7T 2 1
3 2

(c) # =2015%F K2014F12A318 I F
B ALEBEYERTMNARRES
EAfiEmHFMALTEZNMEER
MAREB S MAREB R 5EE) -
SIERBER A E - RNEE2015F &
2014F12A31H EFE - BEAR
REERAMNGERFTMATREER
EHEMEBRREMAME -

146

(c)

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
any of the directors of the Company and the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office. There was no director of the
Company and the five highest paid individuals
agreed to waive or waived any emoluments during
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.
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14. K 2

a)  FRRENARD RIS S

BOR RER BB T B
1.3 (20144 ¢
0.50511l))

a)

14. Dividend

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year:

2015 2014
TET
HK$’ 000

TER
HK$’000

Proposed final dividend of 1.3 HK cents
(2014: 0.50 HK cents)
per ordinary share

59,774 14,528

BERAKREAFERENRARRE
2016F5 19 BT v REBF e
FHEAE -

b) FARACHERINARAEZERR
M LEFERMEE

FRERSD RS

2014F B R KRS MR
B A% B AR i
0.50/& Il (20134 :
2.007811)

The proposed final dividend is to be approved by
the shareholders at the annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on 19 May 2016.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year:

2015 2014
THETT
HK$’ 000

TR
HK$’000

Dividend recognised as distribution

(B 2E) - during the year (note):

2014 final dividend declared and paid
of 0.50 HK cents (2013: 2.00
HK cents) per ordinary share

21,797 56,201

5 k217,967,8900% I 8 i A20144L
Hx HELBEA0ORBEAEER D
TEBARR I AD (20134  HATRR) o

2014 Bonus issue of 217,967,890 ordinary shares
was distributed on the basis of 1 new share for
every 20 existing ordinary shares (2013: No Bonus
Issue).

o3

EH (1) 2015F3 238 * 600,0004%
TERATEBREmET  ROQR
20156 A1H » 1,453,119,2680% & i@
BAARAZEEmMET FHEHAREAR
A HH AB2015F5 AR 2 RHBEE S
2otk DR RE E2014F128318 1
FE 2R B B H (BN2015%6
A178) » At kS 2 KEBRBEZ R
HE2014F12A31 B IEFERIRE ©

note:

For the reasons of (1) On 23 March 2015,
600,000 ordinary shares were issued pursuant to
the exercise of share options and (2) on 1 June
2015, 1,453,119,268 ordinary shares were issued
pursuant to the Open Offer, details of which are
set out in the Prospectus of the Company dated
8 May 2015, before the record date of the final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014,
i.e. 17 June 2015. As such, final dividend paid
was more than the proposed dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2014.
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15. BR&ER
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(a)

(b)

-
BREABNERBEARAEE A
EIEFEREAN BRAFABEITE
BN RGHE -

RETEESRERBN R GREH
BN zEBETTRRMNETIHE
A E2016F6A1HZ AHBEE R
2015F6 7290 2 AT A% 317 M {E ) ¥
B gtk B E2014F128318 1
FEZERERARESRANNDET -

15. Earnings Per Share
(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per
share has been adjusted for the issue of shares
pursuant to open offer on 1 June 2015 and bonus
issue on 29 June 2015. Accordingly, the basic and
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2014 have been restated.

2014

(RE)

(restated)

KRAREE AEIRER  Profit for the year attributable to
A (FAT) owners of the Company (HK$’ 000) 303,489 287,910
BT EmiR g Weighted average number of ordinary
I E(FAR) shares in issue (thousand shares) 4,219,571 3,593,967
EREAREF Basic earnings per share
(FREE) (HK cents per share) 7.19 8.01
s (b) Diluted

ERBERANERREEMEEE
MBEEEE  NHABRDHTEAER
MEFHEEE - AR AMBEE
MEBTEEBAR - B R A ;AR ES

AEREMS  AREIRERITER
Rz REEERE FFES
BAFEARRBHAZ KD FH
MHEEEE) EBANKRNOERAE -
WEXPEENRDEE - 2R
AR T B P B 1R P 3% 1T B B B H
tE— 8 e

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company
has two categories of dilutive potential ordinary
shares: share options and convertible bonds.

For the share options, a calculation is done to
determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average market price of the Company’s shares
during the period) based on the monetary value
of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated as
above is compared with the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of
the share options.
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NN E SRR s
A REEME WA RF N ERIT
ErRMRES Y RESASREE

The Company’s outstanding convertible bonds
were not included in the calculation of diluted

BRI EE -

earnings per share because the effect of which
were anti-dilutive.

2014

(e E5)
(restated)

NATHEE AEIGEAN  Profit for the year attributable to

wm A (FAT) owners of the Company (HK$’ 000) 303,489 287,910
EETTBRMNE Weighted average number of ordinary

T8 (FhR) shares in issue (thousand shares) 4,219,571 3,593,967
BLES AR R D R Adjustment for share options

(F3) (thousand shares) 72,364 100,216
BB ERMOHLMAT  Weighted average number of

hnEFE & (TR ordinary shares for diluted

earnings per share (thousand shares) 4,291,935 3,694,183

FR#ERT Diluted earnings per share

€=3:9::2(1p) (HK cents per share) 7.07 7.79

16. Lt A& 16. Land Use Rights

AEERLERER ZRERANLE
HEREFEITAT

MERR

KRB RESERFA

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent

prepaid operating lease payments and their net carrying
values are analysed as follows:

2015 2014

FATT

HK$’ 000

FER
HK$’000

In the PRC, held on:

HERAE 49 Medium term leases 177,159 144,386
mENEE Current assets 4,420 3,400
ERBEE Non-current assets 172,739 140,986

177,159 144,386

MR2015F12A31H > BEEE ALY
114,167,000 7t (20144 : 139,958,000
BI) 2T EFERECIEARITEEZE

8 (f3E32) °

As at 31 December 2015, land use rights with a
carrying amount of approximately HK$114,167,000
(2014: HK$139,958,000) have been pledged to secure
bank borrowings (Note 32).
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17. % - BWERRE 17. Property, Plant and Equipment

RELHRET
GE) iR EEIR
Leasehold ~ HEWZ%S  HEREE  WAERE  IARER it (B3 i)
land and Furniture and Construction
buildings ~ Leasehold Plant and office Tooling in-progress
(note (i) improvements  machinery  equipment i (note (ii]) Total
T T T T F TEL
HK$ 000
it Cost
W014E1A1B Asat 1 January 2014 163,601 24,181 516,532 8518 - 10,115 894 497,698 1,221,539
HE Additions 611 - 5723 17 - 124 - 585,763 592,998
Ei Trensfers 499 - 39,158 - - - - (44.087) -
il Disposels - - [667) - - (143) - - @104
EFEE Exchange dlignment 4,048) (570) (13,041) (201) - 220 21 (17,100) (35,201)
HO0t4512331R As at 31 December 2014 and
RaotsE1A1E 1 Janvary 2015 165,003 23611 547,705 8494 - 9,182 873 1020214 1777232
WEHELT Acquiston of subsidaries
IRZVEO) Note 42(2) & (o) 206,831 1871 86,670 4905 2857 234 - - 325,678
Additions 35,748 - 60,493 79 30 3136 - 151,712 250,208
Transfers 102,621 - 185,427 - - - - 268,048) -
it Disposals - - (148) (386) (126) (1,902 (473 - (3,09)
EFSRE Exchange alignment (20,129) (1,068) 36,178 (787) (60) (457) 20) 60,599 (09,292)
1#2015512A31R As at 31 December 2015 510,164 24,414 844,169 12,955 3,061 12,303 380 845345 2,252,791
ZirERAE Accumulated depreciation

and impairment

HooE1A1R As at 1 January 2014 431 2301 203,679 7,35 - 5,08 5% - 285402
Enig Charge for the year 323 2% 53339 40 - a3 178 - 58448
HERHH Eiminated on disposal - - [546) - - (1,233) - - (t,779)
EHRE Exchange algnment [1,11) (570) (4% (181) - (19) (14 - (7.488)
RO01E12E31B R As at 31 Deoember 2014 and

01551 1R 1 January 2015 46455 233 250978 7608 - 5,608 698 - 334673
FmiE Charge for the year 862 0 1,564 1079 1648 1647 150 - 75,643
HERHH Fiminated on dsposel . - (14) (386) (128) [1,846) (49 - 2949
Ef#E Exchange alignment (2318 (1,029) (13,654) (37) - (221) 19 - (17589)
H20155128317 As at 31 December 2015 52,763 23,209 298,746 1,954 1,522 5,188 380 - 309,782
REFE Net carrying values
12015512731 R As at 31 December 2015 457,401 1,185 545,423 5,004 1,539 ATH - 845,345 1,863,009
Ho01ERSIA As at 31 December 2014 118,638 25 26,721 886 - 3574 175 102274 1,442,559
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GEE

(i)

(if)

(ii)

AEENEE L REFRREHR
MEREED T :

notes:

(i)

2015 F3#, ANNUAL REPORT 2015

The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land and

buildings at the end of the reporting period are analysed
as follows:

2015 2014

FERT T T

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

EEFREELD Medium term leases in Hong Kong 7,245 -
FEAREELD Medium term leases in the PRC 450,156 118,638
457,401 118,638

R20154F12A318 M B BB Y
9,624,000 7T (20144 : 2,019,000
BIL)WERNERFAERZIIZHB

(ii

As at 31 December 2015, interest expenses of
approximately HK$9,624,000 (2014: HK$2,019,000) was
capitalised and included in construction-in-progress. An

BERIRZSTMAT analysis of construction-in-progress is as follows:
2015 2014
FTER FHET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
HELHRETF Leasehold land and buildings 160,132 99,501
5 M i 23 Plant and machinery 685,213 922,773
845,345 1,022,274

M20154 128318 EEE B
#7163,650,000/% T (20144 -
160,334,000/ ) 2 0 & + #h & 18
FBEREBEIEARITEEZE
# (M3E32) -

(ii)

As at 31 December 2015, leasehold land and buildings
and plant and machinery with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$163,650,000 (2014: HK$160,334,000)
have been pledged to secure bank borrowings (Note 32).
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RAFEZME BERRBZE

FRERIT

—HETHRETF

— W EEE

— 5 B i 2%
—RE R ARG
—RE

—fa A
—TEREA

18. REW %X

FET
HK$’ 000

152

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment

adopted for the current year are as follows:

HE A 34 - Leasehold land and buildings
FoUzD
ERE
2FE5F — Leasehold improvements
4F25%F - Plant and machinery
42345 - Furniture and office equipment
4EBTHF - Motor vehicles
5% - Ship
2% - Tooling and moulds

18. Investment Properties

Over the shorter of
lease terms or 34
years

2 to 5 years

4 to 25 years

4 to 34 years

4 to 7 years

5 years

2 years

B < Cost
R2014%F1 /818 As at 1 January 2014 168,169
ME 3, 8 # Exchange alignment (4,109)
MR2014F12A318 & As at 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015

201541 A1H 164,060
PE X & Exchange alignment (7,392)
R2015F12831H As at 31 December 2015 156,668
B2itinE Accumulated depreciation
M2014F1H1H As at 1 January 2014 26,846
FAFE Charge for the year 3,288
b 5 58 2 Exchange alignment (686)
R2014F12A31H & As at 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015

20151 A1H 29,448
FRFE Charge for the year 3,242
ME 5, 8 B Exchange alignment (1,458)
"2015612831H As at 31 December 2015 31,232
BREFE Net carrying values
"2015612831H As at 31 December 2015 125,436
R2014%12A31H As at 31 December 2014 134,612
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REMEREEEYERSZ —H F_HK
F-HEENET -

Pl REMERNEERHAUNERENE -

MR2015% 128318  MEKREWEDIES
RITEE 2B (20144 : 134,612,000/
JT) °

MR2015F12H31H - A BEEME
A A4 5138,924,0007 JT (20144 -
161,311,000/ 7T) ° (4 1E B HE A & B &
BECEYSERMEMED - BRIETE
B2EBIAERGHEMBEL 2 HERE
BIEHCTHER  NEEB2REDWER
2015%F K2014F12A31H 2 REEXR A
VERERD

REE2015F12A31HILFE  8EWME
WEEATHBESWA -

REE2014F12A831HIEFEE  &EY
¥FEEZ2HE2 WA ES5,278,000% 7T ¢
HeRBERILAE - LEMENTHS K
A (SR B # X H 49512,0008 7T) 49 &
4,766,000/ 7T °

ERREMENREERE

The investment properties represent the buildings
related to phase one, phase two and phase three of the
Yunxiao properties.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

As at 31 December 2015, no investment properties
(2014: HK$134,612,000) have been pledged to secure
bank borrowings.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2015 was approximately HK$138,924,000
(2014: HK$161,311,000). The valuation was performed
by independent qualified valuers not connected with
the Group. Based on the result of management’s
assessment by making reference to the valuation report
issued by the independent qualified valuers, there is
no impairment on the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment properties as at 31 December 2015 and
2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no rental
income was generated from investment properties.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, rental
income of HK$5,278,000 and rental yield of 4.4%
were generated from the investment properties. The
rental income from investment properties less direct
outgoings of approximately HK$512,000 amounted to
approximately HK$4,766,000.

The carrying amounts of investment properties shown
above comprise:

2015 2014

TERx TAET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000

EFE - RESEFA

In the PRC, held on:
FRERTE 49 Medium term lease

125,436 134,612
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19.
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&

19. Goodwill

2015 2014
FiET

HK$’ 000

TEx
HK$’000

M1 A1H At 1 January - -
W B B B8 A B (Bff 5E42) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 42) 197,144 -
W12A31H At 31 December 197,144 -

PEEAKEREELEMZBHERAT
EBoEEm

EEEERED

Magnesium product business

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating
units identified according to business segment as
follows:

2015 2014
TET

HK$’ 000

TEx
HK$’000

197,144 -

HZE2015F12A31HIEFE - WE#EEH
BERAA (SRR RH RS 601)
51.46%RmFTEEX M ETZERRK
A2 c SR 2 EBRBENEB
BYWETTrameesBHEEENAEE -
HONEINGBEEMNER  RLERHE
BREEEXENBEASHABER Z KK
BR - ZESELBMMTIE SR TE
AR EENECVREBEEREE Y
hFHBREESREET  THEMMEAEXA
7.81% - HE BB MRS RETRN TR E
BEBEHEANERNERERNERREM
BERBIRET AHEAEEREENE
thEZBREFRBSRA RENG (B
EEEHEEELENE)  mEBGHETTD
BEZEVBTNERERANARESRT
BERMNTEBHED - AQBEEEE
MZEBRENEGEEHH TS EYIREAAE
BEBE RO REAE -

During the year ended 31 December 2015, goodwill
was resulted from the acquisition of 51.46% equity
interest of Group Sense (International) Limited (“GSIL”)
(stock code: 601) (Please refer to Note 42 for detailed
information). The business strategy of acquisition of
GSIL is to identify new business opportunities in the
magnesium industry on a separate listing platform
to focus on the magnesium product business and in
particular future development of chain model of circular
economy in magnesium and magnesium product related
business. The recoverable amount of this CGU is
determined based on a value in use calculation which
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by the directors of the Company covering a
five-year period, and a pre-tax discount rate of 7.81%
per annum. Cash flow projections during the budget
period are based on the same expected gross margins
and raw material price inflation the budget period.
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation
relate to the estimation of cash inflow/outflow which
include budgeted sales and gross profit margin, such
estimation is based on the unit’s past performance and
the expectation of the directors of the Company for the
market development. The directors of the Company
believes that any reasonable change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.
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20. B EE

20. Intangible Assets

il a® EfieE BREA T @t
Technical Club Development
know-how  membership costs Trademark Total
TAT TAT TAT TAL TEL
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
KA Cost
R201451 /18 As at 1 January 2014,
2014512A31A & 31 December 2014
2015F1 318 and 1 January 2015 3,687 80 9,092 - 12,859
WERBL Acquisition of subsidiaries
(M342(a) (Note 42(a)) - = 1,560 1,006 2,566
RE Addition - - 361 - 361
fEH Exchange alignment - - (55) - (55)
®2015%12F31A As at 31 December
2015 3,687 80 10,958 1,006 15,731
A BERAE Accumulated
amortisation
and impairment
20141 A18 » As at 1 January 2014,
2014512831 & 31 December 2014
2015F1A18 and 1 January 2015 3,687 - 9,092 - 12,779
FREH Amortisation for the year - - 511 168 679
FARE Impairment for the year - - 599 - 599
R20155126318 As at 31 December
2015 3,687 - 10,202 168 14,057
BEFE Net carrying values
R2015£12831H As at 31 December
2015 - 80 756 838 1,674
20145128318 As at 31 December 2014 - 80 - - 80

SAEEHMAERFERET

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of
amortisation:

F 3 R AR 3E54F
Pz S %<

Development costs
Trademark

3 to 5 years
5 years
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21. RERE

THET
HK$’ 000

156

21. Mining Rights

2% Cost
20141 A18 As at 1 January 2014 611,694
P 3 58 2 Exchange alignment (14,946)
M2014F12A318 & As at 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015

2015F1A1H 596,748
bE 3 38 & Exchange alignment (26,884)
R2015F12831H As at 31 December 2015 569,864
Bt #ERBE Accumulated amortisation and impairment
R2014F1H1H As at 1 January 2014 35,416
FAPE Charge for the year 12,816
ME W B Exchange alignment (982)
R2014F12HA318 & As at 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015

201551 H1H 47,250
FANTE Charge for the year 13,196
M 5, 8 # Exchange alignment (2,657)
A2015F12A31H As at 31 December 2015 57,789
REFEE Net carrying values
MN2015512831H As at 31 December 2015 512,075
MR2014%F12H31H As at 31 December 2014 549,498

BREARTFEIHEREBHENRNAER
REEME AT 2 A E AR IERRE
B MMEREEOICREENBEOARE
B -

MN20155%F 128318 » WEE A REEDE
BRITEE 2K (20144 : 491,689,000
BIT) °

The balance represents two mining rights, the
Serpentine mine located in Donghai County of Jiangsu
Province, the PRC and the dolomite mine located in
Baishan City of Jilin Province, the PRC, which are
amortised by the production quantity over the ore
reserve.

As at 31 December 2015, none of mining rights (2014
HK$491,689,000) have been pledged to secure bank
borrowings.
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22. T EME R F 22. Principal Subsidiaries
(a) FR2015F12A31H AEBNHEE (a) Particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries as
MEARZFFBEWT at 31 December 2015 are as follow:
SRRISYR  1EER ERARE/
EARREH Hexus HREERRAZF#E ARARENERRL AR
Place of Principal Particulars of FENRZELH
incorporation activities and issued share/ Proportion of ownership
and kind of place of paid up interest held Proportion of
legal entity operation registered capital by the Company voting power held
Bk 3
Directly Indirectly
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
AUTAREBERE nE BREALT REESEREE SRR AR 280,332,000 - - 18.49%  7819% 78.49%  78.19%
BRAF The PRC, limted CEEREED Registered and paid up capital
Baishan City Tianan liability company Manufacturing and sale of of RMB280,332,000
Magnesium Resources magnesium-related products
Company Limited n the PRC
B L EREARAR Bt AREALA REBRERR 1000R ZBRERAE.0ET - - 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%  100.00%
Century Sunshing Ecological Hong Kong, limited Investment holding in Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each
Technology Limited liability company
#aEK (M) £RbE nE - FRELLF RRERARR R RERHRE30,000000%T - - 100.00% 100.00% 100,00%  100.00%
ERAR The PRC, limited Investment holding Registered and paid up capital
Century Sunshing (Zhangzhou) liabity company in the PRC HK$30,000,000
Ecological Technology Limited
RERFHRERARAT BE BREMALA REBRERR 10310REBRERAE AT - - T8A9%  7819%  78.49%  78.19%
China Rare Earth Magnesium Hong Kong, limited Investment holding in Hong Kong 10,310 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
Technology Holdings Limited ligbility company
THEEHRREARAA hE - ARELLR RPEREREERA () i R 2B A R%163,60,0007 - - 95.08%  9190% 95.08%  91.90%
Jiangsu Azureblue The PRC, limited EERRENERETH Registered and paid up capital of
Technology Development liability company Manufacturing and sale of RMB163,620,000
Company Limited compound and organic

fertilisers in the PRC

IEERILIARAT R - BRAEAT HRARRAARH 14,160,007 - - 91.30%  9130% 91.30%  91.30%
Jiangsu Longteng The PRC, limited i Registered and paid up capital of
Petrochemical Limited liability company Processing, exploration and RMB14,160,000
sales of serpenting in the PRC
Ming Xin Developments Limted ~~ RBRRES - NEERERR 100RERRERAE %L - - 100.00% 10000% 100.00%  100.00%
EREfAR Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of US$ each

Ming Xin Developments Limited ~ British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

HESHEBIHAERLR e FRELLT MREENRASERNFEANE  ARRARKAARES 0000007 - - 100.00% - 100.00% -
(H3i) The PRC limited liabiity ~ Research and sales of magnesium ~ Registered and paid up capital of
(note i company alloys in the PRC RMBS,000,000
B TERAR hE BREEAA ROEREREERR (B) BEARSRREARE4,774000T - - 100,00% - 100.00% -
The PRC, Limited Licbities SR RENERBER Issued and fuly paid
Manufacturing and sale of RMB42,774,000
compound and organic fertiisers
in the PRC
EE(ER)ERAR BRE BREALR  RAEENSRALR BRo.10BTZBETRARRA - - 51.88% - 51.88% -
(B, i, ) Bermuda, limited Investment holdings in Bermuda 1,437,195,020f%
Group Sense (International) ligbility company Issued and fully paid up capital of
Limited (note i, i, iv & v) 1,437,195,029 of HKS0.10 each
BERERLA hE - ARELLR RPERERAEHERER iR R R R A R 208,204,0007 - - 51.88% - 51.88% -
Hiikv) The PRC, limited liabilities ~ Manufacturing and sales of Registered and paid up capital
ng Tengxiang Magnesium company magnesium related product of RMB208,204,000
Products Company Limited in the PRC

(note il & v)
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B

(i)

(i)

(il)

(iv)

)

RBEHMR - BEMBRAREEMND
BOYHAREEZEBES

HZE2015F12A318 L FEFEMAK

o

K

REZE2015F12 8318 IF FE W EE -

e (EER)ERAA (HREBER]D
RRBREFMRIZBERRGF E
Bt RO B X P E AR £ (B H9E
601) - BEBBERAMB AR ([#E
BEREE]) EEHRERGT  RERE
ERURAEEER EFHAER
REANBRER RHEEFLEERS
ReBERMERZEERES -

REBE G EHIBRRREL -

EREINEESRA/YFEXEEE
AFEIBRAEEFEEERE
MEOARBETEMNBAGR -EER
RAJEMHBARNERGRR
BRI

notes:

(ii

(ii)

(iv)

)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
issued outstanding at the end of the reporting
period.

Incorporated during the year ended 31 December
2015.

Acquired during the year ended 31 December
2015.

Group Sense (International) Limited (“GSIL”) is
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability
and its shares and its shares are listed in the
Main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
601). The principal activity of GSIL and its
subsidiaries (“GSIL Group”) was involved in the
design, manufacture and sale of original design
manufacturing products, electronic dictionary
products and personal communication products,
the provision of electronic manufacturing services
and manufacture and trading of magnesium related
products.

Not audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited.

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries

of th

e Company which, in the opinion of the

directors, affected the results for the year
materially or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries, in the opinion of the directors, would
result in particulars of excessive length.
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b) ZEEEARFEREZNFZ

BB RBFE:

KR
R 3R

Place of

incorporation
Name of registration and
Company operation

R (BER) BRE
BRAFA Bermuda
Group Sense
(International)
Limited

FERERRH
ZHERRRK

R R i
Proportion of
ownership
interests and
voting rights
held by non-
controlling
interests

48.12%

T REA BT RS 2 AR BB
RANPBERBEZ - U THBHEREE

DHEREBARFEYHEMNSHE -

(b) Detail of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests

PTETHERESZZHR Rt FERER

Loss allocated to Accumulated
non-controlling non-controlling
interests interests
2015 2014 2015 2014
TERT THT TERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000

11,895 - 216,794 -

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group’s subsidiary that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.

EE(EE)ERL T Group Sense (International) Limited

2015 2014

TER FHT

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

mENE E Current assets 471,514 -

EREBEE Non-current assets 374,520 -

mEB R Current liabilities (278,424) -

E N =R Non-current liabilities (110,199) -
RAGHEE AEGRER Equity attributable to owners

of the Company 240,617 -

AR R Non-controlling interests 216,794 -
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2015 2014
FTHERT FE T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
WA Revenue 158,906 -
X Expenses (183,591) -
BN E1E Loss for the period (24,685) -
RRFHE AELEE Loss attribute to
owners of the Company (12,790) -
e AR R = JEAE S 18 Loss attribute to non-controlling interests (11,895) -
HAEE Loss for the period (24,685) -
VNN ¥ N ) Total comprehensive loss attributable
THEELRE to owners of the Company (16,947) -
JEIEE S (R E Total comprehensive loss attributable
BB A to non-controlling interests (15,751) -
BREMmEIEAT Total comprehensive loss for the period (32,698) -
BN IEERERRE Dividend paid to non-controlling interests - -
KESEEIFTAIR SN FE  Net cash flows from operating activities 55,597 -
WEEEFTAIR ST FEE  Net cash flows used in investing activities (378,121) -
BB REFTARLMESE  Net cash flows from financing activities 352,581 -
WEMAFRE Net cash inflow 30,057 -

23. REERTZRE

23. Investments in Joint Ventures

2015 2014
FTHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BIEEETE Share of net assets 3,713 -

N —R& &R RIRIE Amounts due from a joint venture
—FERBME - non-current 577 -
4,290 -

U A &R RFIE Amount due from a joint venture

— R - current 885 -

The amounts due from joint ventures included in
investments in joint ventures are unsecured, interest-
free and are not repayable within twelve months from
the end of the reporting period and are therefore shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position as
non-current.

B
TZEAREE  BRERE M
BRRIERE °
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FE U — 54 & A B 2IE885,000% 7T (2014 The amount due from a joint venture of HK$885,000

FE)FFARNEBRGTHEE - AEEFT (2014: Nil) included in the Group’s current assets, are

0 B NERESKEIKE o unsecured, interest-free and recoverable on demand.

AREBERAERNAFBET : Particulars of the Group’s material joint ventures are as
follows:

UTEEZEA
Percentage of

FERERT ERAIBER

BfsE S

Particulars  Place of FrEgEs RER FE1h 5 R

of issued registration Ownership Voting Profit

shares held and business interest power sharing
ERNEBERXEAMRAT  RMB5401560 19.78 20 19.78 RERHEET
(Wi & i) ARE PRC EEEN
Chongging New Standard 5,401,5507T Manufacture
Medical Equipment Co., Ltd and trading of
(note i &) electronic medical
Appliances
AEH ABERRA RMB15,000 e 50 50 50 BIHEETER
(PsEi &) AR®15,0000  PRC Online trading of
Shenzhen Innovation Trading electronic products

Co., Ltd. (note i &ii)

P o notes:
0] REBBETAMELTERATNEZ - (i) Not audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited.
(i) LERAREERRZHREARAREERE - (i) The above investments in joint ventures are

indirectly held by the Company.
TRINFAEBENITERZEERAIZ The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

REPHEER information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not
individually material:

2015 2014

TERx TET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000

BNEEEE R ERE M Share of the joint ventures’ profit for

the period 1,760 -
HAERASE QAR Z2EW  Share of the joint ventures’ total
m AR comprehensive income for the period 1,760 -
AEBREERGIREZ Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
FRE E 4R investments in the joint ventures 3,713 -
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24. A—REBELEZRE 24. Investment in an Associate
2015 2014
FTHET FH T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
EIEEEFE Share of net assets 18 -
—EEEPETFBOT - Particulars of an associate are as follows:
rEEfEREER L
BRI R Y Percentage of
FREERITROFESE Place of ownership interest
Particulars of registration attributable to
issued shares held and business the Group
BMNTEETREERDA AR #3,000,00070 G 30 EEXH
(F3E) (note) RMB3,000,000 PRC Dormant
B EE note:
RCEABSAMEHABERRAEZ © Not audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited.
R—EEEAREEZEHNT - The movement of investment in an associate is as
follows:
2015 2014
FHET T T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
REW] At the beginning of year - -
U BE B A 7] (M 5E42(a))  Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 42(a)) 22 -
JEMGEEE ARG F KX EE  Share of profits and losses of associate (4) -
18 -
AEBERZBECEZHRARBARNT The Group’s shareholdings in the associate comprises
ZEMBARAFE KK equity shares held through wholly-owned subsidiaries of

the Company.
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25. M HEKRE

25. Available-for-sale Investments

2015 2014
THET

HK$’ 000

TERx
HK$’000

EmigE Listed investments
—BMNZ ETIRAEF — Equity securities listed in Australia,
B AFE (K EED at fair value (note i) 10,842 30,391
REBEZRE Investments in Hong Kong
— BT A (MFikiv) - Debt instruments (note ii & iv) 109,118 -
—JEEWRRAFES (M5Eii) - Unlisted equity securities (note iii) 7,300 -
127,260 30,391
PERREDNT A Analysed for reporting purposes as:
MENEE Current assets 10,842 30,391
EMEEE Non-current assets 116,418 -
127,260 30,391
B EE - notes:
0] AHHERERAEENBMN EFTERE (i) The amount represents the Group’s investment in listed

& o AEEBFATIG Fintech Limited ([TTG])
14,744,000 B85 - KRR EEHBE/ILE
2011128 22015938 ATTGZ JEE 1T
EEo

FHRABAREZ RTFEDZEERTS
ZEABMERE -

iy AEBARBREZLMAEREETABRTES
F RN 15.625%E8.125% » L EF F +F »
AEBBZHBY ESFEAR -

B TAZATVENZRERT S HEE
T o

securities in Australia. The Group held 14,744,000
shares of TTG Fintech Limited (“TTG”). Mr. Yang
Yuchuan, a director of the Company, is a non-executive
director of TTG for the period from December 2011 to
March 2015.

Fair values of the investments in listed equity securities
are determined by reference to bid prices quoted in
active markets.

(if) The amount represents the Group’s investment in
listed redeemable debt instruments with fixed interest
range from 5.625% to 8.125% per annum, payable
semi-annually. The Group holds no collateral over this
balance.

Fair values of the investments in debt intruments are

determined by reference to bid price quoted in active
markets.
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(i)

(iv)

ZE BN EBEMA L Z LA B BT
FLTRAFEFZHKE -

R201546F12A31H » 3EEMREIZRERA N
ERATFEGEHEZZEFE AREA N
RRZMETNMEEEEETE  WESR
ABAFEREASEHEE - MARKBRER
EEEIIE -

HZE2015F12A31ALFE REME2E
MXBEPBERACERIHEEREESE
2 6518 % 58 4922,012,0007% T (20144 : #)
112,062,000 L) °

(ii)

(iv)

The amount represents Group’s investments in unlisted
equity securities issued by private entities incorporate in
Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2015, the unlisted equity investments
were stated at cost less impairment because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates was so significant
and the probabilities of the various estimates cannot be
reassembly assessed that the directors are of the opinion
that their fair value cannot be measured reliably.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the net loss
arising on revaluation of available-for-sale investments

recognised in other comprehensive expenses amounted
to approximately HK$22,012,000 (2014: approximately
HK$112,062,000).

26. 78 26. Inventories

2015 2014

FTET FH T

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

R Raw materials 147,617 95,391
&M Work in progress 10,970 1,524

SUAK on Finished goods 89,654 84,485
248,241 181,400
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27. ES R HMEWRKIE - A FKIE 27. Trade and Other Receivables,

ks Prepayments and Deposits

2015 2014

FET T

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

JEWE 5 5KIR Trade receivables 472,719 314,934
pEAES Impairment (206) -
472,513 314,934

FEUE & (Bt 5Ei) Bills receivables (note i) 4,597 28,641
AN RIEBERIES Prepayments and deposits 90,394 30,619
ot i W FR B (B 5Eii) Other receivables (note ii) 34,075 7,310
TR B S 2 175K Deposits placed with financial institutions 5,457 2,275
607,036 383,779

Mt

(a)  A2015%12A318 » fE I Z# 494,597,000
7 7T (20144 : 28,641,000/ 7T) R R &
HARNME A (20144 : <@ A) MEHE - A
BREKEEHAARESE -

(b) 2015 12A31H EMEKRZRETER
& B A9 AT Uk (B 38 (B R 4Y 413,799,000
7T (20144 : 1,448,000 7t) * FEfH B &
B X 442,892,000 T R EWF B4 A
5,256,000/ 7T ©

MR2015F 128318 I EH M EWRIAAS
BB R ERE - (20144 : T T)

g5 REMEWFR - BNRIEBERZE N
TIE®EE -

notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2015, bills receivables of
approximately HK$4,597,000 (2014: HK$28,641,000) will
be matured within six months (2014: six months) after
the end of the reporting period. All the bills receivables
are denominated in RMB.

(if) As at 31 December 2015, other receivables mainly
comprised of value-added tax recoverable in the PRC of
approximately HK$13,799,000 (2014: HK$1,448,000),
prepaid advertising expenses of approximately
HK$2,392,000 and interest receivables of approximately
HK$5,256,000.

As at 31 December 2015, none of the other receivables
are past due and impaired. (2014: HK$Nil)

Trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits
were denominated in the following currencies:

2015 2014
FET FATT

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

AR RMB 566,017 377,749
BT HK$ 27,676 6,030
Hih B Other currencies 13,343 -
607,036 383,779
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M20155F12A31H » REEERE 5 HIAE As at 31 December 2015, the ageing analysis of the
MRS UERZHEEY) T : trade receivables of the Group presented based on the

invoice date was as follows:

2015 2014
THET FABT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
30H AR Within 30 days 153,993 142,784
31£260H 31 to 60 days 134,466 87,955
61£290H 61 to 90 days 148,799 64,703
H#E90 H Over 90 days 35,255 19,492
472,513 314,934
NEBKFESELPZEEEH —RTHBSE The Group allows a credit period normally not more
180H (20144 : F#RiB180H) ° than 180 days (2014: not more than 180 days) to its

trade customers.

WiHEmE R RENE S BB N E:R Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
HAH R TREREE - B @EE X impaired related to a wide range of customers for whom
WMENE SEKZBEE—HEAERAF there was no recent history of default. Trade receivables
RSN ZETEER AN EE that were past due but not impaired related to a number
BRUBEBRNEHRERTDAE BT AT of customers that have a good track record with the
2R REBEBELR EEERATE Group. Based on past experience, the management
VERZEEIEL R EREE - NEEH believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
ERZSAESEETMERS - in respect of these balances as there has not been a

significant change in credit quality and the balance are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

HESERFENREREEH T The movements in the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

2015 2014

FTHET FH T

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

REW] At the beginning of year - -
BRI EREE Impairment losses recognised 206 -
NG At the end of year 206 -
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it pE U E SR FURE BB B 1R E B &R Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
BEWE 58 2 B #206,000/ T (2014 receivables is a provision for individually impaired
£ HAREEEA206,0005 7T (2014 trade receivables of HK$206,000 (2014: Nil) with a
F£:8)  ARCHEENKRE SEHEE gross carrying amount of HK$206,000 (2014: Nil).

The individually impaired trade receivables relate
to customers that were in default or delinguency in
payments and only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered.

FPHRRSCEHRAAR - FAHHER @ 1t
FRWIRRZ — &R0 ©

BEERBECE S EUKBBERR TN Ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past due
N but not impaired:
Fig BB KR E
BRREE 90H MR 91Z180H 181%Z365H
Neither past
due nor Past due but not impaired
Total impaired <90 days 91-180 days 181-365 days
FAT FAT FAT FAIT FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
2015 472,513 437,258 30,592 2,763 1,900
2014 314,934 295,442 14,712 1,953 2,827
RETESERFTEBNIKLEOEER - K In determining the recoverability of trade receivables,
SEHEZEEHEARLEEAHNREEERSE the Group considers any change in credit quality of the
Hi4E R LEIfE B EWFENEZEEE trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted
EAHBEEY mREFPEMEXNAHRE up to the end of the reporting period. The concentration
B WEERRMNEFTEZEER - of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being

large and unrelated.

28. FIEFEERE 28. Investments Held for Trading
2015 2014
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
LEWES Listed securities

-REBEMZAFES © - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong

BNYFE at fair value 26,563 -
- B W2 ’RAE S 0 - Equity securities listed in the PRC
BATE at fair value 12,163 9,900
38,726 9,900
NEFETIZRETSABREABETE - Fair values are determined with reference to quoted

market bid price.
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29. THEERMEE

THET
HK$’ 000

30

168

201451 A1H

29.

Derivative Financial Assets

As at 1 January 2014 -

BT R E S Issue of converitible bonds 304
NEEZ Fair value changes (61)
201412 A31H As at 31 December 2014

K2015%F1A1H and 1 January 2015 243
N EEE Fair value changes (236)
MR2015512H831H As at 31 December 2015 7

TEEMEENEANBRERESFMEATA
SEITEEMNEEDRZIEFBELEZED
ETR - 2 FERTGEREENARE
HIREA-ZEAPEEERAGTE -

P E 75 R IE IR AR A B 75 3R R Y SE33 4K

B 2
5

ROFRIREREFNREEHE

M2015%F12A381H BB BB =/ A
8% —F 2 R 1717 5/263,260,0007% 7T
(20144 : 86,351,000/ 7T) < B F F F| =
£2.76/E £4.05[2 (20144 : 1.9]2 £2.76
E) - IRITHERUAREEE -

MR2015F12A31H » BT HFE XD
24,580,000/ 7© (20144 : 24,994,000/%
L) EEARIRTTEE KM (H7E32) -

30.

Derivative financial assets represent the early
redemption option derivatives embedded in convertible
bonds which allows the Group exercise the early
redemption rights. The fair value is measured using the
Binomial Option Pricing Model at initial recognition and
at the end of the reporting period.

Details of the convertible bonds were disclosed in Note
33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Deposits with Banks and Cash and
Cash Equivalents

As at 31 December 2015, the fixed interest rate on
deposits with banks of HK$263,260,000, (2014:
HK$86,351,000), with maturity over three months but
less than one year, was ranging from 2.76% to 4.05%
(2014: 1.9% to 2.76%) per annum. The deposits with
banks were denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2015, deposits with banks of
approximately HK$24,580,000 (2014: HK$24,994,000)
have been pledged to secure bank borrowings (Note
32).
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RBEHR BERERRASERBEMN At the end of the reporting period, cash and cash
TIEH equivalents comprise of the followings:
x&E
The Group

2015 2014

TER TET

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

EHRTER Short-term bank deposits 392,775 513,169

#7HE R FEHE Cash at bank and on hand 796,480 229,262

1,189,255 742,431
RIEER  BEHSETER TR INER At the end of the reporting period, the weighted
T A1.07E (20144F  147E) : ZZEF = effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was
ZEFHRNEBE LR =18 (201445 : 1.07% (2014: 1.47%); these deposits have an average
=@A) - maturity of less than three months (2014: three months).
B LERRESBERIKRUTEEE: Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the

following currencies:

2015 2014
THER FHET
HK$’000 HK$' 000
AR RMB 401,426 375,751
BT HK$ 495,577 332,800
H A Others 292,252 33,880
1,189,255 742,431
BAARBHEZRERERRSIELE The remittance of cash and cash equivalents
A B 28 S AR B R B e B0 SN BE B A FT AR denominated in RMB out of the PRC is subject to the
R - foreign exchange control restrictions imposed by the

government of the PRC.
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1. EZ R HMENFIE 31. Trade and Other Payables
2015 2014
FTHET TABT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
&2 5508 Trade payables 104,520 135,831
78 U FR 1A Receipts in advance 33,358 45,368
B (P =) Provision (note i) 945 -
JE 5T SR I8 B H th & < U1
(B i) Accruals and other payables (note ii) 217,769 130,266
356,592 311,465

B & - notes:

(i) AEEgETETFERMERT P RH2EIF (i) The Group provides 2 to 3 year warranties to its
RIERTS - BBRIEEK - BRIEERAE customer on certain of its electronic products, under
BEEEXER REBEHELREHES which faulty products are repaired or replaced. The
REBREREZBELBRETMHT - HER amount of provision is estimated based on sales volumes
T EEITIRG RAR B R EITIER] - and past experience of the level of repairs and returns.

The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis
and revised where appropriate.

EmREERBZEHNT : The movements in the provision for product warranty are
as follow:

EmRE
Product
warranties
FHIT
HK$’ 000
M2015F1A1H At 1 January 2015 -
U BB B A &) Acquisition of subsidiaries 1,648
BMOMNER Additional provision 249
BREAz e Amounts utilised during the period (449)
BEKREASE Reversal of unutilised amount (500)
PE 5 & Exchange alignment (3)
A2015F12H831H At 31 December 2015 945
(i)  M2015F12A318 » fE&T FE & H b & (i)  As at 31 December 2015, accruals and other payables
REFTZEREUE BB AREIINE= mainly comprised of consideration payable for acquisition
2 FEfT R B 487,591,000 T (HBERAR of a subsidiary of approximately HK$87,591,000
#72,275,0007T) (20144 : 64,984,000/ (equivalent to RMB72,275,000) (2014: HK$64,984,000),
L) WEWE  BEREEZENRIELD payable for acquisition of property, plant and
14,323,0007% 7T (20144 : 12,653,000/ 7T) equipment of approximately HK$14,323,000 (2014:
LA K2 b 8 5 ¢ I8 4915,555,0007%8 7T (2014 HK$12,653,000) and other tax payable of approximately
F : 6,855,000 7C) ° of HK$15,555,000 (2014: HK$6,855,000).
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M20156F12A318 » XEEENE HHIAE As at 31 December 2015, the ageing analysis of trade
ZEREBEOMUEBEZERHES) WOT payables of the Group presented based on the invoice

date was as follows:

2015 2014
FTET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
30H LA Within 30 days 83,409 72,395
31260H 31 to 60 days 5,127 21,691
61£290H 61 to 90 days 5,694 36,083
#8 3890 H Over 90 days 10,290 5,662
104,520 135,831
KESER2FHIEEH A60H £90HR The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60
(20144 : 90R) - AKER BV HRERRE to 90 days (2014: 90 days). The Group has financial
EHE UERABEMNZFEREESR risk management policies in place to ensure that all
B - payables are settled within the credit timeframe.
32. B & 32. Borrowings
2015 2014
FTHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
RITEE Bank borrowings 331,476 403,673
H b & & (M aEi) Other borrowings (note ii) 193,736 191,741
ERE SRR (M i) Listed subordinated notes (note iii) 670,660 _
REM B ARG Z—{IFE4ER Loan from a non-controlling shareholder
B8 R B K (B aEiv) of a subsidiary (note iv) 110,000 -
1,305,872 595,414
- Borrowings:
—F R Within one year 152,810 303,696
—FUFETBBRAF More than one year but not exceeding
five years 1,068,051 182,520
HBERF More than five years 85,011 109,198
1,305,872 595,414
B AERBBEZFIE  Less: Amounts shown under current
liabilities (152,810) (303,696)
1,153,062 291,718
BE: Borrowings:
B EH Secured 525,212 532,929
K AR (B =il ~ ivRv) Unsecured (notes iii, iv & V) 780,660 62,485
1,305,872 595,414
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EERATERE

172

Borrowings were denominated in the following
currencies:

2015 2014
THERT FH T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
AR RMB 229,040 323,673
BT HK$ 207,589 80,000
ETT Us$ 198,583 191,741
N T SGD 670,660 -
1,305,872 595,414

Mk - notes:

(ii

M2015F12831H  RITEEBR D B D
163,650,000/ 7T * 114,167,000 T * &
7 7T~ 8 JT &24,580,000/8 JT(20144F -
160,334,000/ 7T * 139,958,000/8 JT
134,612,000/ Jt * 491,689,000/ Jt &
24,994,000 70) 2 ANEBME - BE k&
B TR AW HEERRT
TR - R2015612A318 » AEHE
X 4938,096,0007% 7T LA — R T B8 A =) A1l IR 2R
REZARERE—HEMBARAESRMH
ZEABREER - K2014F128318 &
IR E 30 4956,237,0008 L E A AR F —
EERMZEAEREER-

R2015%12A31H » AEE &Ziﬁﬁ%
B424, ooo 00078 LY AR =B — R B A
AR 2 R AIERIEER -

H2015F12A31H - RITEBE Z EFH
FIRF X 54.66/E (20145 : 5.32[F) -

E!

RIE—BHARGBTIEZENB
Re AR (TEESa AR R2
S0BFIVHERGE  BEemAT
Pﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬂj%,ooo,ooo%ﬁih
ZER2015F 12 A7BEETME -
25,000,000 7T 18 E27,000,00

EIEEYE
455
EF’JEZ
° %%
ﬁﬁ'ﬂg
%fm

%aSw
puj

oﬁ?

Bzt ?ﬁEﬁH%ﬁEBDSSFZEﬁ
C WERERGEABRNERERAH

LAT@J%IE{’EEWEF :
K (il)E R R e 2

ZE
%F‘iﬂ
wE] Fﬁigﬂxﬁ)%ﬁ

¢¢l&&%
TE E N T?% =3 uT

(ii

As at 31 December 2015, the borrowings were secured
by property, plant and equipment, land use rights,
investment properties, mining rights and deposits
with banks of the Group amounting to approximately
HK$163,650,000, HK$114,167,000, HK$Nil, HKSNil
and HK$24,580,000 (2014: HK$160,334,000,
HK$139,958,000, HK$134,612,000, HK$491,689,000
and HK$24,994,000) respectively. As at 31 December
2015, the secured borrowings of approximately
HK$38,096,000 were guaranteed by the corporate
guarantee of an ex-shareholder of a subsidiary and a
personal guarantee of an ex-director of a subsidiary.
As at 31 December 2014, the secured borrowing of
approximately HK$56,237,000 was guaranteed by the
personal guarantee of a director of the Company.

As at 31 December 2015, banking facilities of
approximately HK$24,000,000 granted to the Group
were guaranteed by the corporate guarantee of a
subsidiary of the Group.

The weighted average effective interest rate of bank
borrowing and other brrowings as at 31 December 2015
was 4.66% (2014: 5.32%).

Pursuant to a loan agreement entered into by a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
International Finance Corporation (“IFC”) on 30 May
2014, IFC had granted a loan of US$25,000,000 to the
subsidiary. The agreement was amended and restated
on 7 December 2015 with increase in the loan granted
from US$25,000,000 to US$27,000,000.

The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 3.5% per annum
and the amounts due are based on the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

The loan granted by IFC was secured by (i) corporate
guarantee given by the Company; and (ii) pledges
of shares in the Company as owned by Alpha Sino
International Limited (“Alpha Sino”), the substantial
shareholder.

In addition, Mr. Chi Wen Fu, a director and controlling
shareholder of the Company (through his interest in
Alpha Sino), has given an undertaking to IFC to maintain
a minimum level of shareholding in the Company. The
Group and the subsidiary had are complied with certain
covenants, including, among other things, certain
financial covenants, under the loan arrangement.
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(i)

(iv)

MN2015F12A31H - B SR A R 2 Mzt
JB A 7] % 125,000,000 7T (#7193,736,000
B IL) (20144 : 25,000,000 7T (4
191,741,000/ 7)) * M549,280,000/% % 19
(20144 : 344,868,0008 f% {3) (K315 @ A
KRR BETHRA12% (2014F : 12%)) E
MEEETER  EAMBREEROER -

It 38 AN QR R2015F6 A48 &2015F8
HA3H % 17 {& /&75,000,000%7 11 % Tt &
50,000,000 A3 T 2 88 —#t R 88 —#t7.2
ErEZE(BZEEETHERASET)
ZHEEE ZEERTMERSHET I
1§ R2018F6 A4AEIH - EHEERE 2N
R ERFERAET2E - FTHEREZER
ARAZEWEBABER -

KA — R EARZ R R RE KRB
BN BLBAEMMEARER -

R2014F12A31H « NE B ER 7 SK 7
& B £962,485,000/8 T AR GEER o It
BEERAEFELHEE -

AEEEEZEEERAFENT

Borrowings

(ii)

(iv)

2015 F3#, ANNUAL REPORT 2015

As at 31 December 2015, US$25,000,000
(approximately HK$193,736,000) (2014: US$25,000,000
(approximately HK$191,741,000)) has been granted
to the subsidiary by IFC and 549,280,000 shares
(2014: 344,868,000), representing approximately 12%
(2014:12%) of the issued share capital of the Company
at the same date, has been pledged by Alpha Sino as
security for the loan granted.

This represents the carrying amount of the first tranche
and second tranche of 7.2% subordinated notes with the
face value of SGD75 million and SGD50 million (under
the Multicurrency Medium Term Note Programme) which
was issued on 4 June 2015 and 3 August 2015 by the
Company. The notes are listed on the Singapore Stock
Exchange and will mature on 4 June 2018. The weighted
average effective interest rate of listed subordinated
notes is 7.22%. The listed subordinated notes are
guaranteed by various subsidiaries of the Company.

The loan from a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary is unsecured, non-interest-bearing and not
repayable within 12 months.

As at 31 December 2014, the unsecured borrowings
of approximately HK$62,485,000 granted to the Group
were guaranteed by the Company. During the year, the
loan was fully repaid.

The carrying amount and fair value of the Group’s
borrowings are as follows:

HK$’000

1,305,872

REE

Carrying amount

AT

Fair value

2015 2014 2015 2014

TR TR

HK$’000

TRET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

595414 1,305,872 595,414
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33. TR ES
ARRESEEBOZEEENT :

174

M2014%F1 818

33. Convertible Bonds
The carrying values of the liability component of the

convertible bonds are as follows:

As at 1 January 2014

AR E 51
Convertible
Bonds 1
FHT
HK$’ 000

AR ES2
Convertible
Bonds 2
THET

HK$’ 000

i
HK$’000

BITA R RE Issue of convertible notes 110,664 167,861 278,525
ENBREERN B Imputed interest expense charged 9,181 13,976 23,157
2T HE Interest paid (2,652) (4,150) (6,802)
H2014F12A318 & As at 31 December 2014 and

2015F1A1H 1 January 2015 117,193 177,687 294,880
BHRHEFNSRY Imputed interest expense charged 8,955 28,748 37,703
AT R FER R B Interest expense paid and payable (2,529) (8,100) (10,623)
B Repayment (123,625) - (123,625)
H2015F12A31H As at 31 December 2015 - 198,335 198,335

Bt EE - notes:

(i)

MR2014F6H27H  ARRIETALEER
115,000,0005% 7T 2 Al AR & % ([ AJ R &
FA1)UBREIR G - JRBREFIZISEZF
FRFE  BEEIN K- JRRERF
EABEREREI 0BT ARESSE
ARG - THRBREHFIZEEAE A%TH
HfREt M —F 2 AE -

(i)

AR E 1A N B E B AT A R AT 8
o A BERESTENTHREER - K
ARKEEERES -

ABBREFBEEMED - AEARD R
@A) - BEBOOBARDAR  KAE
A SOR IR BB AT - R AR DR
ZHRHBEEDERERTNH -

BEBORNEERE Z2ERFANERR
15.66/F °

e

B

Em MR R (AR E S ] R
| o

o
N

N4 %8 5115,000,0008 L 2 AT R EH1E
20156 A B HAR 2 8E D -

On 27 June 2014, the Company issued convertible
bonds (“Convertible Bonds 1”) with the principal amount
of HK$115,000,000 for cash. The convertible bonds
bear an interest of 4.5% per annum payable in arrear
semi-annually. The convertible bonds entitle the holder
to convert to shares at a conversion price of HK$1.20.
The maturity date of the Convertible Bonds 1 is the date
falling 1 year from the date of issue.

Conversion may occur at any time before maturity date
of the Convertible Bonds 1. The Company will redeem
the convertible bonds if the bonds have not been
converted on maturity date.

The Convertible Bonds 1 contains two components:
liability component and equity component. The liability
component is classified as current liabilities and carried
at amortised costs using effective interest method. The
residual value after recognising the liability component is
classified as equity component.

The effective interest rate of the liability component on
initial recognition is 15.66% per annum.

The equity component is presented in equity heading
“convertible bonds equity reserve”.

Convertible Bonds 1 with the principal amount of
HK$115,000,000 were fully redeemed upon maturity in
June 2015.
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GERE

(i)

MN2014F6H27H KRR EITAEER
180,000,000/% T 2 A] # ik & 5 ([FI R AR &
H2) IRER € - AT RIREHIRISEZF
MR BEFIMN—K - JRERERE
BABREZEEREI208TEAIBRKES
ARG - AMRKRESFZE A AR
MR ESHFHITEHRAMEE M2 B ([H
BR1) - Al fR & 528 5 AR AIS0R MA A
RIFLELEEMBAME  ATHEEA G ER
Bk —ARBRER—F-

A BB 2R B BT B T
o A BMERESFTERNEHAEER K
AABEEERES  IRARRAREES
TRZGEHR R TEERER T AR -

ABREFEENERD  STESREE
wo (MiE29) ~TESmEERSD BE
MO RERED BESNDOEAERDA
B A BRI SRR B ERAT IR - 3280
BEEEESBRTLESREE - ERERE
ROBEAMTESBEBE  BEERVIARERE
RAZERARER B RETEENFE
ZRFEHERTET - MBREBEIERR
bt o AR [T R BB S i R R 4 ) P

EX I

BEIAORVAERR Z2ERFNER
15722 -

Greenhouse Century Limited & 7] # f% & %2
ZFEEA A o IRIBERAEEIR(E0.96998 7T -
[ERRAEIEY I Tl € Eal s NN
it 2 &% % 17185,570,836% I 10 - ¥ B @ 2
B AR A A B H A2014946 8208 201595
A29H8 K2015%F6 298 2 A ff

notes:

(ii

2015 F3#, ANNUAL REPORT 2015

On 27 June 2014, the Company issued convertible
bonds (“Convertible Bonds 2”) with the principal amount
of HK$180,000,000 for cash. The convertible bonds bear
an interest of 4.5% per annum payable in arrear semi-
annually. The convertible bonds entitle the holder to
convert to shares at a conversion price of HK$1.20. The
maturity date of the Convertible Bonds 2 is two years
commencing from the date of issue of the Convertible
Bonds 2 (the “Term”). The maturity date shall, upon prior
notice in writing by the holder(s) of the Convertible Bonds
2 to the Company thirty days in advance, be extended
for another one year from the last day of the Term.

Conversion may occur at any time before maturity
date of the Convertible Bonds 2. The Company will
redeem the convertible bonds if the bonds have not
been converted on maturity date or redeem when the
Company exercises the redemption rights as pursuant to
the terms and conditions of the bond instrument.

The Convertible Bonds 2 contains four components:
derivative financial assets component (Note 29),
derivative financial liability component, liability
component and equity component. The liability
component is classified as current liabilities and carried
at amortised costs using effective interest method.
The early redemption option is classified as derivative
financial assets. The extension option is classified as
derivative financial liabilities and its fair value measured
using Binomial Option Pricing Model at initial recognition
and at the end of the reporting period were both equal
to HK$Nil. The residual value is classified as equity
component and presented in equity heading “convertible
bonds equity reserve”.

The effective interest rate of the liability component on
initial recognition is 15.72% per annum.

Greenhouse Century Limited is the holder of the
Convertible Bonds 2. Based on the adjusted conversion
price of HK$0.96998, it is estimated that 185,570,836
Shares will be allotted and issued upon full conversion
of the Convertible Bonds. For details, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated on 20 June
2014, 29 May 2015 and 29 June 2015.
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34. EZEW A 34. Deferred Revenue

2015 2014

TEx THET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000

2 U BRE FE A B B BT B 38 Government grants received related

to assets 69,552 70,333
BRESBEEZER ALUTARZESE In order to encourage the development of magnesium
EREARAANR2012F EE M F] L industry, Baishan City Tianan Magnesium Resources
—iE e BEZHE SHWBFREM Co., Limited entered into an agreement with the local
HBLUMREZEBEEEZEESRE AR RHF government in 2012. Pursuant to the agreement, the
BB (TEBD) AMEHEERBERRESY local government agree to provide financial assistance
¥ BENMEBERER - (the “Assistance”) to Baishan City Tianan Magnesium

Resources Company Limited to improve their production
technology and enhance the capacity of the property,
plant and equipment.

EHE2015F12A31H I FE » ANEEYTEL During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
B B B &) 52,486,000 T (HHE R AR has received part of the Assistance of HK$2,486,000
#2,000,0007T ) (20144 : #)/4546,387,000 (equivalent to RMB2,000,000) (2014: approximately
B (e N AR B36,780,000T)) ° HK$46,387,000 (equivalent to RMB36,780,000)).

TR E B sk BrEWEIR - VIR TERAE The Assistance received or which becomes receivables
WA R EB MBI E LMY - 8% 8 is initially recognised as deferred revenue and
FIHEESEr AFHANEBRRER - subsequently recognised in profit or loss over the life of

a depreciable asset by way of as a reduced depreciation
charge expense.

35. IEEFIE 35. Deferred Taxation
FRARGRAEVERRAKRER 2 BELEHIEL The components of deferred tax balances recognised in
EREVMER S R H =g T the consolidated statement of financial position and the

movements during the year are as follows:

EEXEBRIEER Deferred Tax Liabilities

) 1% AERER
ﬁﬁ% iiﬁﬁﬁ% Property’ plant and Mﬁﬁg %E‘l’

Mining rights Land use rights equipment Intangible asset Total

2015 2014 2015 24 2015 01 2015 01 2018 24
Tér TEn TR TET  fAn TEL  THR TEn TR
HKS'000  HKS000 HKS'000  HKS000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000

MAR Asat 1 January 107,699 112873 16,800 17,624 538 95 - - 125,087 131492
KEHELE Acquisiton of subsidaries

(I (Note 42() - - - - 82 - 166 - 248 -
HARABERAL  Credited to the consoldated

AEE statement of proft or oss and

other comprehensive income (2,557) 2439 (391) (397) (474) (397) (33) - [3,459) (3,283

L Exchange alignment @5 27 (1) (1) () (20) - - (549 (318
1M2R31A As at 31 December 100,301 10769 15668 16,600 14 5% 133 - 116,383 125037
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36. &A1 A IR A

EE

R EE0.02 T 2
* AR

R2014F1 /418 »
20145128318 &

36. Share Capital of the Company

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.02 each

As at 1 January 2014,
31 December 2014

KRB

Number of

shares
Tz
000

@S
Share
capital
FHET
HK$’ 000

2015%1 A1H and 1 January 2015 5,000,000 100,000
#n Increase 0) 5,000,000 100,000
H2015F12H31H As at 31 December 2015 10,000,000 200,000
ERITREHE : Issued and fully paid:

20141 818 As at 1 January 2014 2,600,671 61,810
i 2% 3@ & Allotment of ordinary shares 155,077 3,102
WUABE R B st 238772 Issue of ordinary shares upon

EERE scrip dividend scheme 63,546 1,271
1TEBE R REA 31T Issue of ordinary shares upon

EERAR exercise of share options 86,345 1,727
HA2014F5128318 K As at 31 December 2014

2015F181H and 1 January 2015 2,905,639 67,910
(TR BT Issue of ordinary shares upon

3 A% exercise of share options (if) 55,761 1,115
Wi AR EHTE®AE Issue of ordinary shares under

open offer (i) 1,453,119 29,062
RIEAT IR B 1T3 1T EBAY  Issue of ordinary shares under

bonus issue (iv) 217,968 4,359
B BTG Cancellation of issued shares (v) (23,000) (460)
MN2015512H31H As at 31 December 2015 4,609,487 101,986
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B &E -

(i)

(ii)

M2015% 4 A23H » AN A &) i iA 1§ 2 58
475,000,000,0000% A% 12 # % & B% 4~ M
100,000,000/ 7T (% A&5,000,000,000
B B 1) 15 nuizoo,ooo oooz?ssy_z (DA
10,000,000,0000% A% 17 ) - 1% %& A% {5 82 &
%Bﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁ?ﬁﬁ%tm o

REBE2015F12A31B IEEER AR
A)IE N4 F 5 17 {5 (B § 1R0.41947% T %%
TRADEE 55,761, 14888 R% 15  FE15 5

2 RIMTEESS ©

R2015%F681H
% 3R 201545 A 28E| i%—i;
s

MEBBERMH2H *iﬂ&o.zto;‘%m
ZEIRHEIT AR EE - 3171,453,119,268
AR FT AR o FFIEE AR AR A R2015%F5 A
SHTIBZERER -

M2015F6H29H * AR FBBILE EHK
f& R R2015F6 A17H & ﬁ*ﬁ:ﬂ&iﬁ*ﬁ
B (0 FEBL B AT IR 7 B 1T AT PR 28 1T - 32

e

77217,967,800 # & 15 - FBHEHR AR
Al Z B -

RER » RRBIARRQFIALNKE074,000
BIL(RFTER) ®KE §039/§7E27JME
5B 1% 70 B 22 B B [2123,000,000 8% 48 &

AR EE0.02B L2 LA - BB 2%
MERFATH - At - ARAZE T
A% 7 T B AE FE B R o BE B AR 10 JE 1 2 s
BERARBIRGEERSH - Ll iE
@ﬁﬁ$@$ﬁ?§ﬂ§$f%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ U
REARazEREEFEREBRAT -

notes:

(i)

On 23 April 2015, the Company increased the authorized
share capital from HK$100,000,000 (divided into
5,000,000,000 shares) to HK$200,000,000 (divided into
10,000,000,000 shares) by the creation of an additional
5,000,000,000 shares, which will rank pari passu with all
existing shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
issued and allotted an aggregate of 55,761,148 shares
at a weighted average exercise price HK$0.4194 per
share. For more details, please refer to Note 38.

On 1 June 2015, the Company issued 1,453,119,268
new Shares by way of open offer at HK$0.40 per share
on the basis of every two existing Shares held by
qualifying shareholders as at 28 May 2015. Details are
stated in the Company’s prospectus issued on 8 May
2015.

On 29 June 2015, the Company issued 217,967,890
new Shares by way of bonus issue on the basis of every
twenty existing Shares held by qualifying shareholders
as at 17 June 2015. Details are stated in the Company’s
relevant announcements.

During the year, the Company repurchased 23,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each of the Company
at an aggregated consideration of approximately
HK$9,074,000 before expenses at weighted average
price HK$0.39 per share on the Stock Exchange. The
repurchased shares were cancelled during the year.
Accordingly, the issued share capital of the Company
was reduced by the nominal value thereof. The premium
payable on the repurchase was charged against
the share premium account of the Company. The
repurchases were effected by the Board pursuant to
the mandate from shareholders, with a view to benefit
shareholders as a whole in enhancing the net assets and
earning per share of the Company
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37. KR alMBEMRRERFEE 37. Statement of Financial Position and
Reserves of the Company
(a) BN &T (a) Statement of Financial Position
M2015F12HA31H As at 31 December 2015
2015 2014
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
ERBEE Non-current assets
YE - WEREE Property, plant and equipment 637 1,142
RHBRRIZIEE Investments in subsidiaries 2,108 2,108
AHHE 2 IRE Available-for-sale investments 109,118 -
111,863 3,250
RBEE Current assets
g 5 & H bW s - Trade and other receivables,

ENRERZS prepayments and deposits 10,452 1,172
BIEEBEZIKE Investments held for trading 26,563 -
PTHESREE Derivative financial assets 7 243
I NGIE S Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,750,674 1,300,601
RITIFER Deposits with banks 238,680 -
ReEMERIREIER Cash and cash equivalents 339,539 21,288

2,365,915 1,323,304
W REaE Less: Current liabilities
B 5 R HMERR Trade and other payables 6,353 2,047
FEAHBT B A R 3K Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,789 -
JETETIS R Income tax payable 1,872 -
PBEREH Financial guarantee contracts 95 81
Al A% (E 5 Convertible bonds 198,335 117,193
208,444 119,321
REEEZRE Net current assets 2,157,471 1,203,983
EERERRBAERE Total assets less current liabilities 2,269,334 1,207,233
BWERBER Less: Non-current liabilities
A A% E 5 Convertible bonds = 177,687
BE Borrowings 670,660 -
670,660 177,687
EEEE Net assets 1,598,674 1,029,546
AATEBAESLR Capital and reserves attributable
k& to owners of the Company
[N Share capital 101,986 67,910
i Reserves 1,496,688 961,636
ERAEE Total equity 1,598,674 1,029,546
& =2 R2016F3 7238 #t fF K 55 7 F) 3% The financial statement was approved and authorised
KRB HE  WHNWNEERREE for issue by the board of directors on 23 March 2016
and was signed on its behalf by:
M E ot
Chi Wen Fu Shum Sai Chit
EF EZ
Director Director
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(b) f#E (b) Reserve

ErER  ThEES
B RHRE fife Bk BREGE REEH
Capital  Convertible Share EffRE

Share Share  redemption bond option  Revaluation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
TR TAT TAT TAR TAR TR TER TAR
HKS'000 HK$' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000

R014E1A1R As at 1 January 2014 61810 739,232 3499 - 6,136 - 45,006 895,683
Epgd| Proft for the year - - - - - - 3,461 3,461
EREHZENA  Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - - - -
ERZEUAEE  Totl comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - - 3461 3,461
RELER Allotment of orcinary shares 3102 113,206 - - - - - 116,308
BEIERE Share option lapsed - - - - (30) - 50 -
imhkEs Issue of convertble bonds - - - 16,779 - - - 16,779
BRRERE Final dhidend paid 1271 (12,990) - - - - - (11,719
TEEREREAZ  Isoue of ordinery shares upon
Exil exercise of share options 1727 4714 - - [2.516) - - 46,952
RESERANZZ  Eoulty seted share-based
%% transactions - - - - 208 - - 2082
H2014512A31AK  As at 31 December 2014
20151518 and1 January 2015 67,910 887,189 3,499 16,779 5,652 - 48,517 1,029,546
Emf Profit for the year - - - - - - 250 250
EREMRENL  Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - (2,463 - (2,463

ERZEUALE  Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - - - 0469 2500 5
BARARE Final dhidend paid - (21,797) - - - - - (21,797)
BETBRES Redemption of convertile
bonds - - - 4.330) - - 4,33 -
XM RE Share option lapsed - - - - 0129 - 2128 -
REEEROATZ  Equiy settld share-based
5 transactions - - - - 25% - - 252
REDERERET  Issue of odinary Shares under
L ERR apen offer 2902 545,015 - - - - - 574077
BEIREAHEE  ssue of ordnary shares under
LEER bonus issue 4359 (4,409 - - - - - (0]
TEEREEEAZ  Issue of ordnary shares upon
2ER exercise of share optons 1115 8471 - - (1,199 - - 2,387
iyl Share cancellation (460) 8,514 490 - - - (460) (0,074

120155124318 As at 31 December 2015 101,986 1,420,855 3,959 12,443 4,853 (2,463) 57,041 1,598,674
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38. B 38. Share Options

200812 A3H + AR & R LB R
e ([ZET 28] - BIRZTE - AR F
RLEBRETFASEEBESNES - &%
EHEMHERAA 2HEE el #
fER IRISHER RE BEFEREBE
H((EER2EE])  UREBAQRRG -

BRETZEFEENEECNEE - 17
FEeE T M RR LR mE L - A
88 18 T 2 A6 1 78 B ekt & & fr) LAt 1R 3R
KA — 2K e

RBELTSEERATERE  (BORE
RERZ AR ATHRERMIE
ETRZWHE: (O RERBRERZ
BHEIRT R AR 5 AN R B RERAM
PIEER 2 FIE R 2EE - A
SEVEEZFTRETEENRSERDRE
MRERHE -

BhEENAERSEEEERERLA
HIERTEZTERRDRAK B RS A
17E -

On 3 December 2008, a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the
Company. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant
options to the directors or employees of the Group,
consultant or adviser, distributor, contractor, supplier,
service provider, agent, customer and business partner
of the Group (the “Eligible Participant”) to subscribe for
shares in the Company.

Options may be granted on such terms and conditions
in relation to their vesting, exercise or otherwise as
the directors may determine in its absolute discretion,
provided that such terms and conditions shall not be
inconsistent with any other terms conditions of the
Scheme.

The subscription price is not less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares on Main Boards
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of offer of the option; (i) the average
prices of the shares on Main Board as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer
of the option; and (i) the nominal value of the shares.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

The share options are exercisable only if the Eligible
Participants remain in the service of the Group from the
grant date of the share options up to the designated
exercise date.
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20154 2015
RAMRE
AR %
#20155 ; itz 20155
181855 § (M) 12B81R%E
Adjustments
Options Options for Open
Held at granted exercised lapsed Offer and Held at Exercise
1 January  during the during during Bonus Issue 31 December price
2015 year the year the year (note) 2015 (note)
HK$
) EE
Employees 67,700,000 - (49,899,963 (5,933,394) 17,419,878 29,286,521 0.39129
27,400,000 - (1,300,000)  (19,167,435) 7,612,514 14,545,079 0.62606
- 13,500,000 (3,061,185) - 3,750,691 14,189,506 0.78258
(B) 2
Directors
X E 20,000,000 - - - 5,556,580 25,556,580 0.39129
Chi Wen Fu
Lt 9,000,000 - - - 2,500,461 11,500,461 0.39129
Shum Sai Chit
HES 15,000,000 - - - 4,167,435 19,167,435 0.39129
Chi Bi Fen
BE - 15,000,000 - - 4,167,435 19,167,435 0.78258
Yang Yuchuan
DEE 3,000,000 - - - 833,487 3,833,487 0.39129
Guo Mengyong
Bmx 5,000,000 - - - 1,389,145 6,389,145 0.39129
Kwong Ping Man
Bt 4,000,000 - (1,500,000) - 1,111,316 3,611,316 0.39129
Sheng Hong
AEMH - 5,000,000 - - 1,389,145 6,389,145 0.78258
Lau Chi Kit
123,700,000 - (51,399,963 (5,933,3%4) 32,978,302 99,344,945 0.39129
27,400,000 - (1,300,000)  (19,167,435) 7,612,514 14,545,079 0.62606
- 33,500,000 (3,061,185) - 9,307,271 39,746,086 0.78258
151,100,000 33,500,000  (55,761,148)  (25,100,829) 49,898,087 153,636,110
st : FBHA2HARQAHHR2015565829R note:  For details, please refer to the announcements of the
20156298 2 A ° Company dated 29 May 2015 and 29 June 2015.
R2015F12A31H ' st2|I B T HAR{TEZ As at 31 December 2015, Options to subscribe for a
REMLHEAS K 0] R R8153,636,110A I (7 o total of 153,636,110 Shares were outstanding under the

Scheme.
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20145 2014
FRARU FRTE FRENX R2014%F
2B R ZERE 2B RRE 12A831H
)
Options Options Options
Held at granted exercised lapsed Held at
1 January during during during 31 December Exercise
2014 the year the year the year 2014 price
HK$
(A) {EE
Employees 135,445,000 - (67,745,000) - 67,700,000 0.5
40,000,000 - (12,600,000) - 27,400,000 0.8
(B) E=
Directors
X E 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000 0.5
Chi Wen Fu
Lt 12,000,000 - (3,000,000) - 9,000,000 0.5
Shum Sai Chit
FUESPAS 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000 0.5
Chi Bi Fen
BRE 5,000,000 - (2,000,000) - 3,000,000 0.5
Guo Mengyong
BB Im L 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 0.5
Kwong Ping Man
BRE 3,000,000 - - (3,000,000) - 0.5
Liu Hoi Keung'"
Bt 5,000,000 - (1,000,000) - 4,000,000 0.5
Sheng Hong
200,445,000 - (78,745,000) (3,000,000) 123,700,000 0.5
40,000,000 - (12,600,000) - 27,400,000 0.8
240,445,000 - (86,345,000) (3,000,000) 151,100,000

1. MN20145F4F28H R (E °

1.

Retired on 28 April 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, Options to subscribe for a
total of 151,100,000 Shares were outstanding under the
Scheme.

R2014F12A8318 ' sTE|IETHARTTHFE 2
S LA R EE151,100,0000 i 15 °
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HR2015F12A31H » MARITEBERES A

TEmBEH  TTERRITEE -

EEAH

Grant date

J& % B 5

Expiry date

Options outstanding at 31 December 2015 have the
following expiry date, exercise period and exercise

prices.

T BRITEE
Exercise
prices per
Share

BT

HKS

Exercise period

BREHE
Number of
Options

2011%12H30H 2015F10A31H B2012F11A1HERE 0.39129 -
2015%F10A31H

30 December 2011 31 October 2015 From 1 November 2012 to
31 October 2015

2011412 A30H 201712 A30H H2012F11 A1H#ERE 0.39129 91,677,971
2017912 A30H

30 December 2011 30 December 2017 From 1 November 2012 to
30 December 2017

2011412 A30H 2017412 A30H H2016F11A1H#ER 0.39129 7,666,974
2017412 A30H

30 December 2011 30 December 2017 From 1 November 2016 to
30 December 2017

20133 A19H 2015%10A31H B2013F11A1HER 0.62606 -
2015%F10A31H

19 March 2013 31 October 2015 From 1 November 2013 to
31 October 2015

20133 A19H 2018%F12A31H B2013F11A1HER 0.62606 14,545,079
201812 A31H

19 March 2013 31 December 2018 From 1 November 2013 to
31 December 2018

201551 H6H 2018F10A31H B2015F11A1HREE 0.78258 5,622,447
2018%F10831H

6 January 2015 31 October 2018 From 1 November 2015 to
31 October 2018

201551 H6H 2020%F10A31H B2015F11A1HEE 0.78258 34,123,639
202010 A31H

6 January 2015 31 October 2020 From 1 November 2015 to
31 October 2020

153,636,110
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RAFHRBE  ZAt8ETAHETZAR
NEIRMBRE (B Ll S RITHEERE)
#375,280,443K - HER A RAGIEHBD
BITRALBA6% « ZaT &l 2 T F B A
AB3E - W MN2018FE 12 A3H f&@ i °

HE2011F12A31HILFE - BREMNER
BFERM N —FRMAEEERAETE -
BAZBEEANESFERAZARNE
E AN RE2A7TE T (DM D HFEY
FEELFHE)  Ll1TEE EHRE
O] ¥} 1Z % #£39.20% %2 66.37% * F € &
J£ B F R0.33% % 1.08% ~ #)1 =64 8 5t
B 4 A HA 2 1.43% 0K B3R o IR TR HARR (B
ElIRMIZEEREMTEMRIE - TIRER
200657 A31H £2011F12A31H W & H
BENRTHMETEF L - &8 E2015F12
AS1HIEFE » #9296,0005% 7T (20144 :
596,000/ t) Bt AGABE R EME2E
WEmER -

H E2013F12A31HILFE  BRENE
BEAFEFEAM IR - FHEMBHET
BEAET - 455,830,000 7T ° & A
ZEEEANESZFERRARE LA
HH B80T (EMBHE DN T E
ERAAR) - LT E  BHEEN T
42.05%%52.22% - FEERBFIE0.11%
Z0.58% * #91.655.24 T8 =1 B8 A% 4 & 1A
K2.47%k B K - 12 TE B AR (B O] 3R A0 1Z %
fRZMmar = M KR - JHAR % 200799 A
25H £2013FE3A19H W& B R E W 45t
D ES Y - HE2015F12A31H IH4F
[§  #1361,000/% 7T (20144 : 1,486,000
B BT AGREEBEREMEERER
ﬁq °

As at the date of the annual report, the total number
of Shares of the Company available for issue under
the Scheme (including the above Options outstanding
not yet exercised) was 375,280,443, representing
approximately 8.16% of the issued share capital of the
Company as of the date thereof. The remaining life of
the Scheme is approximately 3 years and to be expired
on 3 December 2018.

The Options granted during the year ended 31
December 2011 determined using the Black-Scholes
valuation model. The significant inputs into the model
were share price of HK$0.217, at the grant date and
adjusted for the effect of the share subdivision, exercise
price shown above, standard deviation of expected
share price return of 39.20% to 66.37%, annual risk-
free interest rate of 0.33% to 1.08%, expected life of
Options of approximately 1 to 6 years and dividend
payout ratio of 1.43%. The volatility measured at the
standard deviation of expected share price returns is
based on statistical analysis of daily share prices from
31 July 2006 to 31 December 2011. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, approximately HK$296,000
(2014: HK$596,000) were charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

The fair value of Options granted during the year ended
31 December 2013 determined using the Black-Scholes
valuation model was approximately HK$5,830,000. The
significant inputs into the model were share price of
HK$0.80, at the grant date and adjusted for the effect
of the share subdivision, exercise price shown above,
expected volatility ranged from 42.05% to 52.22%,
annual risk-free interest rate of 0.11% to 0.58%,
expected life of Options of approximately 1.6 to 5.2
years and dividend payout ratio of 2.47%. The volatility
measured at the standard deviation of expected share
price returns is based on statistical analysis of daily
share prices from 25 September 2007 to 19 March
2013. During the year ended 31 December 2015,
approximately HK$361,000 (2014: HK$1,486,000) were
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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39.

186

HZE2015F 12 A31HILFEIRE 2B
EoERMAOR — FTRTBEEEERER
& T A F{E A #3,660,0005 7T @ A%
HEEXMNBEEFERZARNIE L BB
B E0.69%8 T (EMBD IR FEER
FE) - FMiTEE BHREEHNR
43.47%%49.69% * FEERMBFIE0.71%
Z1.39% ° #12.32%5.324F 78 5t I IR #EF
HI & 1.290%)k B 3K o L TE Hi R B | R A9 12
ERZEMTE WO KE - TR IE F200948
A19H £201248 A28 M F B IR B W&
AWM ETESE - H 22015128311
I F - %91,871,000/8 7T (20144 : #)
Bt AGEEBR AEMEEmIREERR -

H E2015F12A831BIEFEHE 8
2,528,0005 7T (20144 : 2,082,000/ 7T)
R BERZNRAFAGEBERE
HEEmWERA -

iR
(a) EXEE

EEEFOLEICE NN
A mER
BBz BEBRNKE
RigZEART

The fair value of Options granted during the year ended
31 December 2015 determined using the Black-Scholes
valuation model was approximately HK$3,660,000.
The significant inputs into the model were share price
of HK$0.69, at the grant date and adjusted for the
effect of the share subdivision, exercise price shown
above, expected volatility ranged from 43.47% to
49.69%, annual risk-free interest rate of 0.71% to
1.39%. Expected life of Options of approximately 2.32
to 5.32 years and dividend payout ratio of 1.29%.
The volatility measured at the standard deviation of
expected share price returns is based on statistical
analysis of daily share prices from 19 August 2009 to
28 August 2012. During the year ended 31 December
2015, approximately HK$1,871,000 (2014: HK$NIl) were
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the share-
based payments of approximately HK$2,528,000 (2014
HK$2,082,000) were charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

39. Commitments

(a) Capital Commitments

2015 2014
TET
HK$’ 000

TER
HK$’000

Capital expenditure in respect of
the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment contracted for but
not provided in the consolidated
financial statements

11,693 88,894
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(b) BREHNAIE (b) Operating Lease Commitments

KEBEBRHEA The Group as Lessee
REERBEAARHIEEHEREHEE The Group leases various office premises, staff
FEEFE BIFEENER - %E quarters and warehouses under non-cancellable
HEZ2HE ABRESZ2BGARRE lease agreements. The leases have varying terms,
HEFNEETR - escalation clauses and renewal rights.
RBEHRR REEFRBREREBED At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
ATESE S EEON T B E 2 e commitments for future minimum lease payments
NHRERSEREENT under non-cancellable operating leases which fall

due as follows:

2015 2014

FE T TAT

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

—F R Within one year 4,340 2,937
E_FEERF In the second to fifth years

(RIEERME) inclusive 7,752 2,459

BBAE Over five years 6,734 2,955

18,826 8,351
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0. EXNEEATIRGFRBERS

BERAMBRESZAREIN  FALEE
BETATEZREALRS

(@) TEEEAEME

40. Material Related Party Transactions
and Connected Transactions
Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into the following
significant related party transactions during the year.

(a) Key Management Compensation

2015 2014

TERT T

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

EFE (MIFE13) Directors (Note 13) 4,934 3,906
HtFrZEEB AR : Other key management personnel:

FehHEMOHEE®EH  Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits 3,463 1,877
8,397 5,783

(b) tXEEEEMEREMAREL
AR AR R Z G F E& R
FrERBEEERmFR2 RMEI2 -

(c) ®2015F8A20H @ S E K &
Earnmill Holdings LimitedT 32 & 4 1#
& BN AR E1,437,195,0290%
BEER 2EERMD  -FHE2HT
RARRR20156F8 20 B 2 N
W o

(d) SHEER

m—REaEARHEE ()

GER

0 A-MAAARNHENEAKEEE
B PRI DB R G -
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Sales to a joint venture (note(i))

(b) Mr. Chi Wen Fu has given an undertaking to IFC
to maintain a minimum level of shareholding in

the Company as collateral of the borrowings as
detailed in Note 32.

(e) GSIL and Earnmill Holdings Limited entered into
an underwriting agreement on 20 August 2015

in relation to an open offer of 1,437,195,029
offer shares of GSIL. Details are stated in the
Company’s Announcement dated 20 August 2015.

(d) Sales of goods

H2015F2H26H %
2015512831 HHMA
For the period from

26 February 2015 to
31 December 2015
FExT

HK$’000

3,363

note:

(i) The sales to a joint venture were made according
to the published prices and conditions offered to
the major customers of the Group.
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41. kK REXRF 41. Non-Cash Transactions

HZE2015F12A31HILFE  KEEKE
—RHNBAR AR EHER  REMEKMNU
e 45 - F15 R E42(0) »

KR FARAER2014F5 230 A 2 AR
R EE & R2014F6H278 L& 0.70
7 TT B 1T I Bt 8463,545,6690% & A% E0.02
BT 2RI » 45 F 5h2013F KR E A%
BEBUNBRAQNRRNERBEREZ
BR-EBBREAANRARBLBRES
FTEHEZEREEN - FEFL2HEARAR
2014523 MM BIK o

42. WEH B |

(a) WEEHEEER

R2014F12 8190 » REBE 2 EH B
A AIMing Xin Developments Limited
FNT —HEBEWER —HRED
FoNRERREESEE (KRHOR
g% : 601 ) 500,000,0000% 3R & & 15
1.239,532,000/% 1 iz 10 + X & 5 Al
/£229,600,0007% 7T % 76,650,000
JL° % E X 5 E R2015F2H26H 7T
B o 7N £2 B TR K 18 1B 15 S B R
251.46% X RE S o

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
acquired a subsidiary and the consideration had not
been settled by cash at the end of the reporting period.
For details, please refer to Note 42(b).

On 27 June 2014, the Company issued and allotted
63,545,669 new fully paid shares of HK$0.02 each
in the Company at HK$0.70 to the shareholders who
elected to receive shares in the Company in lieu of
cash for the 2013 final dividends pursuant to the scrip
dividend schemes announced by the Company on 23
May 2014. The new ordinary shares rank pari passu
in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the
Company. For more details, please refer to the circular
of the Company dated 23 May 2014.

42. Acquisition of subsidiaries

(a) Acquisition of GSIL

On 19 December 2014, Ming Xin Developments
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement and
a subscription agreement for the acquisition of
500,000,000 existing shares and the subscription
of 239,532,000 new shares of GSIL (stock code:
601) at the consideration of HK$229,600,000 and
HK$76,650,000 respectively. The transactions
were completed on 26 February 2015 and the
Group gained 51.46% controlling interest in GSIL
after the completion.
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ARIBEEER

EEZATE

Fair value

of net

identifiable

assets and

liabilities

B 5 FHET

Notes HK$’000

WME - BEREE Property, plant and equipment 17 124,868

4 b {5 A A Land use rights 16 12,200

B EE Intangible assets 20 2,566

BERRIZIRE Investments in joint ventures 2,740

BENR KA Investment in associates 24 22

A ERE Available-for-sale investments 7,300

FE Inventories 40,827
BoMHEMERSIE - FEN%IE Trade and other receivables,

k& prepayment and deposit 34,631
RITFER Deposits with banks 1,012
RekERRSIER Cash and cash equivalents 104,024
2 5 Rk E MR FIE Trade and other payables (60,178)
RIERIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 35 (248)
RS Income tax payable (129)
BE Borrowings (63,993)
FEIE R AR Non-controlling interests (96,536)

109,106
& Goodwill 19 197,144
BRE Total consideration 306,250
IATHFHERRE Consideration satisfied by:
Re Cash 306,250
WEEEMEES 2R M Cash outflow arising on acquisition:
S EeRE Cash consideration paid 306,250
PRl 2 R4 IR © Bank balances and cash acquired (105,036)
201,214
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(i) WigzEmE (i) Goodwill on the acquisition
WEESEHBEEEZHEREXAE Goodwill arose in the acquisition of GSIL because
THIEE o LN MEHIT2RE the cost of combination included a control
BREEAEENHKRZERREBERE premium. In addition, the consideration paid for
BEFRIEREISEHEE o THETIK the combination included amounts in relation to
BEA ZHETIRENRRIERS - the revenue growth and business strategy arising
from them which cannot be measured reliably.
None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.
(ii) WEHESBEREE2TE (ii) Impact of acquisition on the
result of the GSIL
BEEBREFARNSEREEARAFTE Included in the profit for the year of approximately
& A B 18 424,881,000 7T F A HK$24,881,000 losses attributable to the
RS ER 2 A /125,906,000 additional business generated by GSIL. Revenue
BT o WMEKEE 201551 A1H for the year includes HK$125,906,000 in respect
ER - AIFARBIFELEEBI of GSIL. Had these business combinations
A A&182,137,000/8 T » R B #H B & been effected at 1 January 2015, the revenue
BTS2 B8 A54,729,0008 7T © A of the Group from continuing operation would
SEEERRZTF(HBEIRFARRK have been HK$182,137,000 and the loss for
EHEEERFCEEFEZBRLD the year from continuing operations would have
FE Y AEREARKRBELELERZ been HK$54,729,000. The directors of the
DEHEE - Group considered these “pro-forma’ numbers

to represent an approximate measure of the
performance of the performance of the combined
group on an annualized basis and to provide a
reference point for comparison in future periods.
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b) WEFERASZHRERD
A ([#HERA ]

RAREER  KEERBILE =W
BHERED eI EERELE
DiEEEE R - ETIRESE
RAETERAEBZ T BEREEK
Wikog R E B R EIERE H 2 88 -
WHBEBEZ2BEREAREER
AZ & ER2015F12 8318 EA
ENER ZREYIEE-

FTEEAN2015F12815H (WEEH
)z #rEEBERIKE R
ZRAFEMT

(b) Acquisition of Xinjiang Tengxiang

Magnesium Products Company
Limited (“XTMP?”)

During the year, the Group acquired entire interest
in XTMP from independent third parties. XTMP
is engaged in the production and trading of
magnesium ingot and semi coke. The acquisition
was made as part of the Group’s strategy to
diversify the Group’s business and enhance long-
term growth potential of the Group. The purchase
consideration for the acquisition was in the form
of cash and the unpaid amount was recorded
as consideration payable to the sellers as at 31
December 2015.

The fair values on the date of acquisition for the
identifiable assets and liabilities of XTMP as at 15
December 2015 (the date of acquisition) were as
follows:

192

ARBREER
EEZ2ATE
Fair value
of net
identifiable
assets and
liabilities
FHATT
HK$’ 000
W - BEREE Property, plant and equipment 17 200,810
AN B EFIE Prepaid land lease payment 16 31,363
FE Inventories 5,284
FEUE 5 B8R Trade receivables 3,942
TENRIE - me REAM Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
& W BR 3K 118
AT U [2] F R Tax recoverable 1,859
RekReEBEEE Cash and cash equivalents 428
FERTE SR Trade payables (35,087)
HEEMBERLEBE  Other payables and accruals (75,163)
Mt EIRITIEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings (38,781)
AHAEEFEATE Total identifiable net assets at fair value
Gk 94,773
REEeEEREMEE Provisional gain on bargain purchase
WAK 2 E U A K recognised in other income and gains in the
W s FE TR B B B AR (B consolidated statement of profit or loss and
Uy B8 U = other comprehensive income 7,182
XATRAE - Consideration satisfied by:
PRBE B — gt UWBEEIBE  Provisional consideration — payable to the
NERZIA sellers in connection with the acquisition 87,591
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BREAEEREFGTUNEE RS (B
BIRREFEE NN 2015F5 A1B =X EI B
BRIz EEIBRSE TUAE - AR AL
ErErEgr gy AZEENRE Ll
WESEEES 2 ZBRBREIZBREE
EBE o

e BF o B U BB W 557,182,000 T = E 2
MANE BT A R ERA 2 &2
MEREBRHRE B -—REEERQTE
PBRGERHEEETE -

SR ERER 2 DGR RE RS
BURBREHNEREHFEHFESENAT
RE et RBRETHE  FEHHDT
BB EEHE—F -

o8 e A 2 FE W E 5 AR R Ko H A e U R R
RIRBRBOH A FERESOGERS
ARRESEHIGETMNERNBIFRE
YRR SR AT g ] o

AEBBRHEKBEBEEERI KA
1,758,000/ 7T » WL E R AE RN AHMHE 2
RABRRIEIIAITESH -

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement
entered by the Group and the sellers, the purchase
consideration shall be adjusted by the operating gain
or loss of XTMP for the period from 1 May 2015 to
the date of completion. The gain on bargain purchase
arising from the above acquisition is determined on
a provisional basis as the Group is in the process
of completing the negotiation of adjustments to the
purchase consideration with the sellers.

The provisional gain on bargain purchase of
HK$7,182,000 was primarily determined on a provisional
basis between the Group and the sellers after arm’s
length negotiations on normal commercial terms, having
taken into account the operation and business prospect
of XTMP.

The provisional consideration and the provisional gain
on bargain purchase recognised on acquisition as
shown above may be adjusted upon the completion
of the initial accounting for the business combination
during the measurement period, which shall not exceed
one year from the acquisition date.

The fair values of the trade receivables and other
receivables of XTMP at the date of acquisition
approximated to their gross contractual amounts
and the directors of the Company do not expect any
significant acquired receivables to be uncollectible.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$1,758,000
for this acquisition. These cost have been expensed
off and are included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the period.
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WENBARIZRERESTAT An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:

TR
HK$’ 000

FFAREEFIA S REMFTUEE Cash and bank balances acquired

2B RBITHEBEEE R and net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
ERABRSFEERMAFE included in cash flows from investing activities 428
ARG EBBLTREMILEE  Transaction costs of the acquisition included in
FHEIZ HKAR cash flows from operating activities (1,758)
(1,330)
B U LAK - 32 AR B 201512 Since the acquisition, XTMP did not contribute to the
S1ELEFEYEASNEBE TR ERMBA - Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
W ABZE2015F12A31 B IEFE Z4KEE 2015 and incurred a loss of HK$1,565,000 to the
18R A&k E5181,565,0000%8 7T ° consolidated loss for the year ended 31 December
2015.
MR F B ENNE E2015F128318 EF As the financial information of XTMP for year ended 31
ERFBERZIIALCEZ  BUOEKE December 2015 had not been previously audited, it is
HEOWEBHERBPY —REZESHER impractical to disclose the revenue and profit or loss, of
WA K8 25 3 AT AT o the combined entity, as though the acquisition date for
the business combination had been at the beginning of
the period.
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43. HE—RNE2F
RAFE ZMBRAAREEINZAE
FEMT

43. Disposal of a subsidiary

During the year ended, the net liabilities of subsidiary at
the date of disposal were as follows:

THETT
HK$’ 000

HEAaEFE: Net liabilities disposed of:
RekReEHEEE Cash and cash equivalents 8
EMEWER RIZS Other receivables and deposits 22
HEihENERRESBE Other payables and accruals (197)
(167)
HE—HBBAR 2K Gain on disposals of a subsidiary 179
12
BBENA TN Satisfied by
Be Cash 12
HE—HNRBARMSES Net cash inflow from disposal
MAFRE of a subsidiary:
BKBESRE Cash consideration received 12
BEZIRITEHEE Bank balances and cash disposed (8)
4

4. HEBAREREEZ 22T

R AN & B 78201592 426 H 5T i 4 58 14
ST BRRS1.46% IR EL - AL E
201553 A5 H F i 52 i 1% 2 T Y i 30 70
20153 H26H FEAK o 2N & B P4 B B [
2 PR A% RE % A U 3G 0 2=51.88% c INE E
2015512 A1 AL FER » 7R & E I EER
TIHEERERABEAER AT 23.15%%8
INEAREZ AR LRSS  AEBEER
B I 12 IR 2 498,580,000 JT AN 18 N
H b ff# # 495,797,000 7T °

44. Changes in Ownership Interest in

Subsidiaries

As the Group gained 51.46% controlling interest in GSIL
after the completion of acquisition on 26 February 2015,
mandatory general offer were made by the Group on
5 March 2015 and completed on 26 March 2015. The
Group’s controlling interest in GSIL thereafter increased
to 51.88%. During the year ended 31 December
2015, the Group also gained additional 3.15% equity
interest in Jiangsu Azureblue Technology Development
Company Limited. As a result of these transactions, the
Group recognised a decrease in noncontrolling interests
of approximately HK$8,580,000 and an increase in other
reserve of approximately HK$5,797,000 respectively.
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45. ARG R EE 45, Litigations and Contingent Liabilities
2EZ KR QNA2014F10ABH 2 A E - RAB Reference was made to the announcement of the
REHEEREERAA (B8 ZRE Company dated 9 October 2014 regarding a civil claim
A RAMBmERBH  BAAAA against Capital Idea Investments Limited (“Capital Idea”).
B BHEFRANENSHKEREESTE As of the date of the consolidated financial statement,
BEMKIZEEXHE  BREBER to the best knowledge of the Company, the writ of
SREFERNBRLETHEINLETE - summons of the litigation has not yet been served
BEEERR LR TEHAKERERS - on Capital Idea. Upon receiving this legal document,
LERMBBERERERTHEZE - Capital Idea will seek legal advice in relation to the

claim and the necessary actions to be taken in this
respect and will vigorously defend against the claim.
The Board of the Company is of the view that this claim
will not have a material adverse impact on the business,
operation and financial position of the Group.

46. REHREE 46. Events after the Reporting Period
R EHREIT EEMEKREIE - There were no significant events that have occurred

subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

47. L BE =F 47. Comparatives
AETHRESBEEIEETIE  UFELREF Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
EZE25FH - conform with current year’s presentation.
48. BRET R RSB HRE 48. Authorisation for Issue of
Consolidated Financial Statements
EEE22016F3 8230 #tfF & 7% 1 13 The consolidated financial statements were approved
RAEVEREK - and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

23 March 2016.
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